
ABABABAB    
CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING INEQUALITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 9 SEPTEMBER 2013 
7.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council.  

Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration. 
 

 

3. Minutes of Meetings held on 10 June and 22 July 2013 
 

3 - 22 

 • 10 June 2013 

• 22 July 2013 
 

 

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 

 

 The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is 
published and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the 
expiry of 3 working days after the publication of the decision (not including 
the date of publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is 
received from any two members of a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny 
Commissions.  If a request for call-in of a decision is received, 
implementation of the decision remains suspended for consideration by the 
relevant Scrutiny Committee or Commission. 
 

 

5. Peterborough Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report (PSCB) 
2012/13 and Business Plan 2013/14 
 

23 - 90 

6. Children's (Social Care) Services Statutory Complaints Process 
(Children act 1989) Annual Report 2012/13 
 

91 - 104 

7. Establishment of a Task and Finish Group for Improving the 
Educational Outcomes for Children and Young People in Peterborough 
 

105 - 106 

8. Children's Services Improvement Programme 
 

107 - 114 

Public Document Pack



9. Notice of Intention to take Key Decisions 
 

115 - 128 

10. Work Programme 2013/2014 
 

129 - 134 

11. Date of Next Meeting 
 

 

 Monday 11 November 2013 
 

 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Paulina Ford on 01733 452508 as soon as possible. 
 

 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: S Day (Chair), C Harper (Vice Chairman), B Rush, G Nawaz, J Shearman, 
B Saltmarsh and D Fower 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: J R Fox, M Nadeem and N Thurlbourn 

 
Education Co-optees: Jane Austen (Roman Catholic Church Representative), 

Miranda Robinson,(Church of England Representative), Alistair Kingsley – Co-opted Member 
Tricia Pritchard, (Director of Education & Training), Diocese of Ely 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Paulina Ford on telephone 01733 
452508 or by email – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 



  

AB 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

HELD IN THE 
BOURGES/VIERSEN ROOM, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH 

ON 10 JUNE 2013 
 

Present: Councillors  S Day (Chairman), C Harper, J Peach, B Saltmarsh,  J Shearman, 
D Fower 
 

Also present Alastair Kingsley 
Keith Jones,  
Julie Coleman,  
 
Sharon Keogh,  
 
Stuart Mathers 
 

Co-opted Member 
Citizens Advice Bureau 
Relationship Manager, Department of Work and 
Pensions 
Social Engagement Manager, Peterborough Food 
Bank / Care Zone 
Rainbow Saver Anglia Credit Union Ltd  
 

Officers in 
Attendance: 

Sue Westcott 
Jean Imray 
 
Adrian Chapman 
Allison Sunley 
Leonie McCarthy 
Paulina Ford 
Ruth Griffiths 
  

Executive Director, Children’s Services 
Assistant Director Safeguarding Families & 
Communities 
Head of Neighbourhood Services 
Head of Commissioning, Targeted Services 
Social Inclusion Manager 
Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny    
Lawyer 
 

 
1. Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Rush and Councillor Nawaz.  Councillor 
Peach was in attendance as substitute for Councillor Rush. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 
 There were no declarations of Interest or whipping declarations. 
 
3. Minutes of the meeting held on 22 April 2013 
 

The minutes of the meetings held on 22 April 2013 were approved as an accurate record.  
       

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 

There were no requests for Call-in to consider. 
 

5. Impact of Welfare Reform 
 
The purpose of the report was to inform the Committee of the impacts of Welfare Reform and 
the work that had been undertaken through the Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme 
to tackle poverty and destitution. The Head of Neighbourhood Services advised Members that 
the report was being presented very early on in the progress of work and confirmed that there 
was also work being done on the unintended consequences of welfare reform, e.g. shoplifting 
and domestic abuse. The subject would need to be kept under review for some time as many 
of the reforms would not happen for several months to come.  

3



  

 
Officers in attendance with the Head of Neighbourhood Services gave a presentation on the 
work they were doing to help mitigate the impact of Welfare Reform.  
 
Peterborough Job Centre 
 
Julie Coleman, Relationship Manager for Peterborough Job Centre, Department of Work and 
Pensions (DWP) advised Members that her work involved supporting the Local Authority and 
the DWP to work together for the roll-out of Welfare Reform. This had included coordinating 
provision; providers, employers and partners. There were approximately 6500 people 
currently claiming Job Seekers Allowance.  The job centre had being going through welfare 
reform for the last sixty years. The first part of that was the Social Fund Reform, followed by 
council tax changes, housing benefits, under occupancy and the next step would be the July 
benefit cap.  Part of the work had been to prepare all the partners of the voluntary and support 
organisations by holding awareness sessions.  
 
Care Zone & Peterborough Food Bank 
 
Sharon Keogh, Social Engagement Manager for Kingsgate Church advised Members that 
Kingsgate Church had been running the Care Zone Project which offered emergency furniture 
for people in crisis.  They were also the lead agency for the Peterborough Food Bank.  
 
Care Zone was a project that had been set up twelve years ago by Kingsgate.  It typically 
served people who were leaving hostels who have been homeless or victims of domestic 
abuse. The scheme was driven by public donations. They only took referrals from agencies 
and they relied on those agencies’ professional assessments. Last year Care Zone had 
supported 2010 people and in the first eight weeks of the project they had 130 new referrals.  
Food Bank was set up in October 2012 with the purpose of supporting people with emergency 
food. This followed the Trussell Trust model of food banks and was a partnership between a 
number of local churches. The scheme was driven by public donations. There were seven 
distribution centres placed strategically across the city and were open from Tuesday to 
Saturday.  They were run by volunteers who offered both signposting and food. The 
volunteers had received training from CAB so that they could offer people the correct support 
and help them find other agencies if necessary. In the first eight weeks of the project 572 food 
parcels have been distributed.  
 
Citizens Advice Bureau & Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme (PCAS) 
    
Keith Jones, Chief Executive, Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) in Peterborough informed 
Members that he was leading on the advice function and the initial assessment for the 
Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme. His role also included triaging all of the 
support arrangements under the auspices of the Peterborough Community Assistance 
Scheme.  
 
CAB was leading the forefront and DWP and Customer Services at Bayard were signposting 
people either in crisis or reaching poverty towards CAB, where they had a brief assessment. 
They were trying to break the cycle of poverty and enable people to move forward by giving 
them good quality advice. Members were given a ‘snapshot’ of what had been achieved in the 
first two months. Just over 1300 people had been seen under the scheme. The issues were 
predominantly benefits, tax credits, debt, housing, relationships, families, and employment 
issues. CAB was also one of the key referrals into the food bank and they had issued 245 
food vouchers in the first eight weeks. 72 referrals had been passed into Care Zone. There 
were also emergency packs for the homeless or people coming out of care of which 9 had 
been issued. 21 referrals had also been made to give people access to recycled white goods. 
70 referrals had been made for people to get emergency meter cards for those who had no 
money for gas or electricity.  
 

4



  

Peterborough Rainbow Savers 
 
Stuart Mathers,  Voluntary Director of Rainbow Saver Anglia Credit Union; known as 
Peterborough Rainbow Savers, advised Members that Peterborough Rainbow Savers  
provided financial access for those who were unable to get it. The scheme had 1500 members 
before starting in Peterborough. In the last two months an additional 250 people have joined 
the scheme. High volumes of people were being managed on a weekly basis most of which 
were enquiring about how they could get loans as the Union was a suitable alternative to 
payday lenders and loan sharks. All the products available were set up to help people save 
money and learn how to budget. They were also able to provide small loans to people who 
had smaller incomes and would be rejected by banks. The scheme was governed by the 
same financial ombudsman as all other lenders. The majority of people who had taken a loan 
had paid back first payments. The Union was funded by Axiom, Cross Key Homes and 
Peterborough City Council. 
 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• Members asked if it would be possible to include a summary in the report of PCAS clients 
and which services those clients had accessed. Members were advised that the PCAS 
clients were generally the same people who had accessed other services. Initially they 
were seeing people who were long-term benefit dependent.  They had also seen people 
who had changed which benefit services they accessed and people who had experienced 
genuine crises. Therefore there had been a mixture of situations but nothing unexpected. 
Members were advised that the arrangement for the first six months was that the team 
would be the umbrella organisation for all the work happening across Peterborough and 
the data collected for every person coming through would capture their circumstances. 
The performance measures that would be put in place were not yet captured in the report. 
Phase Two of the project would be about people being trained up by CAB to be able to 
triage themselves and would look at volunteering and employment opportunities.  

• Members sought confirmation on whether there would be a shortfall in the budget 
available to the Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme; and if so, how much would 
it be.  What would happen to the people in need of support when the funding had finished. 
Members were informed that the team had been aware of the amount available to them 
for some time and had developed a scheme which would prevent such shortfalls. Whilst 
there may be some short-term pressures on some of the services, such as the food bank, 
they were confident that they had got enough funds to sustain the services long-term. The 
model was sustainable based on current funding levels. 

• Members asked about the unintended consequences of Welfare Reform and were 
concerned about impacts affecting people with mental health issues. What measures were 
being taken to try and forestall, for example, attempted suicides?   Members were 
informed that work was being done on putting together a suicide strategy. Work was being 
done on how to support people who were feeling desperate and how to prevent people 
from getting to that point. One of the biggest challenges in dealing with suicidal people 
was getting the right support quickly. The strategy had to date managed to accomplish a 
direct line for the voluntary sector organisations to mental health systems in order to liaise 
with them and get people assessed. All doctors in the city had been advised about the 
strategy. 

• Members asked how many job vacancies there were within the city. Members were 
informed that there were on average between 1000 – 1500 jobs advertised per month 
most of which were temporary, part-time or zero-hour contracts. 

• Members had noted that the food bank was set up by a religious foundation and that there 
may be people who wished to receive food from the food bank but were of other religious 
faiths and might feel reticent about going into a Christian building.   What was being done 
about this? Members were advised that there were other distribution centres other than 
Kingsgate which were not religiously affiliated. Members were informed that there had not 
been as much resistance as one would think; and that some people had felt that a 
religiously based centre could be better trusted than a more formal setting.  Work had 

5



  

been done with other faiths, and some mosques and temples had been approached to 
see if they wished to engage with the food bank. This was a community-wide food bank 
and the Trussell Trust Model had been agreed on by all religious faiths at the time it was 
set up. It was always agreed that at the point of contact with individuals there would be no 
discussion about faith; unless those individuals choose to ask questions about faith.  

• Members asked if there was a finite capacity to the credit union facilities offered in 
Peterborough. Members were informed that there were three funded staff; two from the 
Local Authority and one apprentice from Cross Keys. The facilities were volunteer-led and 
even the directors were volunteers. It was confirmed that the volume of people requiring 
assistance had not been expected and this obviously affected the capacity to serve. The 
amount of people the union could see in a day and support was therefore limited. Another 
capacity issue was that the union was only allowed to give 80% of total turnover in loans. 
In order to mitigate reaching that limit the union was constantly looking for people to save 
with the union; thereby increasing the turnover.  

• Members asked what work was being done to stop loan sharks in this city. Members were 
advised that there was a Financial Inclusion Forum that had been running for some time 
and this included all the partners that work at the front end with the public. The national 
body for tackling illegal money-lending attended the forums every two months. An action 
plan had been developed to try and stop loan sharks; some actions of which had already 
been undertaken to get the message out. CAB would oversee and monitor the action plan 
along with a rogue trader action plan.  Members were also informed that there was 
national scrutiny on the payday lenders by the Office of Fair Trading. There had been 
examples in Peterborough where under 18 year-olds were being granted loans through 
deception. More could be done to educate young people about the dangers of this type of 
borrowing. 

• Members asked how many savers the Union had and what interest rate the Union 
provided and whether or not the Union was making a profit. Members were advised that 
the Credit Union did not base loans on interest but on dividends. There were 4500 
members across Cambridgeshire, North Suffolk and South Norfolk area. The profit made 
was about £3000 - £4000. This was shared out as interest. Children who saved were 
prioritised; the union tried to guarantee a 3% dividend for children. The dividend 
encouraged people to save but it was not a large amount of profit.  Most of the turnover 
went towards running the project. The Rainbow Saver was part of the National Credit 
Union expansion programme that government were financing and this was doubling 
membership of Credit Unions within twelve months. 

• Members asked if the number of rough sleepers had increased. Members were advised 
that the amount of rough sleepers in the city was currently twelve.  It was too early to say 
whether there had been an increase but this was being closely monitored.   

• Members asked if there had been an increase in rogue landlords and houses of multiple 
occupation. Members were informed that there had been an increase over the last few 
years and it was therefore difficult to say whether there had been a continued increase 
due to the Welfare Reform.  A proposal was being worked on to bring in a form of 
licensing in order to mitigate this risk. It would require a landlord to license their property 
with the Local Authority. This would enable the team to assess whether or not the landlord 
was fit and proper and that the tenants were protected.  

• Members asked where the food came from for the food banks. Members were advised 
that the food banks were reliant on public donation. Supermarkets were being very 
supportive in a variety of ways including monetary donations, collecting days, staff and 
customer involvement.  

• Members noted in the report the potential city centre hub which was for people over the 
age of 16 and wanted to know where people below the age of 16 could go for help. 
Members were advised that the team was working closely with colleagues in Children’s 
Services and would expect those colleagues to help in such cases. The age limit of 16 
was subject to review and the hub was part of phase two of the project.  Eventually a hub 
would be developed that would provide open access for all with no age limit.  

 

6



  

The Chair thanked the Head of Neighbourhood Services for an informative report and thanked 
the guests for attending the meeting and providing an informative insight into their work 
around Welfare Reform. 
 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the report. 
 

6. Children’s Play Services 
 
The Head of Neighbourhood Services introduced the report which provided the Committee 
with an update on the progress being made relating to the development of alternative play 
provision.   Members were informed that the project was live and therefore subject to change. 
Children’s Play Services had been subject to review over a number of years. In the medium 
term financial plan of 2010 it was identified that savings should be made from the Play Service 
but the savings had never been realised. In 2013 further savings were identified. The total 
savings therefore made the continuation of the staffing of Children’s Play Services unviable. 
The contribution that Play Services had made to the community had always been 
acknowledged. In order to recognise this contribution during the half term period there would 
be opportunities for individual play centres to hold celebratory events and record the history of 
Play within those centres. Commemorative books had also been created which allowed staff 
to take away an enduring memory of their work. Many of the centres had delivered targeted 
activities to children and clear action plans had been put in place for any children who were in 
receipt of targeted support.  A presentation was then delivered on what work has been done 
since the decision was made and what plans there were for the future including exploring the 
potential use of the buildings with communities.  A range of options for each building was 
being looked at which included outright ownership; long lease; short lease; and a license. The 
Council was keen to support the communities and build community infrastructure with the 
buildings.  
 
The work so far had focused on three key themes: Place, People and Business. Looking at 
place involved the condition of the building, the location and what funding would be required 
to make the building fit for purpose. Looking at people involved ensuring the community would 
have the capacity to run the service the building would be used for. The business model 
involved looking at whether the building could become more generic in terms of the service it 
would offer. Structural and condition surveys would be completed. There was a commitment 
to enter into a license agreement by the end of June for all eight centres. This meant there 
would be a group license to operate and run each centre; even if the future was as yet 
undecided.  
 
It was clarified that Families First would not be replacing Children’s Play Services but would at 
least provide the option for play in the relevant areas. ‘Families First’ could be offered as a 
support package to those communities who wanted to continue to deliver play.  
 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• Members asked how long support would be provided by Neighbourhoods and Children’s 
Services to community groups. Members were advised support would be provided to the 
community groups as long as it was needed. It was noted that this was about more than 
just the future use of Play Centre buildings; but rather about reflecting the spirit of 
Localism. It was confirmed that the Council was committed to maintaining and developing 
localism within the city. 

• Members asked about a seeming contradiction in the report where it had stated that there 
may be some buildings which may be found to be not fit and proper for service and yet it 
later stated that the project would ensure Play Centres remain viable facilities. Members 
were advised that the contradictions were reflective of the fact that the team were still 

7



  

trying to work out what the groups looked like. In some areas there were strong 
community presences whilst in others they were not as strong. 

• Members asked how licenses were being supplied if the recipients were not yet validated. 
Members were informed that the critical task they were trying to achieve was to ensure the 
buildings did not get boarded up and become lost for use. In some cases there were 
groups who had expressed significant interest in the managing of the relevant facility and 
negotiations had been entered into with these groups in order to issue short-term licenses. 
Where there were no groups expressing interest shadow licensees were being sought to 
take on the licenses for the time being.  

• Were there viable solutions for all eight buildings? Members were advised that there was 
concern for three of the buildings. In the three locations the communities had not 
previously benefited from support or investment by the Local Authority and therefore the 
level of community involvement was at a much lower level. A lot of work would be required 
to build the strength of community involvement in those areas to ensure they were ready 
to take the projects on. A more problematic issue was the condition of some of the 
buildings. In these cases development opportunities and other alternatives were being 
looked at rather than outright closure.   

• Members asked who would be paying for the upkeep costs of the buildings. Members 
were informed that there was a small amount of money available to cover some of the 
costs but not enough to last for long which was why the project needed to move forward 
quickly.  

• Members commented that the report had not included costings, number of children 
affected and that at Appendix 1 - Play Centre Summary Review certain Members of the 
Council had been referred to by their first names. Members were advised that the costings 
had been discussed during the Full Council meeting. The Officer advised that full names 
and correct titles would be used in future reports and apologised for the use of first names.  

• Members also commented that there was a lack of clear vision in the report. 

• Members sought assurance that groups would be given support regarding drawing up, 
reading in detail and understanding fully the licensing agreements. Members were 
informed that the short term licensing agreements were brief and the Can Do 
Communities would be working with all involved to ensure the communities fully 
understood the liabilities. Regarding the more complex work around asset transfer; a lead 
lawyer would join the team in order to establish exactly what the communities would need 
in terms of support. There was a commitment to fully support the communities throughout 
the project. Members were also advised that responses from legal colleagues regarding 
this part of the work would be included in updates and future briefs.  

• Members wanted to know if an exercise had been undertaken to establish unintended 
consequences of closing down the Play Centres if the community groups were unable to 
continue the services themselves. Members were informed that Neighbourhoods and 
Children’s Services were committed to work with the community to keep the Play Centres 
open. Members were also advised that there was a lot of work being done with Early 
Years Pathway for 0 to 5 year olds to help develop communication skills, good play, 
socialising skills and good learning to create stronger family units. 

 
The Chair thanked the people who set up Families First and thanked the Head of 
Neighbourhoods for taking on the task of alternative play provision and Children’s Services for 
supporting him. 
 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee requested that an update be provided in the form of a briefing note before the 
September meeting and a further update report to be provided at a future meeting.  
 

7. Children’s Services Improvement Programme 
 
The Executive Director of Children’s Services introduced the report which provided the 
Committee with an update on the Children’s Services Improvement Programme and included 

8



  

the refreshed Delivery Plan.  Members were informed that it had been announced that 
Children’s Services had been lifted off the Improvement Notice and thanked Members of the 
Scrutiny Committee for their involvement and work on reaching the target. Work on 
improvement was ongoing as it was about sustainability and the Executive Director confirmed 
that performance had been sustained so far. 

• Referrals had remained steady and the rolling rate for the year had dropped due to early 
interventions work taking place. 

• Re-referrals had markedly decreased and this had been a trend for the last few months. 

• Performance of Initial assessment time scales within 10 working days remained good up 
to May. 

• There were 11.2 fulltime equivalent vacancies; but there were 8 social workers waiting to 
start and 4 who were due to leave. 

• Child Protection plans were above target at 270, although this dropped to 244 in May.  

• Looked After Children had increased and this was predominantly to do with a number of 
young people in the system who were displaying risky behaviour and large sibling groups. 

• The Children and Families Joint Commissioning Board held its first stakeholder event for 
Early Interventions activities on the 22nd April. The event was a showcase of the Early 
Prevention and Intervention Strategy, feedback from the Safeguarding inspection and a 
presentation of children’s priorities going forward.  

• There would be ongoing scrutiny from the Improvement Board and Scrutiny Committee in 
order to maintain the improvement going forward.  

 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• Members congratulated the Executive Director and Staff in Children’s Services on the 
lifting of the Improvement Notice.  

• Members asked all to recognise that even with the Improvement Notice being lifted it was 
important for the Committee to ask constructive and informed questions to continually 
challenge the service. 

• Members asked what the major challenges were going to be in the next six months. 
Members were advised of the following challenges: recruiting and retaining high calibre 
staff, ensuring additional resources were mainstreamed and that the service worked within 
budget and that Early Prevention and Intervention work remained on track.  

• Members asked for clarity on the timescale on seeing fruition on the new staff coming on 
board; what are the reasons for difficulty in recruiting good team manager posts and how 
had the recruitment campaign been refreshed. Members were advised that the new 
starters would be on board between one and three months due to notice periods. The 
recruitment of Team Managers was a national challenge. Peterborough had done very 
well in this respect comparatively speaking. A factor contributing to this problem was the 
growth in social work agencies. Local Authorities could not compete with the kind of salary 
levels agencies could provide and this provided a constant challenge. The service had 
held high standards for an applicant; which contributed to the delay in recruiting good 
Team Managers. It was highlighted that the entire Senior Management Team was now a 
permanent team. This was an attractive positive point for people considering working for 
Peterborough. The refreshed recruitment campaign involved rebranding and marketing the 
Local Authority; especially the fact that it was now out of intervention and the Improvement 
Notice had been lifted.  

• Members asked about child protection plans.   Did the increase mean that thresholds had 
not been correctly applied previously and if so, was there an appropriate mechanism now 
to keep this on track? Members were advised that it was not unusual for authorities in 
intervention to find the numbers of child protection cases rising and numbers of Looked 
After Children rising. This could be a reflection of having more control of cases that had 
previously been drifting where risks have not been properly understood. It was important 
to be clear that targets were indicative in these matters but they provided a sense of 
where the service thinks it should be compared to similar demographics. It was important 
that the service ensured they had the right children with plans and the right children were 

9



  

looked after for the right period of time. This was constantly being looked at and 
challenged. As the Improvement Notice had been lifted and as the service continued to 
improve, partners and other agencies would have more confidence in the service to work 
robustly in other plans, such as Children in Need, and therefore not as many children 
would need protection plans.  

• Members asked about the Amber status on the RAG ratings and whether this meant they 
were behind in their targets. Members were advised the Looked After Score Card had 
been developed and made available to the Corporate Parenting Panel and the Local 
Children’s Safeguarding board. Action plans had been implemented for all the items with 
RAG ratings but it was work in progress and that was the reason for the Amber status.  

• Members asked why the lack of focus on work with fathers had been highlighted in the 
report. Members were advised that this came out of the Children and Families Joint 
Commissioning Board Stakeholder Event which had highlighted that there was a lot of 
focus on mothers and their parenting skills but not a lot of work was being done with 
fathers and boys. This was the reason this challenge has been incorporated into the plan; 
to focus more on how to engage with fathers.  

 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the Children’s Services Improvement Programme report.  
 

8. Children’s Services Improvement Programme Scrutiny Task and Finish Group – 
Progress Report 

 
 The report provided the Committee with an update on the work of the Children’s Services 

Improvement Programme Scrutiny Task and Finish Group and the progress it had made since 
it was established in November 2011. It was noted that this report has been read and all agree 
that it was a good report and the group would continue. It was suggested that people who 
were not actively taking part in the Task and Finish Group be approached to ask if they would 
like to continue. If they did not wish to continue others Members could be found who would 
like to take part.  

  
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee agreed that the Senior Governance Officer would contact members of the 
Task and Finish Group to confirm if they wished to continue on the group.  
 

9. Review of 2012/2013 and Work Programme for 2013/2014 
 

The Senior Governance Officer introduced the report which provided the Committee with: 
 

• a review of work undertaken during 2012/13 and recommendations made 

• the terms of reference for the Committee and  

• a draft work programme for 2013/2014 for consideration 
 
The Committee considered the report and decided that there were no recommendations from 
last year that required further monitoring.  
 
Members requested the following items be added to the work programme: 
 

• Reorganisation of schools in Peterborough.  

• Development of the University in Peterborough 

• Key Stage 1 and 2 Validated results to be presented in November and Key Stage 4 
Validated results to be presented in March 2014. 

• All other items on the draft work programme to remain. 
 

10



  

10. Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions 
 
The Committee received the latest version of the Council’s Notice of Intention to Take Key 
Decisions, containing key decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or 
individual Cabinet Members would make during the course of the following four months.  
Members were invited to comment on the Plan and, where appropriate, identify any relevant 
areas for inclusion in the Committee’s work programme. 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions  
 

11. Date of Next Meeting 
 

Monday 22 July 2013 
 
 
 
The meeting began at 7.00pm and ended at 9.20pm    CHAIRMAN 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



  

AB 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

HELD IN THE 
BOURGES/VIERSEN ROOM, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH 

ON 22 JULY 2013 
 

Present: Councillors  S Day (Chairman), C Harper,  B Rush, B Saltmarsh,  J Shearman,  
 

Also present Alastair Kingsley 
Alex Hall 
Aidan Thompson 
Councillor Holdich 
 

Co-opted Member 
Youth Representative 
Youth Representative 
Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and University 

Officers in 
Attendance: 

Sue Westcott 
Debbie Haith 
 
Jonathan Lewis 
Wendi Ogle-
Welbourn 
Denham Hughes 
Adrian Chapman 
Ray Hooke 
Paulina Ford 
Catherine Berriman 
  

Executive Director, Children’s Services 
Assistant Director Safeguarding Families & 
Communities 
Assistant Director, Education and Resources 
Assistant Director, Strategy, Commissioning, 
Prevention 
Team Leader, NEET, 0-19 years 
Head of Neighbourhood Services 
Performance and Information Officer 
Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny    
Lawyer 
 

 
1. Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Fower. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 
 There were no declarations of Interest or whipping declarations. 

      
3. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 

There were no requests for Call-in to consider. 
 

4. Corporate Parenting Annual Report 
 
The Assistant Director, Safeguarding Families and Communities introduced the report which 
provided the Committee with an update on the work of the Corporate Parenting Panel (CPP) 
over the last year. It was highlighted that this panel played a crucial role in safeguarding and 
improving life chances for children. The report demonstrated how effective corporate 
parenting was in working towards improving how children were looked after.  This was the first 
Annual Report and future reports would be presented on an annual basis. 
  
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• Members noted that the report mentioned benefits delivered through a new local 
‘scorecard’ and asked what the ‘scorecard’ was as it had not been included in the report. 
Members were informed that the’ scorecard’ tracked data that had to be produced for the 
Department of Education around performance for Looked After Children. The ‘scorecard’ 

13



  

covered the number of Looked After Children, where they were placed; how far away they 
were placed from Peterborough; the number of children placed in foster care; those placed 
in residential care and schools; their health assessments. The ‘scorecard’ was currently 
very much about ‘hard data’.   The CPP were trying to look more at the child’s experience 
and include qualitative data that demonstrated how well the children were cared for. The 
‘scorecard’ was presented at every CPP meeting. 

 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the report. 
 

5. Tackling Poverty Strategy and Action Plan 
 
The Head of Neighbourhood Services introduced the report which provided the Committee 
with an update on the work being undertaken to develop a strategy and action plan for tackling 
poverty in Peterborough.  The Performance and Information Officer from the Neighbourhoods 
team was introduced to the Committee as he had helped in providing the data in the report. 
The report had been presented twice previously to the Committee, and was work-in-progress. 
The Committee were asked to review the Strategy and Action Plan and provide feedback. The 
Committee was also asked to endorse the continuation of the working group; as well as the 
expansion of the group. Members were advised of the proposal for the Communities and 
Cohesion Board to take on the responsibility for overseeing and directing the work to tackle 
poverty.  Members were informed that there was already a lot of work taking place to tackle 
poverty. 
 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• Members expressed concern that the amount of data that was being added to justify the 
strands that were within the report was creating an impossible model to maintain. 

• Members noted that there were inaccuracies within the report such as the statement that 
the amount of job seekers claiming allowance was still rising; while it was known that the 
amount has gone down since December. 

• Members raised concern over the GDHI income per head figures; which was presented 
over 12 years rather than a more recent trend of 6 years. Members were advised that the 
initial scope for the report was to look at all data available to be able to provide a full 
insight. Officers felt that the GDHI measure should be used but agreed that there should 
be stricter criteria in place.  

• Members asked when the report would be finalised. Members were advised that it needed 
to be signed off and adopted by the Local Authority as soon as possible. If the Committee 
were comfortable with the report presented officers would work on it over the summer 
months and bring it back for review in September. 

• Members suggested that the NEET report could feed into the Poverty Strategy as there 
seemed to be a direct link between examination results and poverty existing within the 
city. Could evidence be found that correlates poverty with educational outcomes? 
Members were advised that this task had already been included on the work programme. 
Some of the data from the NEET report had been included in the report and some work 
had already been done regarding the correlation between educational outcomes and 
poverty. The Joseph Rowntree Foundation had a good understanding on this relationship 
and suggested three different levels of support for families who were vulnerable to lower 
education. Officers suggested that the following be included in the action plan going 
forward: a micro-level approach (actions dealing with individuals); a macro-level (social 
structures in place to support families); and an intermediate support level (the context in 
which families, schools and peer groups operate and support one another).  

• Members asked who would set the targets referred to on page 15 of the report. Members 
were informed that work was being done with the Financial Inclusion Forum, which was a 
group of Council officers and partners to bring forward recommendations on the targets. 
Figures would be included in the September report. 

14



  

• Members asked if the data in the report could have more continuity and consistency. 
Members were advised that a lot of data available was at a national level but not at a local 
authority level.  The available data at local authority level was much older. This was the 
reason more historic timescales were relied on in some of the instances. The data 
provided in the report was the most recent available data. Members were advised of a 
report produced by the Child Poverty Action group which quoted that Peterborough had 
11090 children and young people living in poverty. The figures quoted in the report were 
therefore current. It was also highlighted that a monetary value of the estimated cost to 
society of poverty in Peterborough was also included in the Child Poverty Action Group’s 
report which was £120 million.  

• Members referred to the chart within the report showing “vacancies by occupation” across 
the city.   There seemed to be a big mix of occupations available for a broad set of skills? 
Members were advised that the chart was included to show the changing picture over 
quarterly periods. It was noted that a lay person looking at this chart would see that it 
would depend on when the person was looking for the job in a particular field as to 
availability. The Department of Work and Pensions had informed the officers that the 
breadth and availability of jobs was greater than ever before in the city. 

• Members asked how one defined that someone is in poverty. Members were informed that 
there were four measures used to define poverty. The simplest measure was the national 
measure, which was that anyone falling below 60% of median income was considered to 
be in poverty. This was a very basic measurement and did not take into account a lot of 
factors that would need to be considered. Another measurement included looking at the 
household income plus material deprivation (cost of living, wealth, ownership vs. 
household income). A third measurement looked at absolute low income (the poorest 
families were measured against a rise in income in real terms across the country) and 
lastly a measurement looking at persistence (how long a household had been in poverty).  

• Members asked how an individual would be referred to the city food bank and how many 
times that person would be allowed to use the facility. Members were advised that an 
individual could be referred three times in any twelve month period. In Peterborough 
referrals were linked to a package of support. A food bank voucher on its own could be 
issued from any number of agencies and would  come with other support such as long 
term debt advice; help with priorities of financing; etc.  

• Members asked if the Basic Needs Service being filtered through the CAB was successful 
and how quickly they could respond to individuals who suddenly found themselves in 
poverty. Members were advised that the triage aspect for all packages of support was 
provided by CAB and by a network of different providers. It was confirmed that referrals 
were made into services immediately including the Basic Needs Service, but it was also 
available from the Credit Union and Carezone. The availability and accessibility of the 
service would continue to grow and Basic Needs provision would soon have seven day 
coverage. The CAB alone could not cope with the demands of Basic Needs referrals and 
had previously had to turn away up to forty people a day. In order to resolve this, an 
additional investment of £350,000 from the National Lottery was secured to build capacity 
and recruit more staff and to look at how service delivery could be made more efficient. 
The Council had also provided funding to CAB which would also help build that capacity. 
The capacity should be in place to fully cope with the demand by late summer.  

• Members asked if there were any facilities to provide for those individuals out in the rural 
areas. Members were informed that currently there were no rural outlets for the food bank. 
There were two important pieces of work going on at the moment in relation to this as it 
had also been highlighted at a Rural Scrutiny Committee meeting.  The Scrutiny 
Commission for Rural Communities had requested that a plan be developed around rural 
poverty issues. The first piece of work which would be included in the second phase of the 
Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme included a programme of up-skilling for 
community based groups and organisations; both urban and rural. This would help those  
individuals who would not  wish to go into the City Centre to get the advice or provisions 
they needed and would prefer to go to their local resident’s association Chairperson or 
Parish Councillor for example. Part of the funding made available to CAB included training 
for Parish Councils and Community Groups. This would start to roll out in early autumn. If 

15



  

there were any individuals in the rural areas with specific needs they could be visited in 
their homes or have the provisions delivered directly to them. This was part of the 
programme that was available now.  

 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee requested that the Head of Neighbourhood Services take the following actions 
with regard to the Tackling Poverty Strategy and Action Plan: 
 

• Look at the criteria for the data presented; particularly with regard to trend measurements.  

• Include evidence regarding the correlation between educational outcomes and poverty in 
the future reports.  

• Include information on how schools were spending the funds made available by 
government to support pupils on free school meals.  

• Include targets in the next document for review at the meeting in September.  

• Include data from the DWP with regards to job vacancies in future reports and invite a 
representative from the Job Centre, to substantiate the evidence to the Committee.  

• Re-circulate the PCAS guidance leaflet 

• Investigate using mobile libraries to use as food banks in rural areas.  

• Include more ward specific data in the report e.g. children in poverty per ward and 
employment data per ward. 

 
The Committee noted the report and the draft Tackling Poverty Strategy and Action Plan and 
agreed to extend the working group.  
 

6. NEET (16-19 years not in Education, Employment and Training) Update 
 
The purpose of the report was to inform the Committee of the current position in the city 
regarding young people who are not in Education, Employment and Training. The report 
highlighted the work of the NEET team and the actions taken to reduce the number of NEET 
people in the city. It was noted that young people classed as NEET had poorer life chances 
and that the Local Authority has a statutory responsibility to identify these people. It was 
highlighted that the June figure for NEET’s was 7.58% and this downward trajectory 
continued. There had been a large focus on Looked After Children and it was now known that 
there were 85.71% of Looked After Children who were in some form of education which was 
great progress for the NEET team.  
 
The team manager for the NEET team was introduced to the Committee, who explained what 
each ‘Employability Programme’ involved.   This included information on the Prince’s Trust 
Team programme and programmes that were in partnership with Cross Keys Homes.   There 
was also a weekly Work Club which was run out of the central library youth access point. The 
Pre-ESOL programme addressed a particular area of concern regarding a number of young 
people with English language difficulties. This programme aimed to assist those young people 
whose language was not sufficient to start on the ESOL programme. It was noted that a 
number of those attending this course were previously unknown to the NEET team. The 
outreach performed by the NEET team had helped to identify these young people.  
 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• Members congratulated Cross Key Homes on the work they were doing for NEETs.  

• Members asked if there was a limit as to how many young people could take part in the 
Prince’s Trust programme. Members were informed there was a limit of 19 young people 
per course.  

• Members asked if the 0-19 youth workers were the ones finding young people who 
attended the Pre-ESOL course. Members were informed that one of the advisors to NEET, 

16



  

who worked with a youth worker who had good relationships with local Eastern European 
Groups in the area had helped recruit young people with limited language skills.  

• Members asked what the quality of employment was like for NEET’s and was their 
progress monitored to ensure they were not dismissed. Members were reminded that the 
young people they got into employment were those that had not achieved well in 
education or to high academic levels. Moving the young people into work was only part of 
the team’s goals.  A lot of time was spent getting them into college so that they could 
further themselves and give themselves opportunities for high level work placements. The 
work placements the NEET team obtained were the best possible appropriate placements 
for the young people. Placements were monitored and there was a team of trackers who 
contacted the young people on a three monthly basis until their 19th birthday to find out 
what their situation was. If they were no longer in work they were offered support through 
the employment services team. Members were informed that the NEET team did not 
gather data regarding pay levels once their young people were placed.  

• Members asked if there were other employers in the city like Cross Keys who were 
working with the NEET team. Members were informed that there were no partners as 
large as Cross Keys. Extensive work was being carried out with BGL Insurance and there 
were strong historical links with Perkins although their intake of young people into 
apprenticeships has been reduced over recent years but it was  starting to increase again. 
The team had an employment advisor who provided employer links to the team and 
contacted local businesses to find opportunities.  

• Will the Raising of Participation Age have any budgetary implications for the Council for 
the anticipated increase that will take place in 2015 and is central government making 
additional funds available? Members were advised that there were no central funds 
available and the work would have to be done alongside the current NEET work. It would 
be a challenge and could not be left only to the NEET team within the Local Authority. It 
would require working very closely with schools and employers to make them aware of 
what was needed.  

• Members commented that there had been a big change in terms of awareness and 
opportunities for apprenticeships.  

• Members asked if the Local Authority offered any employment opportunities to NEET’s. 
Members were informed that the NEET team had been working with Enterprise recently 
and had developed a plan to include a rolling program of work placement opportunities for 
young people in various areas of work that Enterprise offered. Members were further 
advised that Serco  provided apprenticeships to young people and that Children’s 
Services has looked at  making  filing jobs available as pre-administrative roles.  

• Members suggested looking at bringing young people in to the Local Authority for ‘taster 
sessions’ as part of work experience during school holidays.  

 
ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the report and requested that the NEET Team Leader take the following 
actions: 

• Look into finding a way of measuring pay levels and ensuring that young people were paid 
at least minimum wages.  

• Look into the Chair’s suggestion of bringing young people in for taster sessions during 
school holidays.  

 
The Committee requested that a further report be provided in one year. 
 

7. Peterborough School Improvement Strategy 
 

The Assistant Director, Education and Resources introduced the report which provided the 
Committee with the latest version of the School Improvement Strategy, which outlined the 
proposed approach the authority would take  in targeting schools.  The Strategy had been 
prepared to ensure schools understood what the Local Authority could offer to them and to 
create accountability for both the Local Authority and schools and to ensure schools were fully 

17



  

aware of how they were performing.  The intention was to send the reports out to all schools in 
September alongside the relevant data sheets.  
 

 Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• Members commented that it appeared to be a good strategy and it was hoped that with 
these measures in place improvements would continue.  

• Members commented on the focus on lower achieving schools and highlighted the 
importance of ensuring there was oversight and management of this; and ensuring the 
skills for monitoring was retained within the Local Authority to ensure the focus remained. 

• Members noted the separation within the report in terms of management oversight and 
school-to-school support systems. Members highlighted the pace of dependency on 
school-to-school partnership and challenged officers to ensure there was a gradual 
transition where appropriate rather than pushing too fast and losing the core Local 
Authority supervision that would still be needed. Members were informed that the 
principles of monitoring, support, intervention and challenge would have to be written 
throughout the school-to-school partnership. Members were updated in terms of the pace 
of change. A conference was held in June with Head Teachers and there had been a 
subsequent working group meeting with Head Teachers where positive steps had been 
made to implement driving school-to-school support. The intention was that this work 
would continue in early autumn and a further report would be brought to Scrutiny in 
November.  

• Members sought clarification on the OfSTED categories.  Members were given 
clarification as to the OfSTED categories and how these were used to measure a school’s 
performance. Standards in terms of achievements were the priority and there was an 
important link between standards of attainment and rates of progress. Therefore even 
schools with low standards could still be outstanding.  

• Members commented that it was important to look in terms of year on year incremental 
progress. It had been stated before that the progress of children between Key Stage 1 and 
2 had been of high standards; but from Key Stage 2 to 4 it was not satisfactory. Was this 
still the case? Members were advised that the results would not be published until August; 
although there had been a clear focus in secondary schools around progress measures. 
One of the problems that secondary schools had was that measures in terms of progress 
did not get published while Key Stage 4 results were published. However, progress 
predictions indicated that there would be an improvement this year.  

• Members asked officers if they could elaborate on the following phrase in the report: “We 
will use our democratic mandate to champion the interests of parents and children” and its 
seeming contradiction with an earlier statement made: “…to the end our work will be 
relationships between schools, based on mutual respect, understanding and 
transparency…” Championing the interests of parents and children would sometimes 
require being tough on schools; how would this be achieved? Members were informed that 
there were powers of intervention that could be used.   Forewarnings would be issued and 
additional Governors could be appointed. Measures would be taken to deal with any 
underperformers, from Governors to Support Staff. Mediocrity from schools would not be 
accepted, Members were advised that since 2007 the relationship with Head Teachers 
and Governance had transformed to a point where the mutual respect and transparency 
allowed the School Improvement Team to challenge schools which would not have been 
previously possible. It was further noted that schools were encouraged to support each 
other in these times of different educational landscapes. This was part of the school-to-
school partnership progress which would need to become a reality in the future as the 
Local Authority could not continue to offer all the support.   

 
ACTIONS AGREED 

 
The Committee noted the Peterborough School Improvement Strategy report. 
 
 

18



  

8.       Peterborough EAL Strategy 
 
The Assistant Director, Education and Resources introduced the report which provided the 
Committee with an update on the Peterborough EAL Strategy to improve the attainments of 
pupils with English as an additional language and to outline the actions that are proposed to 
take place. It was highlighted that a key part of this strategy was to provide a sustainable 
solution so that schools could continue to support and provide as necessary for the EAL 
children in the future. This involved up-skilling the teachers and giving them strategies to work 
with this group of children to ensure they were quickly and smoothly integrated into the 
education system.  
 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 

 

• Members welcomed the strategy and commented that it had been needed for a long time.  

• Members asked if there was enough traction being made on the items identified in 
paragraph 5.3 of the report, relating to an implementation plan; particularly the time-critical 
items. Members were advised that a lot of this work had already been done. It was noted 
that the team has been given more resources to run the programme. It would however 
take time to impact on outcomes. Members were also advised that there had been huge 
interest in the courses offered; although not as much from secondary schools and 
therefore the team would focus on engaging with them in the future.  

• Members asked if the training and resource that had already been provided to Local 
Authority Governors could be delivered to all Governors. Members were advised that this 
strategy would be launched with Governors in the autumn. The intention was to use hubs 
to get the training delivered to as many schools as possible, as well as to ensure all 
Governors were given an EAL handbook. The first stage of the strategy involved 
marketing and making sure information was available so that everyone knew how to 
access the services.  

• Members asked when the reference group of school leaders and key partners was going 
to be established. Members were informed that the reference group was due to be set up 
in September. The EAL team were already in communications with a number of schools 
and eight head teachers had signed up to join the group. 

• Members asked what sort of interest school Governors had shown in the training offered 
and if there was a record of which schools were poorly represented? Members were 
advised that there was a Governor Forum held every half term, where training was offered 
to all Governors. Approximately 85 people attended the last session. The intention was 
that a copy of the EAL strategy would be sent to every school alongside the School 
Improvement strategy. As part of the governance support service, the team would offer a 
dedicated training session for Governors. Each of the schools that subscribed were 
allowed a dedicated training session in school.  

• Members asked if there were any links made with other Local Authorities regarding 
school-to-school partnerships; and to what extent was this work being pushed on by the 
work Graham Smith was undertaking in the city. Members were informed that this piece of 
work came from learning from others and they were looking at connecting with other Local 
Authorities. Graham Smith was formerly the ‘London Challenge’ advisor for EAL and had 
supported the team to put together the strategy in the report presented. A lot of academic 
research had also gone into the report as well as work with other schools in other Local 
Authorities.  There was a particular link with schools in Bradford. The challenge was 
finding other Local Authorities who had similar challenges to Peterborough and  
Nottingham City was the  closest match. There had also been communications with Bristol 
who also had similar challenges.  

• Members asked whether Graham Smith was working for the Local Authority on a 
consultancy basis. Members were advised that he had been commissioned by the LA to 
undertake this piece of work.  

 
 
 

19



  

ACTIONS AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the EAL strategy report 
 

9. Children’s Services Improvement Programme – Progress Report 
 
The Executive Director of Children’s Services introduced the report.  The report informed the 
Committee on progress that had been made on the Children’s Services Improvement 
Programme which had been put in place following an Ofsted Inspection in August 2011.  The 
progress report had been a regular report to the committee and the last update to the 
committee had been in June 2013.   Members were advised that performance in general was 
being sustained. Going forward Children’s Services would need to reconfigure the staff 
structure in order to accommodate work load without taking on any new staff. It was noted that 
there would be a focus on Family Support Services and Direct Intervention services in future.  
 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• Members commented that a resident recently reported a concern about children living next 
door to their home. The Councillor reported this to Children’s Services on a Monday and 
received a full report by Friday. Members were impressed by this efficient service and 
thanked the department for this good work.  

• Members asked if Children’s Services were looking to reduce the number of  social 
workers. Members were advised that it had been agreed that when the additional social 
workers were given to the department it would be reviewed after a year and again after  
eighteen months to see if the same capacity would still be required. The previous 
Executive Director of Children’s Services, Malcolm Newsam had advised that an 
additional 21 social workers were needed in order to improve the service. It was the 
department’s view that this capacity was still required and this had been reported to the 
Corporate Management Team but the department was still obliged to review it. 

• Members sought assurance that there would not be a reduction in the additional funding 
that had been allocated to Children’s Services. Members were advised that the team was 
obliged to review what provision was available to the service; whether it was necessary 
based on the number of referrals and work they were conducting. It was confirmed that at 
this point in time there was no reason to withdraw the additional social workers or funding.  

• Members asked if the report could be bought back to the Scrutiny Committee after the 
review to show how the social workers were being employed and whether they had been 
moved to different departments. Members were advised that social workers would not be 
moved. The review would cover the entire provision across Children’s Services and would 
look at whether their workers were in the right place across all the services within the 
department. An example was given: Some changes had been made to the Front Door so 
that there were more workers available to screen the initial contacts and referrals so the 
work was done early on rather than down the line. In order to facilitate this, some staff 
members had been moved from ‘Referral and Assessment’ teams to ‘Family Support’ 
teams. It was noted that this would always happen in social care as they continue to 
improve they would be required to look at provision on a constant basis.  

• Members asked where they should expect to see the baselines levelled out in the future 
now that the improvement was generally positive and sustaining. Members were informed 
that there was always a focus on quantitative information in an improvement plan. This 
was the reason for the focus on timescales in the report.  Now that this had improved the 
focus would shift to the quality of work. Members were informed that during the last 
inspection OfSTED had not asked about timescales. The department was developing a 
single assessment tool to take away the distinction between initial and core assessments 
so that the process would be as follows: a referral would be allocated (if it met the 
threshold of social care); there would be one single assessment. This would mean fewer 
transitions from one team to another thereby allowing for continuity of one social worker 
which was better for both the child and family and the social worker.  

20



  

• Members commented that the report indicated that there were still a few changes going on 
in terms of the way the system was adapting and that it still included data that was very 
qualitative based. This seemed to indicate a disconnect between the focus of OfSTED and 
Children’s Services and the focus in the report presented to the Committee. Members 
were advised that the Department for Education was still measuring Children’s Services 
on the indicators and this was the reason they were reflected in the report.  

 
AGREED ACTION 
 
The Committee noted the report and requested that the Executive Director for Children’s 
Services reframe the report to include qualitative aspects of the improvement work and 
present this at the next meeting in September. 

 
10. Scrutiny in a Day:  A Focus on Welfare Reform 
 

The Senior Governance Officer presented the report which set out proposals to hold a cross-
Scrutiny Committee event that would focus on the impacts of welfare reform. This event would 
be held in order to understand and mitigate against the breadth of impact on individuals, 
families, communities and businesses. Nominations would be sought from each Scrutiny 
Committee to form a working party to help plan and provide input for the day.  
 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• Members asked if there were any proposed dates for the event. Members were advised 
that no date had been set but it would probably be held during late autumn time.  

• Alistair Kingsley and Councillor Sue Day volunteered to be part of the working party to 
assist in organising the event. 

• Members agreed that the Scrutiny in a Day event to focus on Welfare Reform was 
necessary and welcomed the proposal. 

 
AGREED ACTION 
 
The Committee noted the report and agreed to be part of the Cross Scrutiny Committee event. 

 
11. Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions 

 
The Committee received the latest version of the Council’s Notice of Intention to Take Key 
Decisions, containing key decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or 
individual Cabinet Members would make during the course of the following four months.  
Members were invited to comment on the Plan and, where appropriate, identify any relevant 
areas for inclusion in the Committee’s work programme. 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions and requested the 
following information: 

• Information on the process for choosing a new provider for Claire Lodge to be sent to the 
Committee.  

• Senior Governance Officer to find out why KEY/13NOV12/09 Children’s Play Services was 
still on the list and if it can be removed.  

• Senior Governance Officer to find out why KEY/25JUL13/02 The Expansion of Fulbridge 
Academy was still on the list as this has been completed.  

 
 
 
 
 

21



  

12. Work Programme 
 

Members considered the Committee’s Work Programme for 2013/14 and discussed possible 
items for inclusion. 
 
 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
To confirm the work programme for 2013/14 and the Senior Governance Officer to include any 
additional items as requested during the meeting. 
 

13. Date of Next Meeting 
 

Monday 9 September 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting began at 7.00pm and ended at 9.26pm    CHAIRMAN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

22



CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 5 

9 SEPTEMBER 2013 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Independent Chair of the Peterborough Safeguarding Children 
Board                                      
 
Contact Officer(s) –  Russell Wate 
Contact Details -  Russell.wate@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

PETERBOROUGH SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 
AND BUSINESS PLAN 2013/14  
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with an update of progress with respect to the Peterborough 

Safeguarding Children’s Board (PSCB). 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

2.1 Committee members are requested to comment on and note the contents and to consider if 
there are any matters they may wish to scrutinise in the future 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 Creating Opportunities – tackling inequalities. 

• Supporting vulnerable people. 
 

Creating strong and supportive communities. 

• Making Peterborough safer. 
 
4. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
4.3 

The PSCB statutory purpose is to coordinate and to ensure the effectiveness of local 
arrangements and services to safeguard and promote the welfare of children across all 
agencies in Peterborough. 

This report presents the Board Annual Report for 2012/13 and the business plan for 2013/14. 

In February 2013 the board appointed a new Independent chair Russell Wate, who has an 
extensive police background, but for the last three years has been an Independent chair of  an 
LSCB in London, worked as a member of the team for Government that brought out ‘Working 
together 2010 and the ‘Munro review’.  

 
5. KEY ISSUES 

 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Ofsted Inspection into the arrangements’ for the protection of children included three 
actions for the board to take forward. 
 

a) Ensure the PSCB has sufficient high quality information to enable them to 
monitor and challenge practice across all agencies. 

b) Ensure that PSCB reviews the attendance of relevant agencies at CP 

23



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 

Conferences along with the timeliness of reports being available. 

c) Ensure that PSCB develops a robust auditing programme that that includes a 
focus of the experience of the child and the impact of and outcomes of service 
provision and that leads to identification of themes and plans for improvement 
which are robustly implemented and monitored. 

All three of these actions are seen as priorities for the board and actions are included in the 
board annual business plan In addition there are other actions arising from the plan that the 
PSCB need to actively support/assist and challenge activity.  

The annual report highlights the significant events during the last year, summarises the work of 
the sub committees, highlights some areas of good practice and presents some statistical 
information about safeguarding performance. 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 The business unit which supports the board and the role of the Independent Chair are funded 
by the partners of the board (Children Services/Police/Health /Probation and CAFCASS). There 
continues to be good engagement form all partners and the funding is considered secure. The 
board has undertaken a review of the staffing of the business unit and by rationalising posts 
and this will deliver efficiencies in forthcoming years. 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 The annual report and business plan has been developed with partners who submitted 
information for inclusion. They have had the opportunity to contribute to the priorities through 
discussion at PSCB meetings and received a presentation of the document for final comment at 
the meeting on 18th July.  
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 The annual report will be published on our web site and circulated widely. It will also be 
presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board. It is being presented to the Police and Crime 
Commissioner in October 2013. 
 
The business plan is being implemented and will be monitored through the PSCB Chairs 
meeting. 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

9.1 PSCB Annual report 
 

10. APPENDICES 
 

10.1 PSCB Annual Report 
PSCB Annual Business plan 
Child Death Overview Panel Annual Report 
 

 

  

24



�

�
���������	����
������������	�����
�
�����
��������	��	��
���������

�

�

���������������� ���!�

�
�

�

�

�

"��#$�%����!� �&��

���������	
��������	����

������
�������������	�����

������
�������������������	
������������������
����	��

������
�����������������	
�������������	���

��������������������	����������������	�����������������������

'���#����!� �&(�

���������

���������	
���������� ����!��������"!����	���������	���

������
�������������������	
����	���������	���

��������

"�����

25



�

��

)��! �!&(�

�
"�� *��#������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

$�!��#�)!$�� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ��

��)���)��! +! ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��

#�$%&�'"�#$(#"�')"��"*��$#(#"�')"� ��

%)��%'�&�+��#*�,-%�'.��#"�&��-��)$���$)-����,���/��� ��

�!'%*��$)�#��')"��%�"�� ��

%))0#*����#$��!'%*$#"� ���

*),#��'���+-�#� ���

�!'%*$#"�,'��'"���$),�!),#��"*���$#� ���

!, �'���#��'- )!$. &���#�"��)!$��& ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���

��$-��-$#��!�$�� �	�

,#,+#$�!'�� ���

���#"*�"�#����+)�$*�,##�'"��� ���

+-*�#��1233�.�31� ���

���%� &&��%�$�&!�!, ���$��$!$ &���!�$� #�$��!, ������/������'�&$� &&������������������������������������������� ���

0��$!��$�%�!, � "" )!$. � &&��"���)���*��1�!��&�" %���#�2����0�! �!, �* �"�� ��"�),$�#� �

������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

���+��"*��!#��)""#��')"�4'�!�)�!#$��$)-��� �
�

#�$%&�'"�#$(#"�')"��"*��$#(#"�')"� �
�

�!'%*�*#��!�)(#$('#4���"#%� ���

�#$')-�����#�$#('#4�� ���

3���$!4�2� "" )!$. � &&�%���� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���

��$��#�&�*'��-��')"��-*'�� ���

�)$#��$)-���-*'�� ���

�!$#�!)%*��-*'�� �	�

�#��')"�33��-*'�� �	�

�$'(��#��)��#$'"�� ���

�%%#���')"��,�"��#,#"�� ���

)�5��#$��!$�%���)���*��1�!��&�" %���#�2����0�! �!, �* �"�� ��"�),$�#� ������������������������������ ���

��$��#�'��%#�$"'"���"*�*#(#%)�,#"���$)-�� ���

�!'%*��#5-�%�#5�%)'���')"� ���

#.���#�&� �
�

!#�%�!����#�-�$*'"���$)-�� �
�

!, �.�$) ��"�),$�#� �6�4���%�� ��� ���#�"�0$�$ &���������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���

'�&$� &&���$��$!$ &���#�'���#�# . ���0 �!�����5�7������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

"$��������4&$&���#�)��)��&$��&������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �	�

��� �#$+���5�&�" %���#$�%�/�1��*�4����� &���&$'$�$!$ &���������������������������������������������������������������������� ���

�

���� 	������� �����������6	��������	�����������	
���� �
	����
���������+���������+���������

������������� �������������� ��������  ����������������7��

$	������4���8����+�'���������������� $	�����97���:���������	
�9
��9	;��

<����������8����+�+	������,���
��� <��9�������:���������	
�9
��9	;��

!�����!�����8����+������
�����*�����������

,���
���

!����9������:���������	
�9
��9	;��

$�����������8����+���� ������������=	�����

���	������)  ����

$�����9�����:���������	
�9
��9	;��

<����4����8����+�+	�������	��������+������ ����9����:���������	
�9
��9	;��

������������8����+�+	�������	������������
�� ����9�����
:���������	
�9
��9	;���

�

)�������	��7���������7779���������	
�����9��
9	;��

26



�

��

"�� *��#(�

'����������������������� �����	����������	
�/���� �
	����
���������+��������	��� �������

 ��� ����������1231.123>9� ��������������� �������
�
��	�� �	����� 	�� �����  ��� ������������

�
������ 7���� ���� ���������	
�� ����9� ���� ������ �	������� �������/�� �������� 7����

�����������7�������������� ������������
�������������	����123>����) �����7���
������

�����������������6	��������������9�

�������������	
������������	����	���������������
	�����	������������������	�������	����������

	
� �����
������ ������ ������	������ ����������� �	� �����	������ ������ �	�����	�� 	�� ��������� ���

����� ������� ���	���� �	����� ������������� ��� ���� ������������ �	������ ���� ��
������ �������

������	�������������	�����������
�������������	���������	��������	��������������������

����������������������������������������������������������	���������

-�����������6	��������� �����������������122?@��������+�������;�������	��������������

 ��� �
����
� ��7� ���� ��������� ��
��������� �� ���������	
��7��� ��.�������� ��� �� �
	����

���� �������� ����7�� ���� � � �������� �� ��� �������9�-����� ���� ����	����� ��6	������@� ����

%��+����������6	����������	��������  ����������� �7������������
�����������9��

�����������A�������� �����%��+����������

�� ��.�������� 7���� �� ����� ��� ����� ������� ��� ����� ������������ ��� ���� +����� ���

�� �
	��������������������7�� ����� ��������������������	
��

�� #��	��� ���� �  ���������� � � 7���� �� ����� ��� ����� �	��� ������� ��� �����  ��� ������

�	������9�

�������+����� ��� �	�.
��	����� ���;� 
��	������������������������ �� �����������7��� ����


	��������	�����4��;�
���
������123>9�

��������� ���������� ����
�����'���������������� ������������	
������'������ �	�������

�	����
�������������������������������@����������7���
��������������� ������������� ���

���� �������� ���� ��	�
� ������� �� ���������	
�9� '� 7�	��� �;�� ��� ����;� ���� � � ���� ������

�������@� ���	��
� �����7�� �����������@�  ��� �����7��;@��	������� ����  �������� ���  �  ����

�����
������7���7��;��������������;������������������	�
���������� �9�

'�7�	���������;���������;����;����� ����7���7�������'������������������ �������������

�����	���� ��� ����;� <	��� <����@�7���7��� ����+�����,���
���  �������������@�  �������7��;�

�������7�������
�����	�;����������������9�

������������	���������������������������	����� �������������������������������;���������

�	��
�������������������'��������������������������	9�

����  ��������
� ����� ���� �������� ���������� �B���
� ������	�����  ��� ���� ������ ���� ���

��������� ������ �������� �� �����7��� �����	�� �����������  	�����@� �� �
	����
� ������������

������	�
�������������������	
�9�

�

$	������4����=�,�

27



�

��

$�!��#�)!$����

�����	������� �����������������

�� �����������	������ ��������������������

������������� ��������������	
��

�� �
	����
���������+���������+���	��
�

1233�C�12319�

�� ���������������������� ������  ����������

� ��� �
	����
�����������������9�

�� �����������
��������	���@������������������������;���������7������������7�� ���7�

7�����������������������	
���������������9�

�� ������� �������������� ����������+�
��
� ��7���9�

�� '���� ��
����������������������������������������
��������9�

�������������	
���� �
	����
���������+���������+���������������	������������3>�� �����

�������� ���� 122?� 7���� ��6	���� ����� ������ �	������� ��� ��������� �� %����� �� �
	����
�

��������+������%��+���������3������122D9�-�������
	�����@���	���	������������E�� �����

%����� �	������� ������ �������� ���� 3FE2@� �� ��������� �� G4��;�
� ��
������ ��� �� �
	����

�������8���������>��123>�/�

���� �������������@� �;���@� �������� ���� %�����
� ���� 122F� �����	���� �� ��6	�������  ���

%��+���������	��������	�����������	������������������  ����������� ��� �
	����
� ������

������ ����9�4��;�
� ��
������ 123>� ��� ����� ����� ���� ������� ���	��� ��� �	������� ��� ����

%������� �������	���@���� �#B��	���@�%��������������������������������������������� �

����!����������4������
�+����9�

���)���)��! +!�

����������	
����

�����������������������������������������������������������������������	
���
��������� ����������!�

�

,	���� ���������������7�� ���������������������	�������� 	�	����������������������������

�	����
�������������7�������7���������	����
��������	��9�

�
������������������
����8�	��������������
��	(�

���������������������������� ��������1233�����	��������	�����������������?H@122�������������

��	�
���������
���2.3F������������	
�9����������
� ������������� ��������1223�����	��

 
	���� �?>@2229�������������������;���������������������
���������	��������������	�����

������2.?��
�����
�@�7��������������������>DI������12239�

�������������������������	
�����	����
��������� ����	��������������
���	��@�7���>@222�

��������������9�' ��	������������������	�@�����7����������������>@J22�������������12139�

�
��������9��������
��	�������:�	���	�����	��;������(�

'��������� �����
����������	�����@�H2I����� ����4����+��������;
��	���@����������7���

HJ91I� �� ���� #���� � � #�
����� ���� H19HI� ���������9� !�7����@� �������� ����
� ������� �
��

�	���� �� �	��� 
�������� ����� F2� �  ������ ���
	�
��� ���� ���;��� �� �	�� �������� ���� ����

����������� ��	����7������������������
	�
��������������������������������<�

'�� ��������
�� �������� �����@� ���� ����� �������� �������� �� �	���� 7��� #�
���� ��� ���

��������� %��
	�
�� ���� ��;��� ������ 7���� ���� ������� ������� �������� ���7���� 122E� ����

1233@�������7�����E2I�������������	������7���#�
�������������������%��
	�
���������
�

28



�

��

������� �������9� ���� ��B�� ���
���� �������� �� �� ������� �������@�7���� �� ����������7���

������ ����� ���� �B�������
� �
� ����� ����
������ ����
��9� ���� ���������� � � �	����

�������
����������������7��������#�
����������������������
	�
��������������?JI������

��������������9�

!���������	�����	
���������������2���:��;�����
;��	��
��������(�

���������  ������������� ���� �
� ����� ��	�� �����������	
�9����������	
�� ����������� �

������������������	���������� ������������������������������������������	����9��

�����;�������������������������
������������ ����������������7������������7������122F@�


���� ��������� �� ���� ������ � � 	������������ ����� ����9� !�7����@� ���� ������ 7����� ����

������������ ���������������	�
�������� ���
� ���������������
���������	��;������������

����
����
� ������9�

)������@�1J9>I�� ���������������	�
�����������
������������	
���������
����������9�����

���������7�����������
������� ���#�
������ �139DI���������#�������$�
���� �3D9?I9������

�����������������������7��������	������������ �������	��������9���������� �������������

�������������� �	��� ������������� � �.��������� ���������������	�
�������@������	������

7����������B��������� ����	��������������� ����9��������� 	���  ������ ������������� ����

�����7��������������B���������������������������	�
��
�9����������  �������������������

������������������;��������

�� ,����������� ��������
���������������������	���������	�����������������������

�� +���������������������������.������������	��

�� !������7����������� �������@����	��
��

�� '�����������;�� �������	�������@���7������7�
��������������� �����
��� �3�

�� '�����������;�� ���������
����������������  �	�����

�� '�����������;�� �����������������

�� !������7����������� ���� .��������������������� ������� 	�	��9�

4�� ����� ��� ���	��� ����� ������ �� �� 
���� 	����������
� � � ���� �� �
	����
� ������ � � ����

�������� � � ���� ����	���� ���� �� �
	����
� �� ����
����� ���� 	���������� �������

���������	
�/�������������	����9�

����������	
���	��������"�

��#������������������������������ �������������� �������$$��������������
�������������� ���� �%������%������������������$�

�

 ���4�$�! �. �!$�����#��� . �!$���

�	��;���������
��

�����������������������������	������ ������7������
��� ��
�����9�4����������������

 �����7�	������� �� �������������������
����������������'�����
�����������������	������

���� ������� ����������� �����7��;� �����9� ���� ���	��� �������� ���� ����� ��������
� ����

��6	��������������� �������	��������	���

�� !�� 
�
��� 	�:��� ��� )�"�� ����
��� �	� ����� �	������ ���	�����	
�;<� #���	�� �����

�
�������������
�����
�
������7=7�)�"�<�!��������=>�:���
��	�����<��������	�����

�� �����  �������� �����	
	��� ���� ����������7��� ������� �������� ����  ����7� ���� �����

������������������	�������9�������������������������������	�������123>�

29



�

��

�� *	��
�����	����1231�������	����7�����������/��������������
�������	�������������

������.����������� ������� �����������/������������������	���������������������������

�������� ������� ����� ��� ���� ����� �������/�� ������ ����� ����������@� �	�� 7���� 7�	���

���� �� ����������	��.�
������	��������������
����������9�

�� ������ 7��� ��� 	��B������� ��� �� ���� �	����� � � ����� ��
������� �	��
� ���� ������ � �

���������� 1231@� �;���� ��� ��� �� ���	��� � � ����
�
� ��� ���� ��7� ���������	
�� ���� ����

��	����
�������7�,	����
������	�������������7�������;��������	��
����������9�

�� )������� ��� *�������� 1231� ��7� ��  	������ ������ �������� �� ���� �	����� � � �����

��
�������7����7����� ����������� ���7������������������������� �� ���	��� � ���.

����������� �����������/�������������7����������7����
�����
��������	�����������

�����
����������9��

�� �����	������ ����/����
�������7��������	�����������������������������������������

�  �������� ������� � ������7����������	
���������� �����	������ � ����,	����
�����

�	������������9�

�� ���� ���
���� �������� ���������������� �� ����2.J�����D.33��
�� ���
����� ���7����� ����

�����������
��E9������������	�������������������������������������������#�����&�����

����������� �������� ������ ���
���	������ ���.�����������  �����������/�� ������ �����

�����  ����
�7���� ���� �
�� ���
�9� ���� �� �������������
� ����������������	���� ������

���������������	��������7��	�������������	������ ������ ���2.J����������9�

)�"���:����"����4�������5�����

���	������� ������	��������������������7� ��������������
���
������12319�-����������

�����	������ ������� ������������1231K3>��������7������7����������� �J23�9�

';�0�	
�(�

���� ,��� <	��� <	��� �	
� ����� )��� "��� *��� <��� ���� ,��� ������

1D� JJ� ??� 1F� 3E� 11� D?� D2� ?3� JD� >1� JJ� J23�

';�%	��(�

,���� ������� -������ ������

1?3� 3FE� D>� J23�

';���(�

-������ 2�C�J���� D�C�33���� 31�C�3J���� 3DL� ������

D>� 3J>� 3JH� 32F� 3H� J23�

';�������
;(�

"����@� 4���� ��

$	����

����������#���� ��	��� )	��� ������ ������

3HE� 3J1� 3J?� H� J23�

�

*���)�:��
��)�"(���������

#�����

&�����

���9�

�����

���9�

�����

!������ %�� >
��
�

�������

��	���

����9�

,��9� *�.���� ������

3H� 31>� E3� F1� ?J� >� 2� D� 3?>� J23�

�

����+�����7���7��;�7��������
����������������������  ������	���� ����9�

30



�

��

�&'�����&%��(��%��)�������*

�

��

��

��

	�


��


��


��


��


	�

����� �������� ����

��� 
����
���� 
��

&%��(��%�

+
�
$

�
�
��

�
 �
�

&
'
�

������


�

)�"���:������	�������?���8@�����;���������/������?
����
@�

�


�

��

��

��

��

��

��

�������

����
���

�
���

�
���� 

�
��

����
�� �

��!��"

���"�
#

��

$
�"�

��

%
�&�#

��

'
���#

��

,�����-���

+
�
$

�
�
��
�
 �
�

&
'
�

��
�

��



��
�

��
�

�

������
;������0��
����	�;�&�����
�%������?0�&%�@��

�� ��������7�,	����
������	���������	����,������7������	������������������1231�C�

������������ ����������������C���	��@�����������#��������"�����4������$	���9�

�� �����������������������������!����� ����������
@�����������������9��������������

���	��� ���������������  ���� !�����@� �����@� "�
���	������@� &)�@� #�	������

�����������@� #�	�������� ��������
����@� �������/�� ������ ����@� ���� ����@� !�	��
@�

�������/���������@���������
����������������2.3F�������9�

�� ����������������������������������	��.�
�����������������������B���������������
�����

���������������������;�
���������������7������B���
���������������������;�
�������

���������
����9�

31



�

	�

�� ���� ������������ ��� ��  ����
����� ����� �� ����� �������@� ������
� ���� ������	����  ���

�� ����������������������������������������������9������������������������,����7������

����7��� �� ������ � � ����	��
� ������ ���� �� ����� �� �	�������� ���
� ���������� ���

����	������������������������������ ������������9�

�� �������������������������	�������� ������������� �����������������	
��������������������

�	������ ���� ��.���������� � � �������/�� ������ ����� ������ �� $� ������ ���� �����������

 ����7�
� ��� '����� ����������� ��� ����� ����������� 7����� ���� ��� ������ ��� ����

��������������  ��� �����	�
� ���������������������/������������@��	��7�����������

�������������� ��9�

�� ��������
���	����������������������������@��������7��
@�������������@��	��������

��	��@� ��B	������ ������	�@� ����������� �������
@� �������
�
� ������	�@� ��� .

�����
@�����
�  ��������@� ��������� ������@�������� ������� ��	��@� ����
� ��������@�

�����������
���@��������
	�
���������9��

0�&%���
�(�

�� 13J��� ����������������

�� ������������������
���������������C�D��

�� *�.���������� ����'����$���C�H3��

�� *�.���������� �����������$���C�>3��

�� �����C�EH��

�� �����
�����������
���	�������������������� �������������

�� �������
�
�������	��C�F1��

�� *���������������C�J>��

�� $�����������.�?E��

�� !��������	���C���	�
��������.�?J��

�� �����������������������C�>H��

�� !�	��
�C�>?��

�� "�
�����C�>1��

�� ����J���������K��	�������  ������

�� !�	��
����������	������C�D2��

�� �������K����.�������K��	�������.�JH��

�� 2.3F��������C�JE��

�� �������/����������C�JE��

�� !������������C�??��

�� 4������7��;�
�7���M�

�� '���������	��.�
�����7��;�
������
������������	������� ��� ������

�� �����������;�
�������������

�� *����������������������7����������������������� ���������
��	���������

�� +������7��;�
����������������7�������K������������

�� '���������� �����������	�����������������������������

32



�

(�

�� 4����������������������M�

�� ����	�������

�� =	������ �������������

�� 4���� ��
�
������  ���� �	�������� 	����.������������ �������� ���	��� ,������

!�����8���	��������������9�

�� '�� ������� ��� ���� ,���� ������� ���
� 	���� ��� �	������ ��.����������� ��� ���
�����

�	�����@� ���� ������� ���� ����� �� ��	��� ��� 7���� ������ ���� ��� ���������@� 	�	����� 	����

�������� ����������� �������� �������������������������������
9��

)�	������	��	��"�
���������
��(�

������ �������7�����	�������������1231� ����7�
���	�� ������������9�������7���������

����� ����������� ���� ���� ����������� ������� ������� ���� ���������	
�� ����������

*��	����9���������7�����������������������������������������������7���7���������	����

���	�����9������������	������ ��������
���������1231�����������
� ������9�

,���/�� 7���� ��	������ �� ����� 1231� ���� ����� ���� �� �
� ����� ������ ��� �	��� �
�����

7��;�
������	������� ��� ���������7�����������
��7�����������	��������������������

������
��(������5����7�

�� #������
������������
�����	���� ���������������������������
��������9�

�� �������
������  ������	���� �,�����������������
������

�� �������
������	����
�����	���� �����%�����������;����������������������9�

�� '������
�����	����������7�������������
������

�����������	
���	�����������

.���� ��� ������������ #������������ ������ ����� ���� ���/������/�� $�������� ����
�  ����/��

�

),$�#����! )!$�������&�

�������������;�� ��
� ���������������	���7�����������	�A����� ����������������������9���

����� ���������� ����� �� ��7��;�
� ����� ����� ���	���������� ����  ����� ������� ��������� ���

	����������7�������B�������� ����������7��������������B������ �������9���������� �����

�����������

�� ���;��������������� ���

�� ����������������7�� �����

�� ����	�����������7���� ������������� �������@� ����������������� �����

"��������� ������ ���� ����� �� ���� �� ���� �	������ � � ��	�
� ������� �	�A���� ��� �� �����

����������������������������������7��� 
	�����	��������������*���� ���#�	�����9�����7�

�������� �����	����
����������������7��� �����	���� ��12329������  
	����������7���;���

 ����������������'��"��������	��

�

�

�

�

�

33



�


��

��
��	���!�	����	�)��������
�
��	��

)�
���;� ���

�����

���A� ���>� ���=� ����� ����� �����

"�
����� 31@J22� 3>@?22� 3J@H22� 3E@122� 3H@E22� 3H@112�

��������

��	���

>@J22� >@?22� ?@?22� ?@E22� ?@J22� ?@DF2�

��B	���

��	���

1@222� 1@222� 1@222� 1@122� 1@>22� 1@112�

#��������

��	���

E@322� E@F22� F@322� 33@?22� 31@322� 31@>>2�

,	������ 1@E22� 1@J22� 1@F22� >@?22� J@222� J@>F2�

!�
��� �A6=��� �=6���� �76���� �=6���� 7�6A��� 7�>B��

�

���������	
�/��������������	������7�������������������������������	������� ����������	�A����

���������������������������������9�

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � ,��.31� <	�.31� ���.31� *��.31� �� ,��.3>�

)��������
�
��	� �>B� ��=� �AA� ��7� �� �A��

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

��� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

-�����3� 3J� 3?� 3H� 1E� �� ?3�

3����?� D?� ?3� ?F� E>� �� F2�

J����F� JD� ?J� J1� D1� �� E1�

32����3J� ??� >E� JH� D2� �� D1�

)����3D� D� 1� 2� 1� �� J�

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

%	��� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

,���� HD� D?� H1� 33E� �� 3?F�

������� FH� E1� F1� 32?� �� 33H�

-�;��7�� 3� >� >� >� �� >�

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

)�
���;������������	���
�8�����
�������)��������
�
��	����	� � � � �

"�
����� HD� E2� H?� 33F� �� 3J1�

�������� 1E� 3� 1E� >3� �� >>�

��B	��� 32� 32� 32� 3D� �� 31�

#�������� D2� JH� JD� JH� �� E>�

���������� 1� 2� 2� 2� �� 2�

�

�

�

34



�



�

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � ,��.31� <	�.31� ���.31� *��.31� �� ,��.3>�

)��������
�
��	� �>B� ��=� �AA� ��7� �� �A��

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

 
�	���
;� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

4����+����� 3?3� HJ� 32E� 3>H� � 3JF�

4����'���� 3� 2� 2� 3� � 3�

4����)����� 3H� 1?� >1� 1E� � >J�

*��
� �C�� ��=� ��=� �CC� � �=B�

,B���4������+���;���������� 3� D� E� H� � F�

,B���4������+���;�� ����� 2� 2� 2� 2� � 3�

,B���4����������� 1� 3� 3� >� � J�

�����������B������;
��	��� 1� E� D� H� � 31�

0�D�� B� �7� �7� �=� � �A�

'����� 1� 1� 1� D� � D�

��;����� D� E� J� 33� � 3J�

+��
������� 2� 2� 2� 2� � 2�

������������������;
��	��� 2� 2� 3� 3� � >�

����	� >� =� >� �>� � �7�

��������� 2� 2� 2� 2� � 2�

� ����� 1� 1� 3� 1� � J�

����������+���;����;
��	��� 3� 3� >� >� � 2�

'���E� �� �� 7� B� � B�

������� 2� 2� >� 2� � 2�

����������������
��	�� 2� 3� 2� 2� � ?�

"����������K����������������� F� >� F� 3D� � 3J�

�

�� '�� ���� �����  ���� ����� 1231� ��� >3� ,����� 123>� ���� �	����� � � �������� 7��� �� �����

���������� ����� ���������  ���� 3HJ� ��,����� 1231� ��� 1E2� ��,����� 123>9� '��)�������

1231������������������������
�����7���>?3�������������
����������������������9��

�� �����������	������������
���������� ������������ �������7������������������������9�

�������������������������  ���	�������� ���������J������@�7����� �
� ����� �������� ��

1231�C�123>�� ��������	�A�������������9�

�� ����	
��	�� ���� ����� �����
������	������� � ��������7����� ������������������������

����� ������4���K+����9�) ������������	������ ���������7����������������������������

>3�,�����123>@�3JF��JH9HI��7��������� ������4����+����9������������� ������������
�

������������7����H���������7������������7���7�����	�A���������������������������9�

��������������7����7���������;��������
���������������123>.3?9�

�� �����
���������
����7������

����������������������������������������
�����7�����

1EI� ������������� ���� ����� 31�������9�4����� ������������� ��������������� ���� �����J�

�����@� ����������������� �
� ����� �������� �� ��������
���@�� ������������	��� �1JI��

35



�


��

����� ���� ����� ����9� � �������� ��	��� �� ���� ������
����� ����
����7��� ��B	��� ��	��� ����

��7���9�

����������	
���	��������0�

��#���� ������������������  ���������������������� �%�������  ��$� �����  ������ �
��%������������1�

�

�������������
�����	������ ����������������
�����
��3����?���������������������	�A����� ���

�������������������9�������������� �������������������
���3����?�����	����� ���>>I�� �����

�	������ ���������7������������������������8�J2I�� ���������7�������������������������

7����������J����F����32����3J��
�����
��7�������������������
�	�����3�������3JI������

�����3D��1I�9�

!����:������������	����:�	��
�����F�
���������������
�
��	����	������6�������
��

������������
��	�?�����	����>@�

�

�

!��	�:���8������:����F�
�
����)�����	��������	���������G�	
�
�:�

>12� �DJ9?�� �������� ������� ���� �	�A���� � � �� ����� ���������� ����9� ���� �� �
���� ������	��

������������
���	���7�����1233K31����
���7���J>9?9�) �����>12���������7���7���������

���� �	�A���� � � �� ����� ���������� ����@� ?E� �3?9DHI�� �������� ���� �����	���� ���� �� �����

��������������������������	
�9�

�

!�� 	�:��� ��� �����	
�	��
��	�� ��� �� )����� ���
�
��	� ?)�@� ���	� ��� ��6���� ��� 
�� ������

������
��	��	����>�

�

���������7�������	�A����� ������+�,	��.�
���������7���123>�

36



�


��

)��������
�
��	����	�����
�	����;�������:���

�

1>1��������/�����������������������7���������������������1231K3>9�) ������@�F���������

����������	�A����������������������������� ���1��������������9��

���������������������� ����� ���������������������� ������
� �����������������B��������

�	�������	
��	����������9����������������� ��	�����������������������������
���������� ���

������ ��������7��� ���� ���� ��� ��� ��� ��;�� � �
� ����� ������������ ������
� ���� �����

7���������������7�������������;��������	��������������������������9�

)�	������	�

�����	������ ������������
�������	�A�����������������������������������������
�������

)���12319������	������ �����������������
��	�A�������������� ����������������	���6	����

����7����
� ��������
����������	��������������
���	��9����� ��	��7��������	���������

���������������������	�������� ���� �
��� ������� � �	�������������������� ���  ������ ��� ����

�
�����������������	�
�������9�

�

���1 #��"! ��),$�#� ��

���� �	����� � � �������� ���;��� � ���� ��� ���� ���� � � ,����� �������� >?F� ���� �
����� �����

�	
	���1231��>J2�9���������������32@222���EF9>@�E91I��������������
����E?92�9�

�

��:�����	�����)�����	����E����
�������6����

3>������������������������	��
�,�����123>@��������������
���� �33����������9� �����31�

�����������
�����������>D9?@�1J9?I��������������
��9�

�

37



�


��

�

������
��������5����7�

#��	����������������	��	���� �����������������������+� ��	�����%��;���� �����������@� ���

���	��� �����
�����
� ��;�� ��� ���� ���������� �������
� ������ ���� '����������� $���7�

���������������7�
���������7����������;���� ����������������	����������	������9�

�

��)�����:	
�&
�����
;(��	�
���������:	
�

�)


�)

��)

��)

��)

��)

��)

��)

	�)

(�)


��)

�
�

��






�
�

�
�





�
�

!
�





$
�

"�






'
�

�
�





�
�


�


�

�
�

��



�

�
�

�
�


�

�
�

!
�


�

$
�

"�



�

'
�

�
�


�

�
�


�


�

)��*�+,��*�����
-�������������#��� ���#��"�*��������������#��� .��!�"
���

���� �	������ ����� ��� D?9FI� �� ��7��� ����� ���� ����� ���� ����� ����� �,��31� .� DF9?I�� ���� ��

��
�������7�����������������	�������9�

����������	
���	����������

��#������������������������#�� ���%�� ���������$���������%��  ����/���������� ����
��������������

�

38



�


��

�

#�0 &!$)��'�& �

��������������

���� ;���  ���
��  ���� �� ���.7��� �	��� ����	����� ��� ���� �� ��� ���������	
��

������������������1231���������������

�� '��������;�����B�������������������� ������������	
������������@�����������	���7���

���� ������������	���;���������	����������������9�

�� �	�������� ������ ���� �� �	����� � � �  ������ �
������ ������
� �� ��������� ��� ��������

��	������	��
����������@�����������	���@�!����������������8������� ������������	
��

����������� *������� ��	��� ������
�� 1231.123J� ���� ���������� ������ ����� 7���

��������������7��;9�

�� '��������@���������������������
����������� �������������������������������7����

�������	���@��	�� ���������������������������	�������������������������������	���

�����������
�������������������7����������������
��������������������	���9��

�� ������������ ���
����� ���� ����� ����� �� ��������
� ���� ������ � � �
�� ��;� ������ � �

����������	��@��	��������������7�����7�������	����;�����������������	  ��������

�����	���� ����� ��	�9� �����������������������������������������	��������������������

���������������������
��������������������������������� ��	�������������	������� �

������9��

&�������
�������:�

�� %����� � ����������� �������� ��������� ��	��� �� ���������  �������	������ ��  ������

��	����9� ��	�������@������������������������������	���������������������	�����������

�
������	��������7����@�
���������	�������6	������� �����������	������������������

������������@�����������������������������������	��9�

�� ��������7��;������������������������������������������
�������	����������'�����������

*������� ��	��� ������@� 4����/�� ��@� �������/�� �������� ���� ���� ��B	��� ����	���

$� ������������@�������	���������������������������������������
 	��7��9��

������#�
���

����
���������7����7�����������������������������������  ����������������������������

���7���������122F�����"��������1233@�7���������������������������������������������

�������������

�

39



�


��

"���
��������0�;������
������������6���������
���	����
�(�

�� ����5����� ����5�����

"	������ �*���������	���'��������  !"#� $%$&�

"	������ �*�������(������������� '%!"� ("%�

"	������ �*(�������������� ##&� %)#�

"	������ �*(�����������
��� #& � #! �

�

"���
��������0�;������
������������6���������
���	����
�(�

�� ������7����F2F�������� ������������	��������������������	
�@��

�� ) �������F2F@�������7����H12�����	���������

�� �E2�������7��������������������������

'� �������� ��� ������� � � �������� ��	��� �� ����� ��������� ��� ���� '����������� *�������

(�����������������'*(��
3
������������4����/�����7������������ ������� �������	������ �

�  ��������	����9��'�������������� ��������'*(�������4����/����������������������������

�������������������7����@������������������������A�����������������������	��
��������

� � �������� ��	��� ��� ���;� ����� ���� ��� �������� ���� 6	����� � � ���� �������� ����� ���������

������@� ���� �������	�����
9� �$� �������  �����������/������������������������/����������

����������������	����������������������� ���������������9���

.��
�:�

������� ���� �������� �����������	��� �����������	
������ ���
���� ��������	�����
���

�	��
� 1232� .� 1231�� ������ ���� 
���������  �����@�4���� +����� ���� 	����� ���� �
�� � � J2@�

��7������������������;�������12.1D��
��
��	�9��4����)����������������	������������.

������������ 7���� ��������� ��� ���� ���	������ ��������@� 7��� ������  ���� %��	���@�

������@�����	
�������%���������� ��6	����������������

4����/����� ���� ���� '*(��� �����  �	��� �������
��	������� � #������� #	�������7�����

�������
� �������@� 7��� �����  ���
� ����� ����� ����� ��� ����	���� ��� �	����  	���9� � ������

������� ��� ��	�� 7��� �������� ��	��� ����� ��� ����������� �� ������ ����	����� ����

����� �����������	����������������������� �� �;���� ���������
� �����	����.��������� � ����

��	�����	��9�

,	��� �
����� $�;� ����������� ��� �������� �,�$���� ���� �����
�� ����� ���;� ��� ���
�

�
��������
������������	�������������
����;�����������	��������������	������	���� ��

��������������������������������9��

	���������%�,&(&��������"���������2�����



�

��








�

�

�

�

�


�

�

�

�

/� ���

0'1�

+�� 2���3������� 

+���

/��#����+���

���&����
�����2���

+���-���"�

42���"���

5�����!

���"� �5�� "�

/���"���

1� ��"�������"��

���"���������

�2� "������ �+���

$"���

�

���������������������������������������� ��������



�0'1���6��7�6�"��"���#��"���!�����7�2�#��"��������������

40



�


��

�� 13D����������	������������,������

�� J3�� �������7�����������������

�� 1>F�����������������	�������

�� �������J2I�� ������� �������7���� ��������������

�� 1JI�� ����������	�����7���� ��������+,#�����	����

�� D������������

���	���

�����������  ��������� ����������7������������
��������������������9�����������
���  ��������


���������������HEI�� ������  ����
����	�����������4����+����9� ������� ����������	����

���;��
��
��	�@�7���������  ������� ����
�������12.?2��
��
��	�9��4����)������  �������

���� 
��������� ����.������������ ��������� ��� ���	������ ��������� �3JI� � � �  ������

���	������@� 7��� ���� ��A����� � � �  ������� ����
�  ���� %��	���@� ������@� ����	
��� ����

%����9� � ����������@� ����� ��;����� �  ������� ���� 	����.������������ ��������� ��� ����

���	��������� ����?I�� ��  ���������	������9��4����)������  ����������������������	�����

J2@���7�����������	���������� �������� ��������	������7�����������������������������9�

%��
����������� �����"�7�#	������������������	���������������
������
��� ����������

��;� ��������	����������������	��@��	���������	��������	��
@���7�7�
�����	���A��������

�
� ����� �������� �	��������������������� ����7������ ���� ���������
�
�����	����

�	����������������������	��9�

����
��	�

���� ��;� ���7���� ���������� ���� �������� ��	��� �� ������ �� ���������	
�9� � ������ ������

7�����������
�����������'���B�� �,	������*��������������������������
��
�� �������� �

����������	������7���������������������������
���������7���������������

�

)�	������	��	��"�
���������
���

������ ������������	
������������������
��
���������������	������;�����������7����

���������	
�9�*���������	�����������
�������� ���� ��;�����B� �� ������� � ��	��
������

����� ��� ���� ���������	
�� �� �
	����
� ����������9� �	�������� ������ ���� �� �	����� � �

$�"���6�"��5�#�"���

+��"�� �

41



�


	�

�  ������ �
������ ������
� �� ��������� ��� �������� ��	��� ���	��
� ���� �����@� ���� ����

��	���@�!����������������9��

������
��(������5����7�

�� #��	����������������	
��*���������	���������
���������������

�� *������������������	����
���������������	���������
����������
�

�� $���7�����������7������������������+�
�����������
��	������	��
����� ��	��������

�����������������������	����9�

�� $���������7����������������
���� ���
������������
�����9�

�� ,����.�$���7��
������� ��������������������7��	������ ��� ������� �����
������������

�������������������'*(�9�

����������	
���	��������0�

��#���� ������������������  ���������������������� �%�������  ��$� �����  ������ �
��$�������������������1�

�

),$�#� ��0$&&$�%�"��0�,�0 ���#�)�� �

������ ���� ������ ��;�� ���7���� ����� ��B	��� #B��������� ���� �������� 7��� 
�� ����
9�

+�������N���������	������������������������� �� � �����������������7��;���7��� ��1232�

 ����7�
� ��B	����B������������������	�������������
�  ���������������������� ��
	����

����9�,���������322@222���	�
��������	����������
��� �3D��	���7��� ��������@�����������

���������� ��� ������� ����� ����9� ���� ���+� 	����������� ����� ������ ���� ������ ���� ������

�	�����������������������	�
�������������;� ����������� ���������������� �����������
�

��#�

�

��:������0����	��$	���	
���;�:�	
��

���� ������ ����7� ���7�� ���� �	����� � � �������� ���� ������ ����� ����� ����� ��������� ���

����
�������������9�

�

��:�������	�����������	�������;�:�	
��

���� ������ ����7� ���7�� ���� �	����� � � ����	���� ��������� ����
� ����� �����9� ���� ��

�	����� �  ������ ��� ���� ������ �����@� ��� ����	���� ���� 
�� ����
� ����� ����� ����� �� ��

�����9�

�

��:�������	���	
��?������	��	����@(� �

�

��:�������	����������?������	��	����@(�

�

42



�


(�

���
�$	���	
��

���� ����7�
�����������7������	������ � ����������� ����	��9������� ������������  �������

���������������� �����������������9�����������������7���������������������������������
�

���7���� ����� 1231� ���� *�������� 1231� ���� ��7� ����� �������� ����� ���� ����� ����� F�

�����������9������� �������������7������������������������������������	���7��������

���7������������������������������������������9�

����)�����	�?�	��)�)@(�� � � )�����	��	�)��(�

� �

)�	������	��	��"�
���������
���

�����	������ �����
������������������������������>2I���������������31����������������

���
�������������� �������������������	�������@��	����	��������������	������������������

�������
�����������������������������������C����������������	�
������<���1231�9�����

��A������ ���������7���7��������
�7����;��7������������������9��

����������7��������	����� ��	���������
�������������� ������������� ��������9��������

	������;���������	����
�����
��	��7������������ ��� ����=	���������#  �������������	��

�������;��������	�����������������  ������	���� ������	����
���������
����������������9�

���� ����� ��B	��� #B��������� ���	�� 7���  ��	�� ��� ���� ���������������  ���� ��������

����������������	�����������7��������	������������������������������������
�� �����
�

������������������9�

43



�

���

!, �'���#��'- )!$. &���#�"��)!$��&�

���������	
�� �� �
	����
� �������� +����N�� �	������ �� ��� ��.�������� ���� ���	��� ����

�  ����������� � �����������
������������������� ����� �
	���������������� ����7�� ����� �

�������9�

�� �
	����
������������
�����7�� ����� ������������� ��������

�� ��������
��������� �����������������

�� ��������
����������� ��������/�������������������������

�� #��	��
������������������
��7�
�	�������	�������������������7���������������� �

�� �������  �����������

�� -������;�
�����������������������������������������������������	��� ��������������

�����������	��������	����� 	���9�

)	��(����������� �
	��������������������������������� ����������	
�9�

������������������	
���  �������� �
	����
�7�����

�� ��������/������������������	��@�������������������7������ ����������@�����������

��������� ���@�����������������@����	�������	�� ���@��������������������������������

�	������������������ �����������������������9�

�� ������� ���������7��������������������7��������������� ������������������������

����������������;��� ���������������	�����	����@���������������	����@����������

����������9�

�� ������� ��������������������������� ������������������7��������������	�������

������������	���������	��������7���������
	��������������/������������9�

���������	
�� �� �
	����
� �������� +����� 	������;��� ��� 7��;� ����
���
� ���� �������

������� �������������7������������6	������ �������	���9�

'������������������������
���������������� ��� �
	����
�7��;@����������	
���� �
	����
�

��������+���������	��
������	��	���� �������	������������
�����������	�	�������������

����������7�������������
��������9��4��;�
���
����������� �
	������������123>������

DK�9E��

&!��)!�� �),��!�

�

���������	
����	
�������

��	�
�����
�

�

��	�
�����
�

������������

����������

�		�����������

������
����������
�

��������������� �������������

���������� !

����������

�����������"��������

#�����$�%����������

��� �����&�

�������'����

�'�����������$�%�����

�������� �����&�

�!��	����$�%�����

�������� ��

���&�

����������	
�������

44



�

�
�

���� ���� �����@� ���� ����������� ������ 
��	�@� ����	�� ����� ����7� �����@� ����� ������

������7������� ����������	�
��	������� ������7�� ������� � �� ������@� ���	���7��;�������

���� �������
� �B���������9� ����7��;� ������� � ����
��	��� ���� ����7��� ��7���� ���� ���+�

�	����������������
������9�

#���� �	�
��	�� �� ������� ��� ��� �
����� �������������� ���� ����� ���� �	��.�
�����

�������������9� ���	��� ���� �	�������� ��� ���� +	������ ,���
��� ���� +	������ �	������

)  ����9�����'����������������� �����+�����������7���
��	��������������.������������9�

����+����������������������������
	����������������� ��������������� �����
��	��9�

0 0' �&,$��

��:� ��	�;�

$	������4���� '����������������

,��;�!��;��� ������������ �����������������
�������������	������������+�(��.�����

�	��4�������� #B��	����*��������������/����������

<����'����� ���������*��������� �
	����
��������������	�����

<���!�	
����� *����������"	���
�����=	����@�������
�������������������	
������

��	�����	��� ���������*��������� �
	����
�������������(	�����������	���@�������
������

�����������	
������

#����4�7�O;�7�O� *��
������*�������� �
	����
��������@�

,;��*����� ������������ ����������)  ���@�������
�������

'������;����� �������,���
��@���������

,�������������� *�������� �"	���
@������������������	
����	���������	���

�����4�;������ *�������� �"	���
@����������	
�������� �����!��������"!����	���������	���

"�;�#�7����� �������,���
��@�"�����

���+����� ���������*�������������
�����������
@���	��������������

'���#������ !����� �&�	���)  ����
��������

����
���+���� ����������������8�$���������
�������������������

�����#������� %���,������

�	��!�������� %���,������

���� ������ ���� �7�� ���� �������� 7��� �������� ���  	��� ������ �������� ���� ���������� ���

������	�
��	��9� ����� ���������������� �������;�� ��;�����7��������%��+���������	����


��	��@��	�����������
����	������
�
��������������������� ������	����������������	����

	����������
�� �����%��+����������������7��;��

���������	
�� ���� ��	���� ���� �7�� ����� �������� 7��� ����� ������� ������������9�

��	������� ������ �����@� �������������������/�� �������� ������	������� <����!������)+#@�

������������#�	�����@��;��������-�������9�����������������������������������9�#�����

%�7�� ����%�
�����������������������	
��������	����������%�
�����������������+����9�

�!! �#��) ��!�'���#�0  !$�%&�

���� ���+� ����� D� ��
	���� �����
�� �	��
� ���� ����8� ��
	���� ���� ���������� ����������� ���

�������������;�����  ������9���������� ���������������� ���1231.3>���
���@����������������

����79� ���� ������ ����� ���� ���7� ����������� ��� ����*�����������*���7����7��� ����� ���

�	�
��	�� �������� ����� ���@� ���� �B����������� �����
� 7���� 7��� ����� ��� ���	��� ����

������������ ������.�������������������������� �������7�'���������������9�

45



�

���

�




�

�

�

�

�

+
�
$

�
�
��

�
 �
,

�
�
��
�
%
�

�2� "�
�����

 �+
���

+
�

�+
��

�

+
�#

��2
!������

�+
���"�

� �
��

+
�� 2

��
�3���

��&
��

��

+
/

�.

'
���!

��"�
2�'

��"�
�

0�
2����2��"�+

����

,����
�#

��

,��2��
�#

��

%
5�

�+
�#

��2
!������

%
�/

+
+

/
�"�

�
���

�!��8
��

"�
#

*�
�2

�5
����"�

 �

/��#
���

��
���� 

/��
�"��

��.
��

�"

/
�+

9
�9

����
�����

��"

/
�"�

�
���

�!��:
�!��

�� �+
�  �

!�

�
����2���

��
���� 

;��"�
�$

**�
�2��

!��
��&

��
�

&%�����&����������&������������,���������

9���2���#�� '���"�

�

	
���	����������

��#����������/����������$�#��%�����%�� ����������$�����% �������������������
�� �%������%�����������������1�

'�#% !������5����

�����	�
��� ����������+��������	��� �������	����� �������������
�����9�

	��������������������

<�(=((�>���)

<��=(
(>��
)

<��=	
�>��	)

<(=���>��)

<���>��)

<��=���>���)

/�"������!��+�"�

+����� ?

/�"������!��+�"�

+����� �@�#���"�2����"

"���4:+$�*�����9�$�A?

%5�?

/� ���?

/���"���?

+��+���?

�

�

�

�

46



�

���

���������������

<	=���=��)
<
�=���=��)

<
��=���=���)

<�=���=��)

<��=

�=���)

�"�**�+��"��@���B�������"�A

0�2����2��"�+������!�C�,�+9

+���� "��"��@$&��&��6���"���A

.������!�@.��������=&������8

��*����#��"�A

$"�������� ������2����&����

@��� �2�����9��������������"

$**��������2����"�������!=

�"�"��������"�A

��������+���������������������������� �PH2@222�����������
����� �������	�����������������

����7�������������6	���9�

$�����	�����7������������������� ���� �����������

'������������������ ��������������������������� �������������
�����������������7��������

� ��� �
	����
9�)���� �����7������7���������������������������7�������������������������

��������������	�
�������@���� ���������������������K�������9����������������������	���� �

����7����������������������79�

�

��������������������������������7����A���������������� 	�������������������7��������� �

������ �
	����
��������	�����8.�

�� ���  �����
������������

�� �� �
	����
��	

�������������

�� �������
���
�������������  � ��	��9�

47



�

���

���%� &&��%�$�&!�!, ���$��$!$ &���!�$� #�$��!, ������/������'�&$� &&�������

����+	����������� ���1231�C�123>�7����	�������������������B�����������	����������1233�C�12319�'��7����������������	���J�

��������7�������	���� ����������7��;�� ������	�.���������9�

� ��F�
��� ����� ��
��	��� ��
��:�

���+�=	���������

#  �������������	��

������� �������������7��;K,�������

�	��������

�	�����������������������

��������9�����=	���������

#  ����������	������

����	�����������

'� �����������	��

#��	��������� ��������@���	�
��������

��������� ������������������� �����

��������

�����
��	������������ 	������7��;�

��123>K3?�����(����� ���������

����&����������9�

������
��%�����
�����

*��������������	��

#��	�����
�
������7���������������

���� �������	����������
�� ��	������

��������

�����%*��	������

39� �  :���
��:�	�
���	������3����
;��	��

 ���
��	����

%�;�������������/����������'������������

%�;���������������������7�� �����+�����

%�;������) ���������	����������	���<����

%�;�������B���
�4��;�
���
������1232�

������
��%�����
�����

*��������������	��

,����������������� ������	�	��

������
��

�����%*��	������

���+�=	���������

#  �������������	��

$��������
	�����������������������

������� �	���������������
�����

��������

����	���������#�����'�����������

��������������

������
��%�����
�����

*��������������	��

#��	��������
������������������ �

�������������������
����;�

�����%*��	���������������
�

�����	���

19� 0�	�
���
�����
��	����	�����������

:�	;�������;�������������	�����	�����;�

;������������	�

%�;������,	����$���7�

%�;�������������/����������'�����������

������

%�;������) �����#���	����������	���<���

1231�

���+� ,����������������� ��	����������	����

��������������������������� ���������

�	�A����� ������	�	��������

�������
�

4
8



�

���

� ��F�
��� ����� ��
��	��� ��
��:�

#������������4��;�
���
����������

����������������7��;�

4��;�
���
������123>��  ������

 ����3JK?K3>9�"�������������
���

���������	�������
�	������;��9�

������������������

������	�������	��

#�����������;�������������	�����

��������������������
	������������

������ ��������B	����B���������

����
��	������7�������������

�	�
��	�9�������#�	�����9�

�� ���#����������

���	��

$���7���
������!$�������� "���	��������;��

=	���������

#  �������������	��

,������ �����������������	����������

�������

���������������7���������������.

��	������������+�

������
��%�����
�����

*��������������	��

*������������
�7��������������������

� ����  �7��;�
�7����������B	���

�B���������

�����%*��	������

>�  	�����&)'�$	
����	�;�����������	��

����
��������	�����������6����8�6�

�:��:	
���	�������:����	
�8�
��

G����
���������
��	�

%�;�������������/����������'�����������

������

%�;�������B���
�4��;�
���
������1232�

#��� �������	�� ������������������������� ����7��;� ����#��� ����-������

$���7������������ ����+�����


���������������
�������������7���

�����������7�

$���7�������	������;���123>K3?�

#����������Q��;�����BR� ������������
�����������������

�������9�

?� #��	�������
����������� ��������+��� ������

�����������������������+����������

��������������� ����7��;� ����������������

�����

%�;���������������������7�� ��������+�

���������������

%�;�����������������/����������

'�����������������

%�;����������) ���������	����������	���

1231�

���+�+���������������

���	��

$���7�����,�������	��� �

-����������
�7��������������

�������/����	��������
�������

�������7��������!4+�

4
9



�

���

0��$!��$�%�!, � "" )!$. � &&��"���)���*��1�!��&�" %���#�2����0�! �

!, �* �"�� ��"�),$�#� ��

�&)'���#�!, �)��� )!$���*$!,��!, ��%����&<��

���� ���� ������ ��� ��� �  ������ �� ���� ���������
� ���� ���	��
� ���� �  ���������� � �

�� �
	����
� �����
������� �� �� ��������� ����� �� ���� �����
� ��;�� 7��� ������ 
��	��� ����

�������7������������������������9��������������������������������
������� �����������
�

� ����������������������������������������	
�9�

�

 ���4�$�! �. �!$�����#��� . �!$���

4��;�
���
������123>�����
�������������� ��������
���������7��;���
������������� ������

�����������������������������	�
���������������������������������������	���9�����������

��������	�������������������������������������������������������
����������������	���

������	���������� �
	����
���������� ��� ������ �����������9�

�����������������������<�������������
�+��������<�+�����
����
��������7������
��

� �������������	������;��������������� �����@�����	����@�������
�������������������������

���������
� �������� ���� �	������@� �����
� ����  ����7��;�  ��� A���� 7��;�
�

�����
������9� ���� 7��;� ���� ����� ����	���� �� ���� *����� +���������	�� ���� ,�������	��

-�����������,�����	�	���9�

�

�
5�� "����2�
D�  ���!�

9���2�

�
�"��"�!���

��//�9���2�

�
��*�!���2��!�
�2� "��9���2�

�
'�#��"���

�����
E�&��������

9���2�

�
��*���

/�"������!��
/��"��������

�
+�� 2���F��

+�##��������!�
E�����

�
/�"������!��
��*�!���2��!�

+�� 2����
9���2�

50



�

���

����7��;�� �������<�+����������������
��	���������������������	�����������7��;���
������

������	��������	������������������ ��

�� �����
������������

�� ��������
����������@���	�
������������ �������

�� '�������
���������

�� ��������
�������

�� ���������
�������9�

���� ������
�� ���	���� �� 7��� ���
�
@� �����.�	���
� ���� � � ���� ���� ��A������9� ������ ����

���
���;��� ��7����������������	������ ���������
��	��9�

������ �����7��;��������	�������������
�,	����
������	���������	����,����@������������

�����	�������������������������������
�����������A����7�������;����������������������

���� ������� �������� ��� �
�� �����  ������ ��� ���� �
�����9� #���� ������	��
� �
����� ����

�������� ���� �������� � � �� G���������/� 7��� ����� ��
������ ��� �� ���	��� ����� ���� 7�����

�����������������������������������
������������������9�

�������+�'�����������������������������<�+��������������	����������� ������
���������

���������������������������������������������������������
��7����������������������

�����9�

)�"�

���������	
�� ���� ��	���� ���� ��������� ��� ����� ��7����� ��� ���������� ������� � � ����

������9���� �����  ��	��
��	��7��;������������������� ��� ���;���� ��������	��@� ���;�
� ����

��7�� � � �� ���
��� � ��������� �� ��� �����������9� (���� ����  	������ ���	������ ���� �	�� ���

��;��������7����������������	��������7���������������	��
���������9�

�	������� ��B����������� ����

�� �����,���
������ ���� ������� ;����
�  �������  ��� ��������7������ ���� ������� ������

����� ����������@� �	������� ����� �	������ ���� ��������8� ���	��
�  ����@� �����������@�

�����@������������7��; ��79�

�� ����� .� �������
� ���� ����
������ � � ���� 7����� ������� ����������� �����7��;�

�������9�

�� $� ��������������	��� ������������.����������������������������� �����������������������

��������������@����������������������������������� ������� ��������������9�

�� ����� ���	��� ���� ����� .� ���� ������ ��� ���� 	�� ���� ����� ���	��� ���� ����� ���  ����� ���

���������������������������

�� "��������������������	������ �����	�����������
� 	�����
�
������ ������������9�

�

),$�#�# �!,��. �.$ *���� ��

�������������	
������������
�����������*�����)�����7���������*)���7��������������

�������122H��������7�����	�������6	���������������	������������E�� �G4��;�
���
���������

�� �
	���� �������/� 12329� '��� ������������� ������ ���
���� 	�����
��� �� ���� ���������

�	�������G4��;�
���
�����/�123>9�

'������������������������
������%��+�'���������������9�'���������� 	���������������7�

��������������������������@�7���������������	
���7�����������������������8���������������

����7�� ������������� ���������	����������
��� �3H����������������������������������7����

���;����
���������������������������� ���������7������	��B��������9�

51



�

�	�

)���� ���� ����� ����@� �7�����  ��� �������� ����� ���� �� ���������	
�@�7���� �� ������������

�������������������	�� �7�������@�7����12������������� ������������9�) � ��������������

7������@������D2I�7����������	����������������7���������A��������������
�������������

���
� �� ����  ����  �7������ ����7��;��� � � �9� ������������ �� ������ ��������	�� ������ ����

��������������	������������9�

"������� ������������7������������������������������7�����������*)�������@�7��������

����� ����7��� ���� �������� � �7����� ���� ���������	
�� �������� ������� �7����7��� �����

�������������	�������9������� ��� ������
���� �������������������7���������������������

���������
�����7��@�7������������������� ����������
�������9�

) ������������7����7��������7��@�������������� ��������7�����������������������������

7���������A��������
�������	���������������9�������B�� ���
����
��	��7������������
���

������� �	������������7��� �	�������������
� ������	������ ��  �����������������	��
���

�����7���7����	����������������	�A����� �������	�����������79�

'�� �� �����	������� � ���� �����������������7������� ��� ���� �� ���� G��� ����/�  �������  ���

����������@�������@����� ������7���@�7�������
��@��
���������������������������������

�
����������� 	�	���������9�������7���� ���������7���������� ����� ������7������� ��@�

���� � �7����7�����  ������ ���� ���	�������7��
@� �	�������� ���	��9������6	������ �� ��

�����������������;��
�����������������9��

!�7����@���
����� 
	�����	

�������������������������������� ������������7���������������

������
� ����������������������
� ���������� ����������������	�����	��B�������������

�� � ����9� � )���� ���� ����� ����@� ���� �*)�� ���� ����������� �� ���;� ����  ���� 
��	�� 7�����

�	������ 7��� ��� ���� �� 7���� ��� ���	��� ����� �� ������ ���� ���������� �����
�� �� ���
�

�������������� ��������
�����������������	
������������
�����9�

�

!, �& �$��&�)�& �� .$ *���� ��

������$�����������7��������7�������������������������������������	����
�����������
����

��� �������9� �� ����	�� ����� ����7��	��� ��� 	������;��� 7���� �� ����� ���� ��� �� ����	����

�������������
�������;��7������	�������9�

G4��;�
���
������123/>�7������������  ���������3J
��
������123>���������
��������������

��� 7���� ������ ����7�� ���� ��� ����	����� ���� ���� ������ ��
��������� ��� ��;�� �� �����

�������������
��������������������� ��������	��9�

���+�����������
�������7����������7����7������������ ��	���������������� ������	�������

$���7� ������� �	�� ����� ������ ������7����� ������ �� ������
� ������	���� ���� �B�������� �


�����������9�

52



�

�(�

��������7� ���
���������������;����������  ������������
����������������� ����7��;9�

�������+� ����	
������ � � ��� �	�
��	�������������������	���� ����� ���� ������
� ���� ��� ��

����	��������������7��; ����9�

&�::��;���������

'��,���1231��������+��	������������������� ��������7�������J��������������7���;�����������

����� ������7���7����	���6	���������������� ������	����9�

����������
� ����������������	��������
������7��������� ����������
�������������	���

�����  ������������������ ���������������7�����������������������9�

,����� �������������������7����������������������+�7������

������$������������������������������$���7����������������������������������������� �

����$9�����������������������	����
���������
������� �����B��  �����9�

��������7������	���������������7������������ ������ ������������	��
�
��������7��������

� �������������������;��� �����
�
��  ������9�

����
��	��������������������������	���������������������������������
����� ������
�����

���� �������� ��������� ���� �  �������� ����	������� ��� ����7��; ����9� ���� ���+� ��������

�������������
���$���� �
������	������9�������������������������������������
� ����

����7��������	���������������������������	������� ����������9�

!, �3���$!4���#� "" )!$. � &&�%������

���� =	����� ���� #  ���������� ���	�� �� �����������  ��� �������
� ���� �  ���������� � �

�� �
	����
������������������
����
�������������������������9��

��	���	����
������	��������������	������;������������������;��������6	������ ��������9���

&
��
�;�#��������	�����
�

����������
�����	������	�����������������������+���,���1231� ���� ����7���
� �����

������ ���������������

����� �������C������������������������
��� ������
�9�

����� �������������6	������ ����������7��;���6	��������������9��

�� �����7�
������������������������+�������7����
�������$�.�	���� �������
�����	������

7�	��� ��;�� ������ �� <	��� 12319� ����� ���� �	��� �� 7��� ������ ����� �	���������

�������������������������9�

������B���	���� �������
��*��	������7�����;����������<	���123>@�7�����������������7������

����7�����������������	��� 	���������
������������������9�

)���%���������
�

�� ���+� �	��� �
����� ����� 
��	�� �	��� 7��� ������� �	�� �� �	
	��� 12319� ���� �	������ � �

	������;�
� ���� �	��� 7��� ��� ������� �� Q����� ����R� � � ������� ����� 
��	�� �������� �������

�
�����9� � �� ������ � � 3D� ����� ������ 7���� ��������� ��������8� ����� ���	���� �������� ����

��	�
��������� ������
��� ��
��@�
�������������������;
��	��9������������� �����������7����

����
���������������� �����������K��	�
�������@��

���::	��
��	�(�

�� ���� ������ ��������������
�� ������
��	����	�������	������������������7��������

�������/�������������'�������������������������
	������7�����9�

�� 4����� �
������ ��� ���� ������� ����� 
��	��� ����� ���	��� ������� ��7������ ������� ����

���������	���������������������������
��	����	���9�

53



�

���

�� ������7����������� ���������	��������7�������������������
�
��������������
��	��

�������@� ������@���������������������������7���� ��6	������������9��

!������������
�

��� �	��� ��� ���� �� ��7� 7���� ���� ������������ ����������� ���� ���
� ������� 7���� ����

�������� ������� ���� ��7� 7���� �������� �
������ 	���������� ���� ���� ���������� 7���

	������;��� �� "��� 12319� '�� 
������� ����������� 7���� ���
� ������� ������������� ����

�
������ 7���� ��������
� ���� �������� ������� 7���� ������ 7���� ����	�� ��������9� ����

���������������7�������������������
�7����������������������
� ������;���������
�����

�������	���������������������������������9�������7���
�����������
����	����������
�� �

������������������%����������������������	

������������������*��	�����7������
�	����

7�����
����	����������
�� ��  �������������� ����������
����
�����9��

&�
��	��������
�

����	������
���������������������33��	��� ���6	�������� � ����������������122?��7����

����������	������;�������������������������;�������
�������������	�������� 	�����������

������
���7�����
��������������������� �
	��������������������7�� ����� ��������9�����

���������7���������7��������������� �����	����9������������+�����	�����������������	�����

���������������������������79��

������������6	���������������7���������������33�����	������	������	����7����������
���9��

,���� ��
��������� �������� �� ������� ��� ���� �������� ����� ����� �� �����@� ���� ��
� 7����

������ ��� ��� ���������� ��� ���	��� �������� ���� �����  ������ ���� �� �
	�����9� � ������7���

������������� �� �������������������� � � � ���������������9� ������7����31� ���	���� ��

�����9�3931I�� ��������������7�����������@�3?9HHI�7��������������@�H19DI�7���� 	�������@�

39?I�7����	����7����9��

����=	����� ���� #  �������������	��7��� ����7� ���� ���	����7����� ���� ����������7�������

 	�������B��������@����	��
���

�� &
�	�����B<�&
����
���	�	���	����������	���	�����:�
�	��
��8��������������	���������

�
����8��E�	��8�
������	���	
��
�8�
��������	��	����:����<�

�������������������7����������������������+������������123>�7�����
��������������
�����

����������������9�

)�	������	��	��"�
���������
���

�������	����7��������7�����
���������9��

������
���

�� ������������ ���������
���������������������7������ ����7���	�������6	�������������

�� =#���������7��������� �������� ��� 	�����������
�������������������
������
�����

������������

������
�� %�����
� ���� *����������� ���	�� ��� ����7� ��������� J8� ���  � �����
� ���

�� �
	����
������������
�����7�� ����� ��������� ����������  �7��;�
�7������ ����������

7��������������� ������

54



�

�
�

�

��$.�! �"�&! �$�%� �

������� ������
�����
������� ���������������
��������������	���7�����������7�����	�����

3D� ���� 3H�  ��� �� �����7��� ������
� �  �	����� ���K��� ���������� �� ������  ��� ��� ��������

������������������������������������������ ���1H�������	����������������9���������� ������

��������������� ������ ����� ����������������/�� ����/���������9�!�7����@���������� ������

�������������������������7��������������	����;��7��������� ����@��	��7�����7���
����

 �����������������������9��

����������������3FHF���6	����������������������� ����������������
�������%������	�������

�������� ������ � � �� �������  ������
� �����
�����9� '�� ����� ������� ���� �� �	���� ��� ������

�	�������� 7��� �������������  ��� �������/�� �������9� ���� ��
������� ����� 7���� 7���

������������������������
������ �������	��������������
��
�%������	��������������� ��

���	��
�������������������� �
	�����9��

����+����� ����� ����������������
� �� �����������������7�� � �����	������� � ���������
�

��� �������������������������������
�������7���7��������
	�����9�

������7��	������� ���� �����������	������������������������� �����������+���;������������

� ����	��
������������������������7����� �7������������������
���������������������������

��� ������%������	�������7�����������������7����� ����������� ������
�����9�

2

1

?

D

H

32

31

3?

"��   ������� ���7���

�������

#B���
������
������ ����������	��
�����

 ���

�����
�"��
��	������	�:	
�

1233.1231 1231.123>

�

2

3

1

>

?

J

D

E

$��������)����� 3D���+������ %�������������� $��	�������������K

������$������

����	�����������
�"��
��	������	�:	
��	�������	��;��(

1233.31 1231.3>

�

,����� ����������������� �������������������������������	
����	������	����7������

�����KK7779���������	
�9
��9	;K�� K�������������.���������� ������
.

������ ������
.����������������9�� ��

55



�

���

��� %�!$��&�0���% 0 �!�

4��;�
� ��
������ 122D� �����	���� ���� �������� � � ���� %����� �	�������*��
������)  ����

�%�*)��7������������������������������������
���� ���������
�������
���������� ��������

7��;�
�7����������� ������
���
�������@���	���6	������	����������4��;�
���
������

1232�9� ���� %�*)��	��� ����� ������� ������ ��� ���������@� �����7��� ���� ������ ���� ������

�
�����@���������������
������ ������@���������������������������������������������9� �����

%��+� ���� �� ������������ 7���� ���� 
	������  ��� ���	��
� ����� ������ ���� �  ������ ����.

�
����� ������	���� �� ������  ��� �����
� 7��� ����
������ �
����� ������� 7��� 7��;� 7���

�������@����� ����������
���������	���
������  ����������� �������������	���9�������7�

�������� �7��;�
���
������123>�������������������������������9�

)���� ��� ����
����� �� �������� �� 7��� ��� ��������� ��� ���� 7���� ������ �� ��6	���� ����  �

7�����������7������
����������������B�������
��,����
9����,��

*	��
� ����������� � ���� �������B>� ���������7�������	�����7��� ����%�*)�7�����������

������������������� �������,�����������������������������������������
��� ���
���������

���	��
�����������@������������������
�@���	�����������
�@����	���������������@� ������

������@� ��	��� 7��;� �����
�� ���� ���� ������ 7���� �	

����� ����� ������ �� ��� �������
�

�7��������� ��������������������������� �����%�*)9�

�C��� �����������������������������%�*)�7�������	���������,�����
�����@����������������

�A��� ��������������������
�D�������9�

�����
������	������ ��� ������������ ����������
��	������������������������������������

7�����������������	�
�������8���� ����7���

+�$����� ��� �������$�������3&45

�


�

�

�




�







�
:���2��"�� ������6��7����@��"

*��#���#�����"A
.������!��"�**�@(�.����������2��

.������!�������"��"�A
D��7���������"����""��!

���"���������

����"�������

.�G��2��&���

����� �6��7��

1� ��"�������5�� "�����&���

+�� 2#��2����������������"�**

�

.����0�����%����������#���������������%���6


	


�

�



/������ �����

��G�� �����

4#�"���� �����

%�! ��"

�

56



�

���

5 ������������%�������� �������������6

�

�






�

:���2��"�� ���""��!��@��� �2���6 ��7

�G���������� ���#��"����2�������

����2��"�� ���""��!�A
����� ���""��!�

1� ��"������!�����"���

����"��� �

.�G��2��&���

�

5 �����"�����%�������� ��$�������������6




�







���"���������B

����� ���""��!�B

+�� 2���F������� �����B

:���2��"�� ���""��!

�

�

!�������
��	����	���
������������ �������������

����������	
����


����
������
��
����������
��������
�
��
�����
�������
���������
�������
������


��
  !
 "
 #��


$ 


�%�
$ 
"
	�%


$ 


��
 $ 
 "
 #��


$$


�%�
 $$
 "
 	�%


$$


��
 $$
 "
 #��


$&


�%�
$&
"
#��
$'


&(
 $!
 &$
 $$
 $)
 '(


�

������
��
���������
��
������*
 


������*
 
 





��
 $ 
 "


#��
$$


�%�
 "


#��
$&


�%�
 "


#��
$'


	�����
+���*
 &
 ,
 $


-����*
 $
 $
 $


��������*
 (
 .
 $'


/����
+�����*
 $
 0
 0


+����1����*
 
 
 


2�����*
 
 
 


3��*
 
 
 


2�������*
 
 
 


+�/+�		*
 
 
 


	�����
����*
 0
 $
 $


�	2++*
 
 
 


4�������
3���
������������*
 
 
 $


/���
����%�*
 0
 &
 &


�����
/�����*
 
 
 


����������5������
	�%%��
	��6����*
 
 
 


����
 '
 )
 $'


57



�

���

�

)�5��#$��!$�%���)���*��1�!��&�" %���#���#����0�! �!, �* �"�� ��"�

),$�#� ��

��� ������ ������� ���� �	�
��	��� �������	�� ����7��;� � � ����

�	�����������7���������������������������/�
��	��7���

�� �	��� ������� ��� ����+����� ��� ���
����9� ����7��;�� � ����

=	����� ���� #  ���������� ���	�@� ����� *����� )�����7�

������ ���� ����	�� ����� $���7� ���	�� ���� �������� �����

�
��
����9������������7��� ��	���������7��;�� �����������

�	�
��	��9�

&!��! %$)�� ���$�%���#�# . ���0 �!�%�����?&�#%@��

4��;�
���
����������� �
	������������123>���������

./	���� ��
���������� 0�������� 1	����� ��	���� ��������� �� �	���� ��������� ���� ���	�������


�����	��������� �������������	��� �	����	���������	�����	��	���������������������
����������

����
�����	�����	�����������	���������	����	������������	������������	��������������	�������


�	���2���������������	������������������������3�

'����������������1231����,�����123>������%*����������������������������
������� ��	��.

�
����������
����������������������� ���������
���������������	������������������������

��� ����������������������7��;�7�������������������� �����9�����������
�������������

������7����������������������������������	����������
� ��������	�����������7�9�

����������
������� �3?���	�����7����  ������������������ ��1H��������9� � '��������� ���

������ ��	����� ������� �����������7��;������7���� �����	���� ���� �	��  ��� ��� ��	�� �����

�	�������������������9��������7��;�����������������	������ ��	�A����������������������

����� ���	���9� � 4�� ����� ���������� 1� ��	����� �� ��������� ��� �� ����	�� ����� ����7� 7����

���	��������������	���7��;������ ��� ������������
��������������
�������
�7��;������

 �������
����7��������������
�������
�9�

�����������/��4��; �����*�������������	������4*����������� 	���
�� �P3E@222�7����

7���	���� ����B������	�����������7����������������������������,	����$�����9�

�����
���	�����7�����

�� ������������C�7������7��
�������7���
M�����7���������������$��������������

����������� �����������������7���7����������������������
��������8�

�� ���+� ���	��� ��� ������� C� ����� ��B	��� #B��������� ��������� ��� 31H�

�����������8�

�� #��7������ �������� ���	�� C� 7��;�
� 7��� ���������  ������ ��������� ��� ??�

������������

�� �	��	���������������C�1���� ����������������	���
������� �������������

�� $�;.��;�
� ������	�� �� ������������ C� 1� ��� � ���� �������� ��	���
� �� ����

 ������������9�

*	��
�����������������	�� ��������
�7������������"�����������!�	�������7��7���������

����������������	������ ����������������������	����� ����3J����12�������	���9�)���� �����

����� ������
� ������������ � � ���� �%*�� 7��� ����� ���� �	����� � � ������� �������
� �	��

��	���������� ����>2E�����������������������	����������E?F���������9�

�7����7� ��	�����7���� ���������� �������������7��� ������
������ %��+� ���	��
� G����

'������ ��� �������� � � ����	�� ����� $���7�� ���� ���� ����� *����� )�����7� �������/� ����

G'��	����� ���"�7�+�����,������/9�

58



�

���

���� ���������
�������� ����������7��� ������>������
� ���������������������������������

7���������������DH����9������������������������	������������� �����������
�������������

������
�����9�

�� ��7� �����
� ����� ����� 7��� ���������� 7���� ���� �
� ������� �������� �	�� ������ ���

������� ��� �����
� ���	��
� �	������ ���� �
������ �������
9� � '�� ���� ����� �������� 	�� ���

� ������
���������� � �����	������ � ����� ���  � �������
��	�� ��	��������� ����������� ���

������	�� ������ �����	�����7������������7�����������������9�

�������������������������������B������������������������������������ �32���	����� ���H�

��
��������� ���	��
�1� ����������� ��������7������������������7������������	
������

��	���9�'�������������������������������������3������
��	��������7����	�����������1�����>9�

����������
����������������������������������>>I�� ����������������������������7���

 �����������
�����9�

�������
�����������������������������������������3������
������������B�����������7������

�	��������������������
�����*�����������,���
��9�

#���	����� � � ���� ��	����� �����	��� ��� ��� ����� ������� �	��  ��� ���� ����
� ����� ���� �����

���
��������������� ����
��� ��� �� ����� �	������ �����
�������7������������ ��	����� ���

������>�������������������� �6	�� ��������������9�

�����%*�����	�������������������������	��7������7779���������	
�����9��
9	;��

),$�#�& +���� +���$!�!$���

*	��
� 1233� �� A���� ���;� ����  ���� 
��	�� 7���

 ������7�������������
������%��+��������������

����� �7�������� ��� ���� ��	��� ���������� ��� �����

��B	���#B��������9�

*	��
�������	����� �1231@��	����������
����� ���

� � ���� ����� � � 7��;� ���� 
��	�� 7���  ������ ��� ��

�����������	�
��	��� ����+9�

����
��	�������������������� �������������
��������7� �������
��������9����������	
��

������������	����
�����
��	�@�����,���
� ����!�������������
��	�@�7�������	���������

�������������������������������������
�������������������;�� ��������B	���#B���������

����������9�

������#�
��	�������������������	����
�����������
����;�
� ��������	��� ����������������

������������*����������  ��� #�	������ �������������� � � ��� �������)  ����@� ���	��	����

	��������������
��� ��.�

�� '���� ������

�� #�
�
������

�� $���������

�� ���������K���	�����

�� ������	����

���� ������ 7��;�7��� ��� ��������� ���� ��� ���� ������ � � 	����������
� � � ���� ��	��� ����

�
���� ���#9�����7���  	���������������7���7��;�����������������	������ ������@��������

�����	�A����� ���#9�

����
��	����������������� ������������������������K�������������� ������������ ���� ��

�������
���� ��B�������������� �������� �����������������	�
��������������� ����;����

�������������;�����������7�������6	���9�

59



�

���

����;�������������������������7���� ��������
�����7��������������������	��������������

7�����������	����������
����7�����
�������������������������������9�

���� 7��;� �� ���� ��������� ����� �����	��� 7��� �������� ������� �� ���� ���������	
��

��������������������������	����������
������7��������� ����� ����� ��B��������9�

�

 �&�" !4�

���� �� �� 
��	�� ������� 7��� ���� ������
������ �� �
	����
�

��������+����9���������������	����������� ��	�� �������+����9�

'�� ����	���� ���� +����� �	������� ��	�
� ������� ���� �����

���� �������'��������������
������ ������
�����������������

����� �
	����
9�

���� 
��	�� ���� �� 7��;����� 7���� �� ���	��	���� 	�����  ���

�������9�

�� ��� �	������ �
������ �� ���� �� ��� 	��� � � '� ��������

����	���������������
��

�� *�������������	���� ��������
�7������� ������������

7������������� ��������9�

�� �������������7������������	����������
�� �#.�� ������	��9�

�� *��������������������7�����
������������� ��	��9�

�� ����	��������������������	�
�������/�����������������������
�� �������� ���

�������@������������������9�

����7��;�� �����
��	����������������������������	��������������������� ��������+�7������

��� ������� 
	������ ��� #� �� ���� ��� ��� ��������@� �������K������� ���� �������� ���� ��	�
�

������9�

���� 
��	�� ���������� ��� �	���
� ����� 7���� ��
��������� ���� 	��� ��� 	���������� 7�����

��������������
��������������������@������
�����������9�

��������� ����������������������7779���������	
�����9��
9	;��

, ��!,�&�" %���#$�%�%�����

��������A����
��	��7���������
�������������
����
������������������������ ������������

������@�������������������������������������	
�9��

����
��	���������������������������������������������������������� �������������������

������� ���������
����	��9� '�� �� ����	
�� ���� 
��	�� ����� ���� ���+�7��� ���;� ���	������

����������������	��������������
��� ��	������� �
	����
���������7�� ����� ��������9�

����
��	����������������������� �$� �����������7����������  ��	��  �����������
��������

������� ���� ������� �������9� ���� 
��	�� 7��;�� ��� ������� �	������� ���� 7��� ���� ��� ����

����	����������7����������������������7�������������������
������������������ ����

����7�9�

!, �.�$) ��"�),$�#� �6�4���%�� ��� ���#�"�0$�$ &�

����+���������������������������������7����� ���������������
�
��7�����������������	�
�

����������������
 	��7������	����������������������������7��������������9�

4��;����������	������;��������������������7��������	����������������������7������������

�������	������������� �������9�

60



�

���

���������	
������������������������������7����	�������	�������@�������������
��� ��

�����������������*���������	��9�

���������7�����������������������������������������������������7������� �������	���

��������	���������������9�

����������	����������������7��� ����� 	�����������������������	����7������������+���	
���

������7��� ������D2���	�
�����������7�������������� ������ �K	��� �������������	
�9�

����� ��7�� ����� ����� 	���� ��� � ���� ���� ������ 7����� ���  ��	�� ������� ���� ��� ����� ���

� ���������	���������������	������������������9�

������B�����
���� � ����+��������������7��������������������	��	�������������������������

���������	��������
�
��7�����	�
�������9�����7��������������������������� �����������9�

����������7������;�������������������	�������	���������������������������������@� ��	��
�

�����������������������������������
���	�
�������9�

'�&$� &&���$��$!$ &���#�'���#�# . ���0 �!�������7�

����+���������
����������������������������������������������������	������� ����������9�

��� ��������	������	�����
�
��������������+�������	
��� ������7��� ���������������	�
�

������� ��� ���7���� ����� ���������� ��������� ��� ����� �����;�� �����  ���� �� �� ���� 7����

�������������������9�

����+��������������	�����7������������������7�����������������7���� ������������	
�����

���	�������������������������� �
	���������������7�� ������������9�

����+�������������������������	��������	������;������������������#�����'���������������

���������� ������
�� ���� ������� ���	���
�  ���� ���� ������� ��������� � � �� �
	����
�

�����
������9�

���� ������ ���� ��7� �� ���� ���� ��������  ��� ������� �� 123>K3?� ���� ������ ���� ���	��	����

	�����������.�

39� 4��;��7�������������������������������������	���������  ����������	��S9�

19� �4��;��7�������������������;�� ��
� �����������������
��  ������������ �������

��������������	��S9�

>9� �4�� ;��7� ����� ��������� �� ��;�
� �� �
� ����� ���� �����
 	�� ������	���� ���

�� �
	����
�������������	��SSS�

?9� 4�� ;��7� ���� 7��; ����� ���� ���� �;���@� ;��7���
�� ���� �������� ��� �������������

�� �
	�����������������������	
������	���S9�

J9� �4�� ;��7� ����� �������� ����  	���� ���������� ��� ���� �
������  ���� ���� �  ����� � �

����������	���������
���������	��S99�

D9� 4��	��������������������� ����� ��������� ��	������	����������������� ��� ���� ��

�� �
	����
���	���7�������������	���SS9�

E9� �4�� ;��7� ����� �������� ����  	���� ���������� ��� ���� �
������  ���� ����� ��B	���

#B�������������	��SSS99�

#����� ���������������������������������������	����
�������������������7���� ��������

������������7��������������������;�������������7���
��������������������������	���� ���

������������������������������
����������
	�9��

������������ ����������� ���������@���	�
������������ �������	�������	
������������������

��������+�����7������;����������������	������������������7�� ���������
��������
������ �

�������
��������������9�

61



�

�	�

���	��������������	��	����	�����������������
�����7���������������	������������������

7����7������������������������������������7779���������	
�����9��
9	;��

�

"$��������4&$&���#�)��)��&$��&��

���� ���������	
�� �� �
	����
� �������� +����� �� �� �����
� ����������� 7���� ���� 7��;���

7������
���������������������������������������������������	��������������� �����������

������	�
�������������������	
�9�

���� ����������� ���� ��������� ���� �	������� �� ���� ���� �  ��� ���� ������ 1231K3>� ���� ����

7��;���7�����������������	�
�������� ��� �
��� ���� ����������  ���123>K3?�7����7���

�	����������7��;���������	������;��9�

�������+�����
��������������7�����7��������
�
���7�����	�
������������������������� �

��������	����������7��������������������������	�������������������������	�����������

����
� ��7���9�

�������+����������
���������������������������������������������������������
���������

������.���	��	�������� ���������	��� �������	��
�����	����9��������+�7��������	������  ���

�	�����������	���������������
�����������
���������������	������������������� ���������

������	�
�������������������	
������������������������  ���������� �
	�����9�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

62



�

�

&�" %���#$�%�5�1��*�4����� &���&$'$�$!$ &������

'�� ������ ��� ���	��� �������� ����� �� �@� �� �� ��������� ����� ���������� ;��7�� �����

����������������	����� �
	����
9�����
	�������������������

�<� 0:��������������

+
��	������������	���������	���������
����	
���������	���	�������	���	�������������������

���4�����	�������	������5�

�� #�	9
� ��	���;������	��	�� .� �������� ������������� �����������/������������������

������� ��������� ������� ����7��7���7�����;�� ����������� ���� �������� ��6	���9�

&�	����� ���������7��������������������������9�

�� '�� ��������� ���������

�
���	��� �� ��������@����� �	�����	�� �����������
� �����  ���

����������������������7������	  ���
�����9�

�<� ����
�
��	���

���� ������7�������� ������������7���������������  ������ �� ��������������7��;��������

�	�������� �
	��������������������7�� ����� ��������9������	����B�����������	���������� ��

���7���������	����� �����������9�

4��7�	����B�������	�����

�� +��  ������ 7��� ����  ����7� ��	�� ��
�������/�� ������ ���� ������	����  ���

�� �
	����
�����7�� ����� ��������9�

�� 0��7�7������������������B������������������	��������/��7�� ���9�

�� ������������
�������������7��������� ��� �
	����
���	��������6	�����	�7�������

;��7���
�������;������	�����9�

�� "�����
�������G��

�
���	��/������������������������������	�����9�

�<� ����	���
��	��

���� ��
��������� �����7��;�7��� ��������������	�
������������� �������7����� ���7� ����

��	���� ��� �
	����
����������������
�������@����  @����	�������������	�����9��

&�	����
�������������������;������������������� ����

�� ���������� ���	�����  �������������
�������������	�������� ����� �����������������

7��;�
�7��9�

�� &�	�� ��
�������� ���
� ��;��� ��� �������/�� ������ ����� ��� ���� ������ ��� �������

� �����������	�������������� ����9�

�� �������
��������
�������
��������������� ���	�����  9�

�� ��� ����� ��	�� ��
�������� ����� 7��� ������ ��	��� ��	� ���	��� ����� ��

�� �
	����
� ������ ���� �� ���� � � ������	���� ����� ���� ���  @� ���	������� ����

��	�������	���  ����79� ������ ���	��� ��� ������ ��� ���� �� �
	����
� +����/��

�	����
�����������	������������+�7������7779���������	
�����9��
9	;��9�

�� &�	����
�����������	��������������������������
� ������  @�������	�������������

���� ;��7���
�� ���� �;���� ����� ����� ��� ;���� �������� �� �� ����� ���+� 4��; �����

*�����������+����	����������7�������9�

63



�

�

�� &�	� ���	������	��� �������	����� ����	��
� �� ���@� ��� ����� ����;�� ���������  �������

���  �7�����������������������	�����������������	��
������7��;9�

�� �7��;����������� ����� �
	����
��	��	��������
���	����;������������������������� �

����	��9� '�� �� ��������� ����� ��������� �������� �� ��	�� ��
�������� ;��7�� 7����

������	�� �����������������7���� �����9�������
����� �
	����
��	��	���7�������

��
�����������	��������� ������������ 	�����7����� �����������	����������	���

��������B������� �������9�

�

������)�	
��
���

�� ���������������*	���)  ������23E>>�HD?3H2�����HD?3E2���	��� ���	���23E>>�

JD3>E2���

�� ������
�������������	�����323��

�� "�����2H2H�H22�J222��

�� ���������	
���� �
	����
���������+�����23E>>�HD>E??�

�� ���������	
���� �
	����
���������+�����7�������7779���������	
�����9��
9	;��

�

64



�

�

�

�

�
���������&��������	��)�����	�'�����

�� 3
��
�������

� +������������

� +����7���

� ���������	
��

� �#3�3�*�

�� ����:���������	
�9
��9	;��

�� 23E>>�HD>E?J�

�

�

�

�

65



66

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Our vision is to safeguard and protect all the children in Peterborough 

2013-2014 Business Plan  

 

Document Version: 1.2 

Date: 20/08/2013 

Completed by: Jon Chapman 

67



Business Plan 2013-2014 

Page 2 

 

Version History 

Version: Date: Completed by: Amended by: Brief description of changes: 

1.0 29/04/2013 Jon Chapman   

1.1 29/05/13 Jon Chapman Jon Chapman Feedback from PSCB 

1.2 20/08/13 Jon Chapman Jon Chapman Update on progress 

 

 

Business Plan 

Ensure that that early help and preventative measures are effective 3 

Ensure that children at risk of significant harm are being effectively identified and protected 4 

Ensure that everyone is making a significant and meaningful contribution to safeguarding children 5 

Ensure the workforce has the right skills, knowledge an capacity to appropriately safeguard children in Peterborough 6 

How do we ensue we know and understand the needs of all sectors of our community and are able to identify safeguarding 

issues within them 6 

How do we know that children are fully protected by all agencies from the effects of domestic abuse and neglect 8 

Ensure that all children are fully protected from the effects of CSE 8 

Governance and structure of PSCB 10 

 

 

68



Business Plan 2013-2014 

Page 3 

1 Ensure that that early help and preventative measures are effective 

Action Owner Timescale Progress RAG 

Monitor indicator dataset to ensure progress Quality & Effectiveness 

Subgroup 

Ongoing Dataset now in place and includes 

measures on Early Intervention for 

the board to monitor 

Green 

Review and publish a threshold document that includes:  

• the process for the early help assessment and the type and level of early 

help services to be provided; and  

• the criteria, including the level of need, for when a case should be 

referred to local authority children’s social care for assessment and for 

statutory services under:  

o section 17 of the Children Act 1989 (children in need); 

o section 47 of the Children Act 1989 (reasonable cause to suspect 

children suffering or likely to suffer significant harm); 

o section 31 (care orders); and 

o Section 20 (duty to accommodate a child) of the Children Act 1989. 

PSCB Business Unit  31
st

 July 2013 Threshold document has been 

adopted by the PSCB as required in 

Working Together 2013. A task and 

finish group is currently refreshing 

the document and this will be 

subject to renewed awareness 

briefings in October. 
Amber 

Support Joint Children Commissioning Board to achieve the Early Intervention 

Strategy and Connecting families to include;- 

• Promoting the threshold document 

Independent Chair  31
st

 March 2014 Threshold document being 

refreshed and policies on sexually 

harmful behaviour and parental 

mental health. 

Amber 

• Embedding and promoting the use of CAF across all relevant 

organisations. 

• Promoting the effective use of MASGs 

• Promoting the multi agency use of the Locality Toolkit and Services 

directory. 

PSCB Board 31
st

 March 2014 The board is redefining protocols to 

increase adult agencies use of the 

CAF. Use of the CAF is reported in 

the dataset and monitored. 

The Family Services directory is 

linked on the PSCB website and 

promoted in media. 

Amber 

Ensure that CiN processes and plans are robust and there is multi agency 

engagement. 

PSCB Board 31
st

 March 2014 Multi agency audit has highlighted 

there need for increased multi 

agency focus on CiN. This is 

currently being monitored by the 

board. 

Amber 

 

6
9



Business Plan 2013-2014 

Page 4 

2 Ensure that children at risk of significant harm are being effectively identified and protected  

Action Owner Timescale Progress RAG 

Monitor indicator dataset to ensure progress QEG Ongoing Measures included in  Green 

Review the  attendance of relevant agencies at child protection conferences along 

with the timeliness of reports being available 

QEG 31
st

 August 2013 Ofsted Action. 

Multi agency audit through QEG on 

attendance  and action plan being 

monitored. 

Green 

Develop links with the strategic MAPP board to ensure that safeguarding is fully 

integrated into manage ing offenders who pose a risk to children 

PSCB Business Manager 31
st

  August 2013 Independent chair and business 

manager now part of SMB and local 

procedure developed. 

Green 

Ensure there are structures in place to maintain a PSCB focus on Looked after 

children, this to include links to:- 

• Corporate parenting panel 

• Independent Review Service 

• Children looked after placed out of authority 

PSCB Business Manager  31
st

 July 2013 Reporting cycle to board in place 

and necessary information included 

in dataset 
Green 

Develop  a robust auditing programme that includes a focus on the experience of 

the child and the impact and outcome of service provision and that leads to the 

identification of themes and plans for improvement which are robustly 

implemented and monitored 

QEG 31
st

 August 2013 Ofsted Action 

Auditing programme developed and 

delivered through QEG (includes 

single and multi agency audit) 

Reports on children and Young 

Peersons experience at conference 

reports to board. 

Green 

 

7
0



Business Plan 2013-2014 

Page 5 

3 Ensure that everyone is making a significant and meaningful contribution to safeguarding children  

Action Owner Timescale Progress RAG 

Monitor indicator dataset to ensure progress QEG Ongoing Measures in dataset on CAF/ 

referral and training detailed by 

agency and monitored 

Green 

Monitor  and coordinate the development of local protocols for assessment 

which include;- 

• Assessments are timely transparent and proportionate. 

• Set out the needs of disabled, young carers and children in youth 

justice. 

• Clarify how agencies can make contribution. 

Establish how assessments can be linked to other specialist 

assessments. 

Policy and Procedures Group  31
st

 September 2013 Working Together 2013 

Assessment framework being 

delivered by Children Services and 

monitored by board. 

Amber 

Develop a multi agency safeguarding recognition scheme Business unit  31
st

 August 2013 Commenced July 2013 Green 

Develop a multi agency safeguarding suggestion scheme to promote the role of 

the board and capture innovation and good practice 

Business unit 31
st

 August 2013 Commenced July 2013 
Green 

 
 

7
1



Business Plan 2013-2014 

Page 6 

4 Ensure the workforce has the right skills, knowledge an capacity to appropriately safeguard children in Peterborough  

Action Owner Timescale Progress RAG 

Monitor indicator dataset to ensure progress QEG Ongoing Training by agency monitored by 

the board through the dataset. 
Green 

Deliver a multi agency training strategy to equip the workforce to identify and 

assess children and families in need of early help and to protect children from 

significant harm to include :- 

• Safeguarding disabled children 

• Protecting children from the Internet 

• Parental substance misuse 

• Child Abuse 

SLDG March 2014 Training brochure developed and 

delivering required multi agency 

training. 

Amber 

Ensure that the learning from case reviews and audit is effectively disseminated SLDG March 2014 Mandated training to be delivered 

on W review 
Amber 

Establish closer links with the multi agency workforce to allow the board to 

understand issues and barriers to effective safeguarding 

PSCB Business Manager December 2013 Delivered PSCB briefings to Social 

Workers Forum and Police 

Managers. Business manager to be 

part of the health sub group. 

Amber 

Ensure that the lessons from Local, regional and national Case Reviews and audits 

are appropriately disseminated and lessons learned. 

SDLG March 2014 Subject to regular staff briefings and 

media dissemination. 
Green 

 
 

5 Know and understand the needs of all sectors of our community and are able to identify safeguarding issues within them  

Action Owner Timescale Progress RAG 

Monitor indicator dataset to ensure progress QEG Ongoing Measures s included in the multi 

agency dataset and monitored 

through QEG 

Green 

Develop better links between PSCB and community cohesion in Peterborough PSCB Business Manager 31
st

 July 2013 Regular meetings held with 

community cohesion lead 
Green 

Develop closer links with faith groups in Peterborough PSCB Business Manager 31
st

 September 2013 Initial work on safeguarding in 

Madrasahs to be expanded as part 

of the PSCB annual conference in 

Amber 

7
2



Business Plan 2013-2014 

Page 7 

November. 

Develop a structure to capture the voice of children and young people on 

safeguarding issues. 

Independent Chair & PSCB 

Business Manager 

31
st

 September 2013 Formation of youth ambassadors 

network in conjunction with CSC 

participation to heads forum in 

September 2013 

Amber 

Develop links with HMP Peterborough to ensure that safeguarding is integrated 

into the appropriate areas of work 

PSCB Business Manager 31
st

 August 2013 Links in place. HMP Peterborough 

mother and baby unit completed 

s11 audit fore the first time. 

Green 

 

7
3



Business Plan 2013-2014 

Page 8 

6 Know that children are fully protected by all agencies from the effects of domestic abuse and neglect  

Action Owner Timescale Progress RAG 

Monitor indicator dataset to ensure progress QEG Ongoing Measures on MARAC and form 

police included in dataset and 

monitored through QEG/ board. 

Green 

Support the implementation of the Peterborough Domestic Abuse Strategy Independent Chair  31
st

 December 2013 Business manager now part of the 

domestic abuse governance group. 
Green 

Deliver appropriate multi agency domestic abuse and neglect training SLDG  31
st

 March 2014 Domestic abuse training delivered 

as part of multi agency training. 
Green 

Review and raise awareness or the PSCB good Parenting Guide ensuring it is 

focused and available to diverse communities 

PSCB Business Manager 31
st

 December 2013 Guide being developed to include 

domestic abuse. 
Amber 

Raise the awareness to the signs of neglect in all agencies SLDG 31
st

 December 2013 Supported neglect briefings to CSC 

managers. To develop greater 

awareness 

Amber 

Enhance the links between PSCB and the Domestic Abuse Governance Group. PSCB Business Manager 31
st

 July 2013 Business manager now part of the 

group. 
Green 

 
 

7 Ensure that all children are fully protected from the effects of CSE  

Action Owner Timescale Progress RAG 

Monitor indicator dataset to ensure progress QEG Ongoing Relevant measures in dataset. 

Further development required by 

newly formed strategic group. 

Amber 

Develop the multi agency strategy to identify and respond to CSE CSE sub group  31
st

 July 2013 Strategy in place to be refreshed by 

newly formed strategic group in 

light of national developments. 

Amber 

Continue to raise the awareness CSE with children and young people, 

parents/carers and professionals. 

CSE sub group 31
st

 July2013 Training, website, newsletter and 

dissemination of national learning 

via the strategic group. 

Green 

Review practice in relation to responding to CSE and disseminate any learning PSCB Business Unit 31
st

 March 2014 To be discussed at September SCR 

panel 
Amber 

7
4



Business Plan 2013-2014 

Page 9 

Deliver effective multi agency training on CSE SLDG  31
st

 March 2014 Multi agency training continues to 

be delivered. 
Green 

Develop greater awareness in schools of CSE SLDG March 2014 Drama delivered to all year 8 and 9 

children. To be further evaluated. 
Green 

 

7
5



Business Plan 2013-2014 

Page 10 

8 Governance and structure of PSCB  

Action Owner Timescale Progress RAG 

Ensure that there are clear links between PSCB, the Health and Wellbeing Board 

and Joint Children’s Commissioning Board 

Independent Chair 31
st

 July 2013 Independent chair represents PSCB 

at both groups. Reports presented 

to PSCB. 

Green 

Develop a dataset that delivers high quality information to allow PSCB to monitor 

and challenge practice across all agencies 

QEG 

PSCB Business unit 

 31
st

 July 2013 Ofsted Action 

Multi agency action plan in place. 
Green 

Review the membership of the board Independent Chair 31
st

 July 2013 Representation now from voluntary 

sector, Primary schools, Fire and 

Rescue and national Health 

commissioning board. 

Green 

Review and agree the sub group structure of PSCB Chairs Group 30
th

 August 2013 Review complete. New structure in 

place. 
Green 

Develop and agree PSCB Priorities and monitoring framework PSCB 

Business Unit 

31
st

 June 2013 Priorities agreed and published and 

linked to the performance 

framework. 

Green 

Review and agree PSCB risk register Business manager 31
st

 July 2013 Risk register refreshed and linked to 

business priorities. 
Green 

Develop and trial systemic approaches to SCR and other case reviews 

• Develop process to audit and monitor SCR decisions and actions arising 

Business manager  31
st

 September 2013 Discussed in SCR – a case by case 

approach will be taken. Examples 

available methodologies has been 

gathered.  

Green 

 
 

7
6



���������	
����������������
�

��
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

��������	
�����������	����

����	������
��������������

��������������������������������������������	���� ���!�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

"���#�
���#��$�����

�������	��

77



���������	
����������������
�

��
�

�%�� &�
���#
����

����	���������������������������	����������������������	����� �������	���

���������� �����
����	����!��!�����	��
������ �����"��#�

�$�����	��
%��������	�������&��
��������������������&�����%�	���������������������������

&��
����	�������	�%�	���&�
	��	 ���	� ���������	�
�&	
�	��	������	

����������#�

'���!��(��������	�����	�� ����	
��	������	����	��
%�	����	���	�������
����������

���
�	������	�	�������������&�

�&����	���������������	����	

%�	����!���	��������

���%�	��#���������������������	�	�&�

�&�������	����	��	&&��	����� ���	
�	���

�	����	
�&��	�������	���������	��
%�	!	�
	�
�(�������������
�!	��(���������&
��������

����������#��

�����!��������������	���	
��������)&
�����	�%��������&������	�	����	&������	����

���&���� ����
�	�����������������&	��������	������!���	
�&��
�#�����

��(�&���������	
�

!��������������	���	
����������	!	�
	�
��������
�!	������������	
�#�

�

�%�� �'	#()�����

���
����	����!��!�����	��
��*����+���������	�
������������
����,�	��	�����

��	�����%���-���������	���������������	����.����/0����� ��� ���������1	�� �	���

���
����2����3#����������	�%����&�����*	����-�������%�����4�&	
�1	�� �	���� �

5�	������ �
	���������3+�������������	���	�&���������!��	�����
��	 ��&%���!����

���	

���	�������&��
���������	

%����������������������� ��	����	����� �������	 ���

�������,�%�	������	 �(��������������������	��������������	�����%����%�����	������

�������������� ������	���	&����������!������������	����	����������!��������	
��(�

��

���� �	����	���%����&��
�����	���%��� ���
�#�

�

����������	����&���&����&������
	�������������	�����%� ���	�&�(���&
���� 6�

�� ��!����� �����	!	�
	�
��������	��������	

���	�������&��
�����������,�%�	���

*��&
���� ���	����������	����	 ���
������	���,��	%�+��������������������������

��	����	����!���	�
�#�

�� ��

�&��� (�&�

	��� �	���������� ����	��	 ������	����	
��	�	����������	&��

&��
�������	������#�

�� 7����� ��� �
	�
%������!����	����!	
�	��������������
%�&�

�&�����	�	��������

��	�������	

�&��
����(�	���������%��������%�� �
�������������
�	�����������������

&��&���#�

�� 7�������� �������������������������	
�����	�����)�&������	������	�&��
��

78



���������	
����������������
�

��
�

�� �������� ����������	����������
�&	
�1	�� �	���� ����
�����5�	���*41�5+�	�%�

��	��������������	��
�&����������������	%���� ����������&��������	���������

&	�����!���#�

�� 7�������� ��������������!�&������������������	!����	��
���#�

�� 8������%�� �	�%���
�&���	
����������	���&��������� (��������������&�������

���
�&�'�	
��(�������������	�������������	�����������
�&	��������������

��!�����������������!�&���	�����	���� #�

/0����� ��� ���������1	�� �	������
����2��	���������!�����	����	��������������

7	�&������#�'���!��(��������������
����������������
����	�����!�������&����

���	�����&�	� ��#�

�

�%�����*������#���� �

�������&�
��������
%�� ������!��!�������	

�&��
����	����	��6�

�#� 9!��%�&��
�2����	������	���	 ��%�

�#� 4�	���� �
�������

�#� :�����	 ��&%������� �

;#� ������!��	&���������	�� �	���	����������������
�	������&��
�����

�

+%�����*�����#�  ��

���
����	����	�����!����������� �������������
	������&�����<�	�	����	������!����

���	

���	�������&��
���������������	 ������,�%�	���	���	��	��������������!�&��

���&��
�������� ��	�������	�
�	��������	�������&��
����������������)�&���
%#�

����� ���"��(�����������	����������������������!����	���%�����������	�����	�����

&��
����	���#�����	��
����&�	������%������	����� �������41�5�&�	���	����	��

�������������	

���
�!	���	 ��&����*����	����)��	�����
��������������+#��

����	�	���	��
����&����!���������	�	
���	����*�	�����	 �������������	 ������,�

�	%�������	!��������������&�	� �������������	
+��������&�#�=���	�	
���	����	���

��!��������	�	��
%���&	����������	�������&��%��� ��	������������	
�����	
�	%��

��	
�����
	����	�������	�����!	
������	�����	�&���%�	 ��&������&��	�������
�&��	���

&��
����2����&�	
�&	������!�&������!��%�
������#������������ (����������(������
���

���&�
��	�%��	�������	����
���	 ��&%�*����	����)���������������+�	����������	�%�

��
�!	������������������	�������#�

�

79



���������	
����������������
�

��
�

����	��������	�������������������&�������	�	
 	�	�������������	��������	��������

�����	�����������1��!�&��	���������������������������	�%�&	��������(����
������� �

�������>����
%��%����������� ��	����	����� ����������
����2��1��!�&���

��	�������#�����>����� ������������
	������&�������	����!���������	������

����&������	%���������� #��������&������	���������������������
%����	�
������

�	����� �������	������������� ��&
���&	
�&����������� � ����*��?+���������
�

����#�

�

,%�������*���-	
���	����#
���

��������������&��
��������������	������&����� ����&	��
%����&���@,A�����A(����

&��
�����	�%�	�����

�����	�������B������C�� �������

��	��������������� �����&��
������

��	����	�������9����#�$����)	�
�(��������	�������	���&��
��������	����	���	��

1�����(��(����������&��
��������
�������	&��%�	�#������	���&	���������	���

&���������������&�� ����	
�	�������	�	
����
��������	���������������	 ��������
!��

������#�

�

����	��(����������

����������
�����-�	����%�������������&���	����%������������&��������	�

��&�������&���%����	��&	

%���!�����	

�&��
��������	���#�����������&	��������

�������������	������!�������%�����!���	
�������	���������	

�	������������	�
	&�����

��������	�	�&�

�&�����	���	�	
%����	��	��	����	
�
�!�
#���

�

=	����	

%(�	�������D������	����	���&�����������%���������������!���	�
�(����&��

���	�����
	���� �������������&������������������
	����&�����#�����������������	����

���&��	�������������)
	��������	���	��	�����
������)����	
���	��	�	����������������

��!���	�
�#����!���	�
����	����	���������������������	�
���	&������	!�������

��������������&��&��
���	!��&��������������������	��#�

�

.%��� ���������$�����/�+�

�����������
����	�����

�!�������
	���%�	�(���)�%���)�&��
������	!�������	&������	����� �������	���

���������� �����&�����&�������	�
%��������	��������!���������%�	��(����&�������

A��	���A,�����&��!�
%(�	������������ ������� �������&�������������&������ 	�����

���,#�'���!��(����������������
�����&������������������������� ������ ��������
�������

��	�����	!���������!�������!�������&���� �%�	�#�

80



���������	
����������������
�

��
�

�����	������������
�&������������
�&	
�	�������%�	��	�#�8���	����� �����������%�����

&��
����������&��	����������	����,����������!���������%�	��#������&������������
	��

�������������� ���������A�&��
����������&��	������������%������������������!�����

����%�	��#��

�

���������&��
�������������(������	>����%(���	�
%�,�D(�������	�����������	�%�	���
�(�

������	�%��%�� �������������������	%��	������������
���(��	!�� ���!���
���������	
#�

����&�	�����
�����������	����	�����
	��	���������&���	�	��	��������&�

�&���#�

$� �����������������
�&	
�	��	��	���������	��	����)��	�	���	
��������	�����
	��

	�����#�8��&	������������	������	 ���	� ������������������������	�����	����&��	������

����	�����
������	��	�%�	���
�#�

�

������ �

������ �

81



���������	
����������������
�

��
�

��	������!������

=���	

�����&��
�������������������%�	���	!���������!�������%����������	��
(�

���&�������%�	����!������������	�����������%�����&��
�����*���������������

��	!��

�����������!�����%�	������!����	�
���+#����������������	� 	������!��	
��������

��������	���	���	�����	����	������� ���!���������
���	

���
�!	���������	��������

 	������#��	����	��� ����	

%�������!����������
�	�����	����-������	���	����
	&�����

��&��	���������&	�����!�����	�������&��
����#��

�

���������	�������&���������!�����(�����	�����������	�����	������
	�������	��������

	��!������������	>����%����� ��	�����	������	����������	�%�	���
�#�������)��
	� ����

 �����	��&��
�����	 ���������������	��������%�	������	 �(����������&��
��������� �

��!�����(���!����������������� ��	�����!��������	����� ������#�������	�������������

��	���������!	���������������������	�
��	�����(���������� �	��	�����
�����
����
������ �

&���������(������������� ��&��
������&	�&��������	 �&�	&&������#�

�

�������	�������	������������������������	��������%��� ���
��	 ����A�E��,�

&��	�������
	���%�	�#�'���!��(�������������	���!��%���	

�	���������
�����

��	����	������&�������������������������	�������	�&�	� �����	���� 
��%�	�2��

�� ����#��

�

0������ 	������ �����(�	���������!�����%�	��(�&�������	�
%��������%����	�� ��
��

�����	����������!������*�3�	����3�����&��!�
%+#�������������������� 	������

�����&��%�	���&����������������	

������	�
��&��&
���������������	��#�

���������&������&	����������	������������	�	
���	����	���	��	�����
�����	�

&��������	
���� �����&�&��������#�

�

7�����	�
���	&������

�������������������������&��
����	����!��!����	��
��������������%�	�%�/������	�
�2�

�	&����������	&��&��
����	������#���	����(�	�%��	&�������&�(������������ ��(��� ����	!��

��!��������	����	���	����� �����!�������������	���#����������������&��
����	����


	���%�	��������	�������	�
���	&�����	������������#������������������������������

&	�� ������	���������	

�����	��� ����	
��	�����#�'���!��(��������	����������	��	�

����
��1������B��)�&������	������8��	�&%�*1B�8+#��� ���	
��� �������  ������	�����

	

�&��
����	���(���������&	�������&������������!	
����	���������	�
�����1B�8#��

82



���������	
����������������
�

��
�

�

1��������	�����!�����

�����������������������&	�����!�����������	�����!�������
	���%�	�(��������

���������� ��	�����������	����� ������(�	
���� ��������	�����

���������!�������%�

��������#��������������� ��&	�����!�����	�������	������

���� ���������������	���!��

%�	���
����%����7	�&�������	�����
���������7	%������	������&��&
�������������

&�����	
����	
#��

�

	
���
���������������
������	���
��������������������
��������������������������

����������� ���������������!����
���
����������������"�����
�
�������#������$�$�

����%�������$��&�'����
����
�(�����������������������
��������������
�����

���
��������
������������
������������&� ��������
��������
�����������)��

�� %������
�����������������
���
����������

�����
�������������
��
�������

��
�����&�

�� �*������!��������
��������������������
�!���������������������������!���
��
�

�������

�� �����������������
��!�������
��������������������
����������(��
����������

���������
���������������
������������&� �

�� �����������������
��!�������
�������
���������!
�������
����
�����������

!�����������������������
����(+���!������������������������(�
�������
���
�

�
������������&�

%���
�����������
���������
���������!��������&�

�

'����������������������
�������������������
�������������������
�!���������������

��������������������, "���
����&�-�����
������������.!�������������
����
���������

���������
�
����������������������
�&�'������������������!���������������������������

��������������������������������
���
��������
�(�
�������������!�������(�����

��������
�!&�

��

0%��� 1��2��#
�����	
� /�	������ ��� ������#��*	����)��&+�

���	� ����������������!������

'������������������������
�����������
�����!���
�����
�������
��+��
��������������

!
����&�%������������
���������+���������������������������
�������
����������#���

83



���������	
����������������
�

/�
�

����������������
������������
����
�������
��
����(����+�����������������������
�

!
��&�'�������������
�����������������
�������������������������������������


������������������
��������
����������������������������!�����
��������.�����������

����&�0
���������+����������������������
�����(��
�����������������������������
�

�
���������!��������������������������
��������������������&�

�

'���!
�������������������������
��$�
�������
��������������������
���������&�

1
������������,���������$��+��������
��������������������
������
�������������

������������+���������������������
���������2/!��3�/��4��������������������
�������

��������������
�!�������!��
��$�����
��
�����&�%�������
�����������������������+�

�����������.!�������������������!�
�����
������������������&�,�������������+�����

�!�����������!������!
����
�������������������������
��������
��������(���
����������

�������������
��������&�

�

5������������
��������������
��������������������!
������
�����������������

�����������������������
������,���������-��!���
��������������������������
��������

(����
���������������������
��������.!����������������������!
������������
����

����
������
�����(�����
��������(�����������&��

�

'��������������������������
�������!������!
�����������������������!
������
������

����������
!!
����������
��6
������������������������������������������������&�

�

1
����������

0�
��%!�����$��7#������
��$��������������������.!����������������������

�����

�������������������"�����
�
���+��.���������
������������������&� ������+��������

6
�����
���������8�
��
����
����!���
����������
���!!�
!���������������������

��
�����
���������������������������9���(����������
�������!�������������
�����

�����������
�(���������
����!���
�����������&�-���
�!����
��������������$�

���.!�����������������������������������"�����
�
��������$�$7�$������������������

�
��������������/�����$��7�$�����������
���������&�

	�����
��������.!�����������������$��7��+������
�����������
�������������������

�����
����������
�����������!����������������+��
�����������������
������

!�
!
����:	�*����!�����
����������!���&�

84



���������	
����������������
�

;�
�

�

%���������������
���!
������������
������
�����
��������
����������������
��������
����

����
���
���
��
��������
���������������
��&�%����������������������������
���+�����

�
��������������(�����
�����(��
������&�-�!�������������

�������������
��������

�
��+������������������������
��������
�����������������������<�
����������
��&��

�

%�������������
������6
��������������������������������, "�������������������������

��������&�	
���
���������������������
���
���������������
������������8��
�����+�

������������������������������!
��+�����
���������������
�(��
��������
����
��������

���.!��������������������������
���������!���&�

�

3%��� �����
�
��4��	����$	����� ��

8������������	��	�
%������&�
����������	��	����	����	%�������������!���������	��
����

	������������������%���&��!��	�����������&��
���	������#�'���!��(�	������	���

��������������������&��
�2����	������	�������������!������	���	�����&���	 ������

&���	&��������	����������	��
#�8���������(������	���������������	��&���	&�������	�

��������������	!����	��
������

���� �����	��
������� #�8��	�������(�	�����

���� �

�����	&�������	���	

������������	��
���(�����	!����������������
�	�
������&����������

����	��
���������
%�����������������	��
������#�

����&��
����2������&�����	
���	��������&������������������������ ����������
�!	���

	����	!����!�����!	
�	�
�������	&��	����������	�������������&����������	
�����

	��	��
%����������������
	���%�	�#���

�

5%��� ��	� �$����/�+�

������"�;����������
	�����	��	&����	��	����)��#�����������%�	&������	���

����	��������
��6�

�� � ����	������	�
���������� �	��	� ����������������	��������������!�&�������

���
����;�

�� 8�!���� 	��������������������������������������&��
����	����

�� ��!��������������	!	�
	�
���������	!���	������	&��������������� ��F�

�	����� �������	����������%������ 	��	��� �����	&��&�#�

�� 8�
������������&������	��������������	����
���� ��	���	���������� ���#��

85



���������	
����������������
�

�$�
�

�� �
	���%�����
���������������������(���
�&���	
���	�������'�	
���F�0�

���� �

5�	����������������	��������	�����	�����&��
����	�������&�

	���������

������	�����	�����	&&������#�

�

�

"%�#��$�����

�������	��

6���������

�

86



���������	
����������������
�

���

�

�������2����

7��4� �����$���������	
�����������	����

�)��#��/�7��4�� ����
��

$�
�&��%�1&�����
�(�8������������	��� 9
	����4����(�����%���	���

���9
	����4�����E������
�	����	���	���&�	�(��	����� ���������������%�1��!�&���"����� �	������&����

�������
��������	��(�='1�"��

�

9��	����G�����E������
�	���������
�&�'�	
���7���&�������
�����F�'�	
���8��-�	
������ �

���4�&%����������������
�	����	���	���&�	�(�9��� ��&%���	������(��B'$�� ������'���H�

���������'���H(������
�	����	���	���&�	�(�9��� ��&%����(��B'$�� 4�&%���������

))))))(�9	������9� 
	�������
	�&��1��!�&��*�	���+� ���

��	���

1	��'���(�4�	��=������������
�����	���=���	���#�

=	����=���������1	�� �	���� ����
��������������� ��F�1�	������'����	
��='1�$����	�����������

?�

�?�	�����	(�1�&�	
�����

=���������1	�� �	���� �

���9��
�	�0	��H����&H(������
�	����	���	���&�	����	����� �������	������������� ��$����	�����������

"����� �	������&����1	�� �	���� ��I�(�='1�"��

�

$
����1������(�'�	
���J������ ���	��7	�	 ��(���1� �

�	!���'����� �E�'7������������������� �� C	������������

C	���������������������2������&��� 4��
�%�9�������

:�����	�	��E�41�5�5��������7	�	 ��� �

:�������

����E�5��������7	�	 ���E��	����41�5� �

������C���
�����8�������1��!�&��7	�	 �������8��� �	����1	�� �	���� (����������� �����%�����&�
� �

:	����$	������1��!�&��7	�	 ���1	�� �	���� �"�4����B���(��	����� ������������%�����&�
� �

8
7



���������	
����������������
�

���

�

�

�

7��4� �����$�-���	
	����������	
�����������	�����

�

�

�1�?	�%���� ��	%���'�	�������
�&�����&������	����� ������������	��
	�%� ��

5���5�����E�����%����� �	����=�����1	�� �	���� ����
����(��	����� �������F����������� �� �

�

%�1	
���(�$	��
%�1�������	&��������(�9��'�� �

�)��#��/�7��4�� ����
��

$�
�&��%�1&�����
�(�8������������	��� 9
	����4����(�����%���	���

���9
	����4�����E������
�	����	���	���&�	�(��	����� ���������������%�1��!�&���"����� �	������&����

�������
��������	��(�='1�"��

�

:	�������!��(�?����	
�7	�	 ���0����2��1��!�&��(�'��&��� �������='1������� �

���'�
����2���

%(�=���	�	
������
�	��(�������������� �

1	��'���(�4�	��=������������
�����	���=���	���#�

=	����=���������1	�� �	���� ����
��������������� ��F�1�	������'����	
��='1�$����	�����������

�

1��	��0��

�%(�7	������%�1��!�&��������7	�	 ��(�������������� �

?��H�	!�5�
H����(������
�	�������	��
� ���(�������������� �

8
8



���������	
����������������
�

���

�

�������2���8�������'� ���  ���	������/���+�

� �49�#
���� :�	�� �#
����	���
��� #	��� ����������
#���� �����������)�  ��

�%� ��!����
����	!������
�����������	��
�����

94"����%�
���� �	����
������

����&����������%��F�	���������
������	!	�
	�
��	&��������������%�
F��������%� 	�(� �����	&��&��	���
!	��	�&��#���&������*&	������
����	����������"��+�

5����������������
����	!����	��
����	��
��	�������%�
�����	&��

�

�%� 8�
������
��&������	������
�����/�	����
���� 2�
�	���F�������� ����

$1� 8������%�F������������������	������
�
��&�����������

8���!��	����	
�	�	�������
����	����
���� �
����&�����������������
1B�8���

�

�%� 4��������������� ��
����������� �������
	&&�������

9��G� 9��	�
����
������������!�����
���
����2��������	��	� �������F�
'�	
���F�0�

���� �5�	�������������
���>������������	����� 	������������
&��
��	&&�������	���&��
����	���#�
1�������������

7�������������
&����������� �����	&&������
��!������������

�

+%� 9��	�
�����������
	��	� �����������
�	�����������
1��!�&��

94"90"55� � �����������&����������� �
	��	� ������������	�����������
1��!�&��������";"�;�
:	��	�%����;�

$����������	�����������
���!�&�����	�
����������
7	�&�����;�

�

,%� �
	���%������� �
	��	� �����������
�����	���������

$1� 1��!�&��
�!�
�	 ����������������	���
����������������?(����������� ��
F��	�������
����2�����!�&���F�
�	����41�5�

�
	���%�	����������� �
	��	� �������

�
�

.%� 9)
����������������
���������������&��
��
��	���������������
��"���

94� � � �

0%� 9�����������41�5��
	�������������������
�����������������

�$1� ����	
������#�:�
%������ 4�������
�	���������������
��	����������	�� �	���� �
	�������

�

�

�

8
9



9
0

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND 
TACKLING INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 6 

9 SEPTEMBER 2013  Public Report 
 

Report of the Director of Children’s Services 
 
 
Report Author – Belinda Evans, Complaints Manager, Corporate Complaints 
Service 
Contact Details – 01733 296324 
 
 

CHILDREN’S (SOCIAL CARE) SERVICES STATUTORY COMPLAINTS 
PROCESS (CHILDREN ACT 1989) ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 
 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 

This is the annual report submitted to Scrutiny Committee about Children’s 
(Social Care) Services statutory complaints process. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Scrutiny Committee are requested to consider the report and make 
recommendations for further scrutiny if deemed appropriate. 

 
3. LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN, SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

AND LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT 
 

The annual complaints report is a fundamental part of the corporate plan, the 
Sustainable Community Strategy and the Local Area Agreement. 

 
4. BACKGROUND 
 
4.1 The statutory complaints process covered by this report applies to complaints 

presented by or on behalf of ‘children in need’ or ‘looked after’ (meaning in 
the council’s care) as defined by the Children Act 1989. Effectively this means 
those children in receipt of social care services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

91



 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 The complaints process aims to provide additional safeguards for children 

and young people and to empower them to express their views about 
services they receive. A young person may make a complaint directly or an 
adult (parent, carer, relative or advocate) may act on their behalf. The city 
council provides an independent advocacy service, as required by law, and 
therefore a number of children are supported by that means. 

 
 
4.3 There are three stages to the statutory complaints process: 
 

• Stage 1, requiring a response within 10 working days and a 
maximum of 20 if a delay is acceptable 

• Stage 2, requiring independent investigation within 25 working 
days and a maximum of 65 in exceptional circumstances 

• Stage 3, requiring presentation to an independent complaint 
review panel within 30 working days. 

 
 Where a complaint is not resolved at Stage 3, the complainant may appeal to 
the Local Government Ombudsman who may choose to investigate and 
overturn the local authority’s response.  
 

4.4 Complaints data contributes evidence to the Annual Performance 
Assessment and Ofsted inspections of services. This information 
demonstrates how far the concerns of service users are reflected in changes 
to services which improve outcomes for children and young people. Evidence 
that children and families know how to complain and do make complaints is 
seen as positive evidence of their empowerment. Complaints therefore must 
always be investigated in a spirit of openness and learning, although of 
course not all complaints will be justified and upheld. 

 
The Central Complaints Office has been responsible for the statutory complaints 
process for Children’s Social Care since 2010. The use of bespoke complaints 
monitoring software ensures an accurate picture of complaints in progress.  The 
team are able to provide performance data on a weekly basis to the senior 
management team within social care to ensure overdue complaint responses are 
prioritised 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

92



 
 
 
 

 
5. COMPLAINT VOLUMES AND PERFORMANCE 
 
 
5.1 Statutory Complaints recorded for Children’s Social Care Services  
 

Total Complaints Received in 2011/12 

 11/12 12/13 

 
Informal Complaint – 
Resolved within 48 
hours 

9 (9.18%) 15 (15.96%) 

   
Stage 1 complaint – 
Logged as formal 
complaints 

84 (85.71%) 75 (79.78%) 

Frozen 
Not accepted due to 
court action 

5 (5.10%) 4 (4.26%) 

 
Withdrawn 

0 0 

 
TOTAL 

98 

 

 

94 

 

 

 
 
5.2 The complaint numbers are similar to last year.  A higher percentage of the 

complaints have been resolved informally this year with 15 complaints 
resolved in this way.  This shows an increasing drive to resolve the more 
straight forward as well as urgent matters expediently. Complaints where 
early resolution is not possible will be recorded and sent to the appropriate 
team manager on the day of receipt.  The team manager will be given a 
deadline for response and the complainant will get a written 
acknowledgement from the complaints team by Day 3.  Whilst waiting for 
response from the team manager the complainant will continue to have 
access to the complaints team if they are concerned or need to bring other 
matters to the attention of the department before the manager has contacted 
them. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

93



 
 
 
 
5.3 A small number of complaints have had to be postponed due to legal 

proceedings or criminal investigations.  The decision not to proceed with an 
investigation is taken by the Complaints Manager and the complainant is 
informed of their right to resubmit their complaints when the Judicial or Police 
action is completed. Sometimes it is possible to look at some aspects of a 
complaint whilst legal proceedings are in progress if the issues fall outside of 
the court’s remit. 

 
 
5.4 To use the Children’s (Social Care) Services statutory complaints process 

the complainant must meet certain criteria.  Only those people with sufficient 
interest in a child who is classified as a ‘child in need’ or ‘looked after’ or the 
child personally, can make a complaint under the policy.  Sometimes 
complaints are received from interested parties who do not meet the criteria 
and the complaint has to be withdrawn.  Alternatively a complainant may be 
the one who chooses to withdraw their complaint, but this is rare. There have 
been no withdrawn complaints this year. 

 
 
Table 2: Stage 1 Complaints Performance 
 

 
 

 
5.5 There has been a significant improvement in the response times experienced 

by complainants at Stage 1 of the process.  There has been consistent focus 
on complaints outstanding each week and a drive by the Senior Management 
team to ensure that team managers prioritise complaints they are 
investigating. 

  
5.6 The outcome of complaints this year is broadly similar to the previous year 

and is in line with what is seen nationally. See Table 3 below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Table 2: Stage 1 Responses Sent within 20 working days 

   
2011/12 

  
2012/13 

 
Responses sent within 20 working days 

 
68% 

 
81.6% 
 

 
Average Days to Respond 

 
23 

 
16 
 

94



 
 
 
5.7 Table 3 
 

OUTCOME OF STAGE 1 COMPLAINTS 2011/12 

OUTCOME 2011/12 2012/13 

Upheld 23   (27%) 22 (29%) 

Partially Upheld 35 (42%) 27 (35.5%) 

Not Upheld 25 (30%) 24 (31.5%) 

Outstanding a 
Response 

1   (1%) 0 

No finding 0 3 (4%) 

TOTALS 84  76 

 
 
 
 
5.8 In March 2013 a process of Conciliation meetings was introduced so that 

when clients were unhappy with a response at Stage 1 they could be offered 
a meeting with a service manager and the Complaints manager to attempt 
resolution of the complaint before escalation to Stage 2 of the complaints 
process.  The aim of this process is to ensure we continue to focus on early 
resolution and that the complainant has the opportunity to explain their 
concerns more fully to the department.  These meetings are optional to the 
complainant and may not be advisable in all cases. The process is designed 
to offer resolution at the meeting. Eight cases were suitable for the 
conciliation process during the year and of those held four were successful. 
Those that were successful have primarily been contributable to the service 
manager in each case having thoroughly reviewed the case before the 
meeting and being willing to listen and seek resolution with the client. Of the 
remaining four cases, three were unsuccessful and in the remaining case the 
complainant failed to attend the meeting and the complaint was closed.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

95



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.9 During the year there were 7 Stage 2 investigations held which was the same 

number as the previous year.  Without the conciliation process there would 
have been 11 cases at Stage 2 which would be an increase on the previous 
year.  The table below confirms that all the complaints at Stage 2 were either 
upheld in full or partially upheld.   This illustrates that there are issues which 
are not being resolved satisfactorily at Stage 1 of the process.  The need to 
make early contact with the complainant by the team manager at Stage 1 will 
be reemphasised to ensure an improvement in the number of complaints 
satisfactorily resolved at Stage 1.  

 
5.10  

OUTCOME OF STAGE 2 COMPLAINTS COMPARISON 

YEAR 2011/12 2012/13 

Upheld 2 1 

Partially Upheld 5 6 

Not Upheld 0 0 

 

 
 
5.11 During 2012/13 Four complaints were escalated to Stage 3 of the process.  

This is a high number but none of these cases led to a different decision than 
was reached by the Stage 2 investigation.  Some customers will exercise 
their right to proceed through the process as their communication with 
Children’s Social Care has completely broken down.  However it is worth 
noting that none of the Stage 3 cases had had conciliation and this may have 
helped restore dialogue between the department and the complainant and 
prevented this escalation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

96



 
 
6. ACCESSIBILITY 
 
 

Table 5.    Who is making Complaints? 2011/12 2012/13 

Children 9 13 

Parents/Guardians 68 62 

Carers 1 0 

Foster Carers 7 6 

Professionals 1 0 

LAC (now Adult) 0 3 

Friend (with sufficient interest 1 0 

Relatives 11 10 

Total 98 94 

 
 
6.1 There has been a further increase in the percentage of complaints made by 

young people themselves.  This indicates that young people are aware of 
their rights to complain and are exercising that right.  Complaints from Looked 
After Children are monitored throughout the year by Corporate Parenting 
Group and work by the Children in Care Council who attend this group has 
highlighted the need to publicise the right to complain to children who are in 
the care of the Local Authority.   Child friendly complaint leaflets are 
distributed to children in receipt of Children Social Care services and the 
Children in Care Council Participation officer worked with the Complaints 
manager during the year to introduce a texting option for children in care 
wanting to complain.   This is now in place and child friendly complaint leaflets 
is in the process of being updated with the text information to ensure this 
service is available to all young people in receipt of a service from Children’s 
Social Care. 

  
6.2 Independent Advocacy support is available for any young person considering 

a complaint. This service is currently provided by National Youth Advocacy 
Service (NYAS).   In the past year five young people were supported by 
NYAS in raising their complaints which is a significant increase from the 
previous year.  This illustrates that young people are made aware of the 
advocacy service and are supported in making contact with this service.  A 
meeting between NYAS representatives and the Complaints team has 
recently taken place to ensure NYAS understand the complaints process and 
how complaints sent to the Council will be dealt with.   

 
 
 

97



 
 
7 KEY THEMES  
 

     Table 6: Complaint Categories 
 

Nature of Complaint 
 
2011/12 

 
2012/13 

About Legislation 
 
0 

 
5 

About Policy 
 
3 

 
2 

Breach of Confidentiality 
 
4 

 
1 

Broken Promise/Appointment 
 
3 

 
2 

Delay/Failed Service 
 
40  

 
46 

Denial/Withdrawal/Change Service 
 
5 

 
5 

Lack of /Incorrect Information 
 
10 

 
3 

Not to Standard 
 
10 

 
6 

Staff Attitude/Conduct 
 
22  

 
24 

Other  
 
1 

 
0 

Total 
 
98 

 
94 

 
 

7.1 The reasons for complaint are broadly similar to last year. Delay/failed service 
continues to be the most common category of complaint.  The service needs 
to ensure that social workers comply with statutory timescales for visits, 
assessments, etc and that customers are advised of timescales.  A third of 
complaints about delays were not upheld suggesting that in some cases it is 
perception or miscommunication which has lead to the Client believing that 
there have been delays.  

 
 
8 SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS 
 
8.1 A process has been put in place to ensure that Service Improvements are 

identified, reviewed and implemented on a rolling quarterly basis.  A report 
each quarter is taken to the Directors management meeting to discuss case 
outcomes.  This leads to discussion on recurring themes and action plans are 
then formulated to deliver improvements.  

8.2 Appendix 1 details all the Children’s Social Care complaint cases where 
Service Improvements were identified in the past year and what actions have 
been taken. 

 
 
 
 
 

98



 
 

9 IMPLICATIONS 
 

Implications arise for the continuous improvement of children’s social care 
services and the annual performance assessment whereby it will be 
demonstrated that complaints are received and responded to in accordance 
with the statutory process and lessons learnt from complaints are fed into 
service improvements 
 

 
10 EXPECTED OUTCOMES 

 
It is expected that the panel will consider this report and the potential for 
further areas of scrutiny. 

 
11 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) 
Act 1985 
 

Statutory Instrument 2006 No.1738 The Children Act Representations 
Procedure (England) Regulations 2006 
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/SI/si2006/20061738.htm  
Getting the Best from Complaints – Social Care Complaints and 
Representations for Children, Young People and Others 
http://www.everychildmatters.gov.uk/resources-and-practice/IG00152/;  

 
12 APPENDICES 

 
Appendix 1 – Service Improvements 2012-13 
 

 
 

99



100

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
s
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

  

 
1
 

 

R
e
f 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

S
1
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

S
1
 A
c
ti
o
n
 D
e
ta
il
s
 

S
1
 S
v
c
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

S
1
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 D
e
li
v
e
re
d
 

A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
S
1
2
/0
6
2
 

A
d
o
p
te
e
 c
o
m
p
la
in
in
g
 t
h
a
t 

c
o
rr
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 h
e
r 
m
o
th
e
r 

h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 f
o
rw
a
rd
e
d
 t
o
 h
e
r.
 

U
p
h
e
ld
 

A
p
o
lo
g
y
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 &
 

s
e
n
t 
c
h
e
q
u
e
 f
o
r 
£
2
0
 

to
 c
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 

th
e
 l
o
s
t 
v
o
u
c
h
e
r.
 

T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
rb
o
x
 s
y
s
te
m
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
w
 

tw
o
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
, 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
if
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
m
 i
s
 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
, 
th
e
n
 t
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
is
 a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 p
o
s
t 
o
r 

e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
. 
 C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
th
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 i
n
c
id
e
n
t 
c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 

o
c
c
u
r 
a
g
a
in
. 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
ID
s
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
S
1
2
/0
3
2
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 t
e
a
m
 s
ti
ll 
n
o
t 
h
a
v
in
g
 a
 

O
T
 f
ro
m
 m
o
th
e
r 
w
h
o
 i
s
 s
tr
u
g
g
lin
g
 

to
 l
if
t 
h
e
r 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 s
o
n
 w
h
o
 

re
q
u
ir
e
s
 a
 m
o
b
ile
 h
o
is
t.
 

  

U
p
h
e
ld
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
O
T
 

a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
s
e
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
h
e
ld
 u
p
 b
y
 a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
O
T
 

    

A
d
u
lt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 O
T
 –
 n
o
 

w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
t 

  

C
la
re
 L
o
d
g
e
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
S
1
2
/0
7
8
 

H
a
n
d
lin
g
 o
f 
h
e
r 
d
a
u
g
h
te
rs
 c
a
re
 a
t 

C
la
re
 L
o
d
g
e
, 
la
c
k
 o
f 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 

h
e
r 
d
a
u
g
h
te
r 
e
tc
 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 U
p
h
e
ld
 

A
p
o
lo
g
ie
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 f
o
r 

s
o
m
e
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
ff
e
re
d
. 

W
h
e
n
 a
 p
a
re
n
t 
c
a
lls
 t
h
e
 u
n
it
 a
 c
a
ll 
b
a
c
k
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 

ta
k
e
n
, 
ra
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 k
e
e
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
a
lle
r 
h
o
ld
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 l
in
e
. 

  

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 

O
fs
te
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 ‘
g
o
o
d
’ 
w
it
h
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 

fe
a
tu
re
s
. 

 

D
IS
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
S
1
2
/0
8
5
 

U
n
h
a
p
p
y
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 m
a
n
n
e
r 
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 s
h
e
 w
a
s
 s
p
o
k
e
n
 t
o
 b
y
 a
 

w
o
rk
e
r.
 

N
o
t 
U
p
h
e
ld
 

V
is
it
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
a
m
ily
 t
o
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
s
 t
h
a
t 

h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 

a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 w
h
y
 i
t 

h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 d
o
n
e
 i
n
 t
h
is
 

m
a
n
n
e
r.
 

D
IS
 T
e
a
m
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 h
o
w
 t
o
 e
x
p
la
in
 t
h
e
ir
 r
o
le
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 

th
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
te
ra
c
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
. 

    

N
e
w
 T
e
a
m
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r.
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 h
e
ld
 a
b
o
u
t 
h
o
w
 t
o
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
c
a
s
e
w
o
rk
. 

F
a
m
il
y
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
S
1
2
/0
0
2
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 

in
fo
rm
e
d
 o
f 
a
 c
a
n
c
e
lle
d
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 

s
e
s
s
io
n
 

U
p
h
e
ld
 

 
S
o
c
ia
l W

o
rk
e
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
m
in
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
le
a
v
in
g
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 

w
it
h
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 a
 v
o
ic
e
 m
a
il 
is
 n
o
t 

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
, 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
a
s
s
e
d
 o
n
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 

p
a
re
n
ts
/ 
c
a
re
rs
. 

R
e
in
fo
rc
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
. 

T
h
e
 T
e
a
m
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
h
a
s
 n
o
w
 l
e
ft
. 

C
S
1
2
/0
0
4
 

U
n
h
a
p
p
y
 w
it
h
 S
W
 -
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
&
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 o
th
e
r 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
. 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 U
p
h
e
ld
 

 
C
a
re
rs
 r
e
m
in
d
e
d
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 s
e
e
k
 d
e
n
ta
l 
tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t 

p
ro
m
p
tl
y
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 u
rg
e
n
t 
is
s
u
e
s
. 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
a
n
c
e
lle
d
 b
y
 S
W
 i
f 
e
it
h
e
r 
p
a
rt
y
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
a
tt
e
n
d
 

A
ll 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
n
o
w
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 i
n
-h
o
u
s
e
; 

c
a
n
c
e
lla
ti
o
n
s
 d
ro
p
p
e
d
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
. 

  

C
S
1
2
/0
0
9
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
tt
it
u
d
e
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
o
f 
S
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
r 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 U
p
h
e
ld
 

A
p
o
lo
g
y
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

p
a
re
n
t 
fe
e
ls
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 

fo
r 
h
is
 s
o
n
 

S
W
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
m
in
d
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 f
a
th
e
r 
in
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 

m
a
k
in
g
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 h
is
 s
o
n
 

M
o
re
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
o
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 n
o
n
 -

re
s
id
e
n
t 
fa
th
e
r’
s
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 i
n
 

s
ta
ff
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

101



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
s
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

  

 
2
 

 

R
e
f 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

S
1
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

S
1
 A
c
ti
o
n
 D
e
ta
il
s
 

S
1
 S
v
c
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

S
1
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 D
e
li
v
e
re
d
  

C
S
1
2
/0
1
0
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
r 
a
n
d
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 

m
o
v
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A
d
u
lt
 S
C
 t
e
a
m
 

U
p
h
e
ld
 

 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
g
e
n
c
y
 p
ro
m
p
tl
y
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
t 
d
e
la
y
e
d
 b
y
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 

P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 r
e
in
fo
rc
e
d
 

C
S
1
2
/0
2
1
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 t
h
e
 

c
a
s
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 h
a
n
d
le
d
 b
y
 S
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 -
 B
e
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
C
S
C
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
u
ld
 c
e
a
s
e
 b
u
t 
th
is
 

is
 s
ti
ll 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 t
h
e
 

fa
th
e
r 
fe
e
ls
 h
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 t
re
a
te
d
 

b
y
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 U
p
h
e
ld
 

F
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
 

c
o
n
c
ili
a
ti
o
n
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 c
lie
n
t 
w
a
s
 o
ff
e
re
d
 

c
o
m
p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

d
e
la
y
 a
n
d
 s
tr
e
s
s
 

d
e
la
y
s
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
c
a
u
s
e
d
 

h
im
 

R
 &
 A
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 n
o
w
 m
o
re
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 d
a
ily
/w
e
e
k
ly
 

a
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 b
y
 A
D
 a
n
d
 

m
o
n
th
ly
 b
y
 D
M
T
 

    

R
e
f 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

S
1
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

S
1
 A
c
ti
o
n
 D
e
ta
il
s
 

S
1
 S
v
c
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

S
1
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 D
e
li
v
e
re
d
 

C
S
1
2
/0
5
7
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 n
o
t 
e
n
o
u
g
h
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 a
 

c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
, 
re
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 b
e
in
g
 p
o
s
tp
o
n
e
d
 t
o
 

a
n
o
th
e
r 
d
a
te
. 
N
o
t 
h
a
p
p
y
 w
it
h
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 

h
e
r 
fa
m
ily
. 

U
p
h
e
ld
 

A
p
o
lo
g
y
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 f
o
r 

in
c
o
n
v
e
n
ie
n
c
e
 &
 

d
is
tr
e
s
s
 c
a
u
s
e
d
 b
y
 

h
a
v
in
g
 t
o
 r
e
-s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 

c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 d
u
e
 t
o
 n
o
t 

e
n
o
u
g
h
 s
ta
ff
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 

c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 n
o
t 

b
e
in
g
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
s
ta
ff
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
tt
e
n
d
 c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
, 
o
r 

p
ro
v
id
e
 c
o
v
e
r 
if
 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 &
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
re
p
o
rt
s
 a
re
 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
im
e
. 

T
e
a
m
 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
n
s
tr
u
c
te
d
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 

a
ll 
C
P
 C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 

C
S
1
2
/0
6
4
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

S
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 d
e
p
t 
–
 d
e
la
y
s
 i
n
 

re
m
o
v
in
g
 a
 p
a
re
n
t 
w
h
o
 w
a
s
 a
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 h
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 t
im
e
 t
h
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 d
o
 a
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 f
a
m
ily
. 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 U
p
h
e
ld
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 

a
p
o
lo
g
is
in
g
 f
o
r 

d
e
la
y
s
, 
n
o
t 
a
c
ti
n
g
 

p
ro
m
p
tl
y
 e
tc
 

A
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 c
a
s
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 

e
n
a
b
le
 C
h
ild
re
n
's
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 t
o
 l
e
a
rn
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

fu
tu
re
. 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 

b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 

C
S
1
2
/0
6
8
 

T
h
e
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 

fa
ile
d
 t
o
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
 t
h
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
ir
 m
o
th
e
r 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 U
p
h
e
ld
 

A
p
o
lo
g
y
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 S
W
 

re
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 C
P
 p
la
n
 

n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 f
u
lly
 

fo
llo
w
e
d
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 

fa
ilu
re
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 d
u
e
 t
o
 

s
o
m
e
 n
o
n
-c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 m
o
th
e
r.
 

T
ry
 t
o
 d
e
c
re
a
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 S
W
 

L
e
s
s
 a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
; 

re
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

le
s
s
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
a
l 
p
h
a
s
e
s
 

C
S
1
2
/0
7
6
 

F
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 u
p
d
a
te
 c
o
m
p
la
in
a
n
t 

a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
c
o
n
ta
c
t.
 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 U
p
h
e
ld
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 w
it
h
 S
W
 

A
ll 
P
a
rt
ie
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 o
f 
c
o
u
rt
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 e
tc
 

R
e
in
fo
rc
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 a
n
d
 

le
tt
e
r 
fr
o
m
 l
e
g
a
l 

     

102



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
s
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

  

 
3
 

 

 

R
e
f 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

S
1
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

S
1
 A
c
ti
o
n
 D
e
ta
il
s
 

S
1
 S
v
c
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

S
1
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 D
e
li
v
e
re
d
  

L
e
a
v
in
g
 C
a
re
 

 
 

 
 

  

C
S
1
2
/0
3
7
 

U
n
h
a
p
p
y
 t
o
 b
e
 m
o
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 h
is
 

c
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 a
s
 h
e
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
fe
e
l 

re
a
d
y
 f
o
r 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 

U
p
h
e
ld
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 

m
o
v
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 -
 

c
o
m
p
la
in
a
n
t 
n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

to
 m
o
v
e
 o
u
t 
o
f 
h
is
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

W
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 m
o
v
e
 d
o
e
s
 h
a
p
p
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 t
h
e
 m
o
v
e
 w
ill
 

b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 f
u
lly
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
a
n
d
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 h
im
 s
e
tt
le
 i
n
to
 n
e
w
 

h
o
m
e
. 

P
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 P
A
S
P
 –
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 
In
 a
ll 
c
a
s
e
s
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
rs
o
n
’s
 v
ie
w
 s
o
u
g
h
t 
a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t.
 

  

L
o
o
k
e
d
 A
ft
e
r 

C
h
il
d
re
n
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
S
1
2
/0
4
1
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 c
a
n
c
e
lla
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 h
is
 b
ro
th
e
r.
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
c
a
p
tu
re
d
 b
y
 I
R
O
. 

U
p
h
e
ld
 

A
p
o
lo
g
y
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
a
s
 c
a
n
c
e
lle
d
 

a
t 
s
h
o
rt
 n
o
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 

m
o
th
e
r 
w
a
s
 n
o
t 

n
o
ti
fi
e
d
 

A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
n
e
x
t 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 

R
e
in
fo
rc
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 -

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
S
1
2
/0
4
3
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
ra
is
e
d
 b
y
 c
h
ild
’s
 f
o
s
te
r 

c
a
re
r 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 a
 d
e
la
y
 w
it
h
 S
W
 

s
ig
n
in
g
 a
 c
o
n
s
e
n
t 
fo
rm
 f
o
r 
a
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
tr
ip
. 

U
p
h
e
ld
 

S
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

s
ig
n
e
d
 f
o
rm
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
e
 c
h
ild
 c
o
u
ld
 g
o
 o
n
 

th
e
 t
ri
p
 

In
 f
u
tu
re
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
a
n
d
 f
o
s
te
r 
c
a
re
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
m
in
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
fo
s
te
r 
c
a
re
rs
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
le
g
a
te
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 

s
ig
n
 c
o
n
s
e
n
t 
fo
rm
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
tr
ip
s
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

     

C
S
1
2
/0
4
4
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 

in
fo
rm
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
h
e
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
's
 S
W
 

w
a
s
 n
o
t 
in
 w
o
rk
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
 

d
e
la
y
in
g
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 h
e
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
. 

U
p
h
e
ld
 

A
p
o
lo
g
y
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 -
 c
a
s
e
 

n
o
w
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 a
 

te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 s
w
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
s
e
s
 a
re
 s
w
if
tl
y
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 S
W
 

w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
S
W
 i
s
 o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 o
ff
ic
e
. 
E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 a
re
 p
a
s
s
e
d
 o
n
 p
ro
m
p
tl
y
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
o
w
 i
n
 F
S
 t
o
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 

   

C
S
1
2
/0
5
3
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 n
o
t 
re
c
e
iv
in
g
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
h
e
r 
s
o
n
. 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 U
p
h
e
ld
 

A
p
o
lo
g
y
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 f
o
r 

p
o
o
r 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

c
a
s
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 F
a
m
ily
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
e
a
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

L
o
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
 

te
a
m
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rs
 h
a
p
p
e
n
 s
m
o
o
th
ly
 a
n
d
 p
a
re
n
ts
/ 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 a
re
 k
e
p
t 
in
fo
rm
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 

T
ra
n
s
fe
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
a
k
e
s
 p
la
c
e
 w
e
e
k
ly
 

w
it
h
 T
e
a
m
 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

   

C
S
1
2
/0
7
9
 

c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 h
e
r 
s
o
n
, 
b
e
in
g
 

in
fo
rm
e
d
 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

e
tc
 a
t 
la
te
 n
o
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 

c
o
n
ta
c
t/
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 e
m
a
ils
 s
e
n
t 

to
 S
W
. 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 U
p
h
e
ld
 

A
p
o
lo
g
y
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 f
o
r 

n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 n
o
ti
fi
e
d
 o
f 

th
e
 c
a
n
c
e
lle
d
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

b
y
 p
h
o
n
e
 (
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

c
a
n
c
e
lle
d
 l
a
te
 n
o
ti
c
e
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
) 

W
h
e
n
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
t 
la
te
 n
o
ti
c
e
 p
a
re
n
ts
 e
tc
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 n
o
ti
fi
e
d
 b
y
 p
h
o
n
e
 n
o
t 
e
m
a
il.
 

R
e
in
fo
rc
e
 g
o
o
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
c
a
re
 

    

C
S
1
2
/0
9
1
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 

in
fo
rm
e
d
 a
b
o
u
t 
v
is
it
s
 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 U
p
h
e
ld
 

A
p
o
lo
g
y
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m
is
-

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
  

A
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
p
la
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

  

103



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
s
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

  

 
4
 

 

R
e
f 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

S
1
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

S
1
 A
c
ti
o
n
 D
e
ta
il
s
 

S
1
 S
v
c
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

S
1
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 D
e
li
v
e
re
d
  

P
e
rm

a
n
a
n
c
y
 

&
 I
n
 C
a
re
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
S
1
1
/0
8
9
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
is
s
u
e
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 a
 

fo
s
te
r 
c
h
ild
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 l
iv
in
g
 w
it
h
 

th
e
m
 -
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 f
ro
m
 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 

U
p
h
e
ld
 

A
p
o
lo
g
y
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 f
o
r 

P
S
M
 m
in
u
te
s
 n
o
t 

b
e
in
g
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
n
d
 

S
W
 n
o
t 
v
is
it
in
g
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
fr
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 

e
n
o
u
g
h
 

1
) 
R
o
b
u
s
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 t
a
k
in
g
 

a
n
d
 p
a
s
s
in
g
 o
n
 o
f 
m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
2
) 
S
ta
ff
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
m
in
d
e
d
 o
f 

th
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
P
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
3
) 
S
ta
ff
 

w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
m
in
d
e
d
 o
f 
th
e
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 m
in
im
u
m
 f
re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 o
f 

v
is
it
s
 t
o
 C
IC
 

N
e
w
 f
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

C
S
1
2
/0
0
7
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 a
 v
id
e
o
 l
in
k
 

w
it
h
 h
e
r 
g
ra
n
d
d
a
u
g
h
te
r 
b
e
in
g
 

c
a
n
c
e
lle
d
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
p
ri
o
r 
n
o
ti
c
e
 

U
p
h
e
ld
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 n
o
ti
fi
e
d
 o
f 
c
a
n
c
e
lle
d
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 

s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 

N
o
te
d
. 
R
e
in
fo
rc
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
. 

C
S
1
2
/0
2
5
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
fr
o
m
 f
o
s
te
r 
p
a
re
n
ts
 

a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 w
a
y
 t
h
e
ir
 F
o
s
te
r 
C
h
ild
 

w
a
s
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 U
p
h
e
ld
 

A
p
o
lo
g
y
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 a
n
d
 

fo
s
te
ri
n
g
 p
a
n
e
l 

re
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
ti
m
e
 t
o
 r
e
a
d
, 

d
ig
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 

w
ri
tt
e
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

E
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
F
o
s
te
r 
C
a
re
rs
 a
re
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 

re
a
d
, 
d
ig
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
. 

A
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
n
o
w
 g
o
e
s
 

to
 P
A
S
P
 p
a
n
e
l 

R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
&
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

 
 

 
 

 

C
S
1
2
/0
4
8
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 a
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 

m
a
d
e
 a
b
o
u
t 
a
 c
h
ild
's
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 U
p
h
e
ld
 

 
W
o
rk
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
a
re
n
ts
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
m
 

to
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
ir
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
th
e
ir
 c
h
ild
re
n
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 

In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
s
e
w
o
rk
. 

C
S
1
2
/0
5
5
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
h
e
r 
c
h
ild
 

U
p
h
e
ld
 

A
p
o
lo
g
y
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 f
o
r 

lim
it
e
d
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
b
y
 s
w
. 

N
e
w
 S
W
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
, 
fu
tu
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
/ 
re
p
o
rt
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

m
o
re
 b
a
la
n
c
e
d
. 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 

In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
s
e
w
o
rk
. 

C
S
1
2
/0
9
0
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
tt
it
u
d
e
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
o
f 
S
W
 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 U
p
h
e
ld
 

S
W
 s
p
o
k
e
n
 t
o
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 l
a
te
n
e
s
s
 -
 

a
p
o
lo
g
y
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

F
a
m
ili
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
te
d
 i
f 
S
W
 i
s
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 l
a
te
 a
n
d
 

o
ff
e
re
d
 a
n
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
t 
ti
m
e
/ 
d
a
te
 

R
e
in
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 g
o
o
d
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
c
a
re
 

    

R
e
f 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

S
1
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

S
1
 A
c
ti
o
n
 D
e
ta
il
s
 

S
1
 S
v
c
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

S
1
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 D
e
li
v
e
re
d
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

 
 

 
 

  

C
S
1
2
/0
7
2
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
tt
it
u
d
e
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 f
o
s
te
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 I
R
O
 

P
a
rt
ia
lly
 U
p
h
e
ld
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
in
te
rv
ie
w
e
d
 

C
o
rr
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
c
e
/ 
e
m
a
ils
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 

s
e
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
c
a
u
s
e
 u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

d
is
tr
e
s
s
/ 
c
o
n
fu
s
io
n
 

In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
s
e
w
o
rk
 i
s
s
u
e
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 

 

104



CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 7 

9 SEPTEMBER 2013 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Solicitor to the Council 
 
Contact Officer(s) – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer 
Contact Details - Tel:  452508 email: paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

ESTABLISHMENT OF A SCRUTINY TASK AND FINISH GROUP FOR IMPROVING 
THE EDUCATIONAL OUTCOMES FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE IN 
PETERBOROUGH 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 

 
The purpose of this report is for the Committee to consider and agree the Terms of Reference 
and membership of a Task and Finish Group. The proposal to established the group results  
from a discussion at the Group Representative planning meeting to undertake further scrutiny 
and review of the education service within Childrens Services during the period of significant 
change in the role of the Local Authority in Education.   
  

2. 
 
2.1 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee approves: 
 

1. The Terms of Reference for the task and finish group 
2. The membership of the Task and Finish Group pending further nominations from group 

leaders. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 Since 2012, an informal task and finish group has been working with officers around improving 
the committees understanding of Education performance and supporting the authority with the 
changes it is proposing in light of the changing role of local authorities in supporting education.  
To increase accountability around education, it is proposed to formalising this group into a task 
finish group.  
   

3.2 
 

DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Following discussion at a group reps meeting on the 29th July, it was proposed to set up a task / 
finish group to cover the following areas  -  
 

Terms Of Reference 
 
It is proposed the task and finish group considers the following areas -   
 

• Review and challenge school performance including exam results, Ofsted reports, 
demographic/socio-economic data, governance and local authority own view on schools 
in line with the School Improvement Strategy.   

• Monitoring of the performance of pupils with pupil premium funding (in receipt of free 
school meals).  

• Consulting upon key changes to education prior to sharing at the full scrutiny committee.   
 

105



3.3 MEMBERSHIP AND MEETINGS 
 

 The current membership of the informal working group is -  
 

Councillor Day 
Councillor Fower 
Councillor Shearman 
Councillor Saltmarsh 
Alistair Kingsley  

 
It is suggested this group will form the basis of the task and finish group given their knowledge 
and experience that has already been developed in the meetings to date.   In addition, the 
Senior Governance Officer will write to all Group Secretaries to request for further nominations 
for membership.   
 
Officer membership will vary in line with changes in the focus and topic of the committee.  It is 
proposed the group meets on a termly basis.  The task and finish group may consider 
information to form part of the submitted reports to the full committee.  A full list of dates for 
meetings will be developed once agreement on the committee is reached.     
 

4. NEXT STEPS 
 

4.1 If the Terms of Reference and membership of the Task and Finish Group are agreed by the 
Committee then the Task and Finish Group will proceed for an initial period of 12 months 
reporting back to the committee in March 2014 and September 2014 with an overview of the 
work it has undertaken to date.   
 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) 
Act 1985 

 
5.1 

 
None 

 

106



CREATING OPPORTUNITIES & TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 8 

9 SEPTEMBER 2013 Public Report 
 

Report of the Executive Director of Children’s Services  
 
Contact Officer(s) – Sue Westcott  
Contact Details - 863606 
 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME  
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the committee on the Improvement programme since the last 

committee meeting in July 2013. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 To note the progress made with continued improvement. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 The Sustainable Community Strategy identifies “Improving Health” and “Supporting Vulnerable 
People” as priorities. Improvement in Children’s Social Care is key to the delivery of these priorities. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 Following an Ofsted Inspection in August 2011, the Council has engaged in a programme to secure 
rapid improvement. This improvement will be driven by three key elements: 
 

• The Children’s Services Single Delivery Plan  

• The Ofsted Action Plan which focuses effort on what we must prioritise 

• The leadership of Members and officers in delivering the required changes 
. 

4.2 The Council’s progress is closely monitored both internally and externally by this Committee, the 
Scrutiny Task and Finish Group and the External Improvement Board. 
 

5. 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

KEY ISSUES 
 

Highlights 
 
  

• Slight decrease in referrals 

• Continued decrease in re–referrals  

• Initial Assessments in timescales reduced 

• Number of CAFs increased 

• Raising quality  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

107



5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Referrals 

Number of referrals per month

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

A
u
g
-1
1

S
e
p
-1
1

O
c
t-
1
1

N
o
v
-1
1

D
e
c
-1
1

J
a
n
-1
2

F
e
b
-1
2

M
a
r-
1
2

A
p
r-
1
2

M
a
y
-1
2

J
u
n
-1
2

J
u
l-
1
2

A
u
g
-1
2

S
e
p
-1
2

O
c
t-
1
2

N
o
v
-1
2

D
e
c
-1
2

J
a
n
-1
3

F
e
b
-1
3

M
a
r-
1
3

A
p
r-
1
3

M
a
y
-1
3

J
u
n
-1
3

J
u
l-
1
3

No. of referrals per month Monthly Target Performance management and information, 02 Aug 2013 

 
 
The number of referrals has continued to show a decrease with a reduction in July to 208 from 214. 
The rate is 616.7, being the lowest rate seen since January 2012.  
 
Re-referrals  

Number of re-referrals per month

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

A
u
g
-1
1

S
e
p
-1
1

O
c
t-
1
1

N
o
v
-1
1

D
e
c
-1
1

J
a
n
-1
2

F
e
b
-1
2

M
a
r-
1
2

A
p
r-
1
2

M
a
y
-1
2

J
u
n
-1
2

J
u
l-
1
2

A
u
g
-1
2

S
e
p
-1
2

O
c
t-
1
2

N
o
v
-1
2

D
e
c
-1
2

J
a
n
-1
3

F
e
b
-1
3

M
a
r-
1
3

A
p
r-
1
3

M
a
y
-1
3

J
u
n
-1
3

J
u
l-
1
3

% of re-referrals per month % of re-referrals target Performance management and information, 02 Aug 2013 

 
 
 
Out of the 208 referrals, 47 were repeats within 12 months (22.6%). This takes the re-referral year to 
date percentage to 21.7% which is 2.2% lower than target for the second consecutive month and now 
well within target. 
 

108



5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Initial Assessments 
 

Initial Assessments completed within 10 days of Referral

1
7
9

1
7
3

2
1
1

2
5
4

2
2
9

2
1
3

1
9
5

2
1
7

2
1
3

2
3
1

2
5
4

2
0
3

2
2
2

1
7
1

1
6
8

1
9
9

2
4
6

2
0
6

1
6
8

1
4
3

1
8
1

1
7
6

1
6
9

2
2
4

1
6
2

1
3
4

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13

# of IA's

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

% in timescale

Completed In timescales % on time YTD Performance management and information, 02 Aug 2013 

 
 
 
 

Initial Assessments in progress but outside of timescale (10 working days)

1
2

1
3

1
6

2
3

2
1

2
1

1
7

1
8

1
9

9 7 5 1
2

1
2

2 1 0 6 2 4 2 5 1
1

2
6

2
2

2
2

2
1

4 3 3 3 9 6 5 8 1
4

1
9

3
6

1
5

2
3

8

0

10

20

30

40

2
1
/1
0
/2
0
1
2

2
8
/1
0
/2
0
1
2

0
4
/1
1
/2
0
1
2

1
1
/1
1
/2
0
1
2

1
8
/1
1
/2
0
1
2

2
5
/1
1
/2
0
1
2

0
2
/1
2
/2
0
1
3

0
9
/1
2
/2
0
1
3

1
6
/1
2
/2
0
1
3

2
3
/1
2
/2
0
1
3

3
0
/1
2
/2
0
1
2

0
6
/0
1
/2
0
1
3

1
3
/0
1
/2
0
1
3

2
0
/0
1
/2
0
1
3

2
7
/0
1
/2
0
1
3

0
3
/0
2
/2
0
1
3

1
0
/0
2
/2
0
1
3

1
7
/0
2
/2
0
1
3

2
4
/0
2
/2
0
1
3

0
3
/0
3
/2
0
1
3

1
0
/0
3
/2
0
1
3

1
7
/0
3
/2
0
1
3

2
4
/0
3
/2
0
1
3

3
1
/0
3
/2
0
1
3

0
7
/0
4
/2
0
1
3

1
4
/0
4
/2
0
1
3

2
1
/0
4
/2
0
1
3

2
8
/0
4
/2
0
1
3

0
5
/0
5
/2
0
1
3

1
2
/0
5
/2
0
1
3

1
9
/0
5
/2
0
1
3

2
6
/0
5
/2
0
1
3

0
2
/0
6
/2
0
1
3

0
9
/0
6
/2
0
1
3

1
6
/0
6
/2
0
1
3

2
3
/0
6
/2
0
1
3

3
0
/0
6
/2
0
1
3

0
7
/0
7
/2
0
1
3

1
4
/0
7
/2
0
1
3

2
1
/0
7
/2
0
1
3

2
8
/0
7
/2
0
1
3

Number outside 10 w days
Performance management and information, 02 Aug 2013  

 
 
222 initial assessments were completed in the month, of which 134 were in time with 88 outside. This 
is 1.9% below the year to date target, but significantly lower than this time last year when the 
percentage was 97.6% in timescale. This is down to the reconfiguration of the front door with the 
move to an enhanced screening function and staff moving to the Family Support Team. There had 
also been two members of staff leave to a neighbouring authority for additional money and one 
permanent member of staff departing for personal reasons. This change and staff shortage impacted 
upon timescales. The Head of Service is working hard to restore the performance.  There are 
currently 36 unallocated cases owing to staff shortage and these are being allocated. We have now 
recruited agency staff to fill the gaps in the service. 
 

  

109



5.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Core Assessments  
  

Core Assessments completed within 35 days of assessment start

1
2
4

1
1
6

1
2
4

1
3
5

1
5
4

1
0
3

1
6
2

1
4
1

1
3
9

1
5
6

1
5
4

1
4
2

2
1
9

1
0
6

1
0
0

1
0
7

9
3

1
1
4

7
7

9
5

9
9

9
7

1
1
5

1
1
3

1
1
3

1
4
8

0

50

100

150

200

250

Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13

# of CAs

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

% in timescale

Completed In timescales % in time YTD Performance management and information, 02 Aug 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Core Assessments in progress but outside of timescale (35 working days from assessment start)

1
2

1
3

1
3

1
5

2
1

1
3

2
0

1
9

1
6

1
9

1
9

2
7

1
6

2
8

2
7

1
8

1
5

1
0

1
3

1
0

1
4

1
3

1
5

1
2

9 1
1

1
5

2
4

2
0

1
4

7 5 6 6 1
1

1
5

1
2

1
5

2
3

1
9

2
9

0

10

20

30

40

2
1
/1
0
/2
0
1
2

2
8
/1
0
/2
0
1
2

0
4
/1
1
/2
0
1
2

1
1
/1
1
/2
0
1
2

1
8
/1
1
/2
0
1
2

2
5
/1
1
/2
0
1
2

0
2
/1
2
/2
0
1
3

0
9
/1
2
/2
0
1
3

1
6
/1
2
/2
0
1
3

2
3
/1
2
/2
0
1
3

3
0
/1
2
/2
0
1
2

0
6
/0
1
/2
0
1
3

1
3
/0
1
/2
0
1
3

2
0
/0
1
/2
0
1
3

2
7
/0
1
/2
0
1
3

0
3
/0
2
/2
0
1
3

1
0
/0
2
/2
0
1
3

1
7
/0
2
/2
0
1
3

2
4
/0
2
/2
0
1
3

0
3
/0
3
/2
0
1
3

1
0
/0
3
/2
0
1
3

1
7
/0
3
/2
0
1
3

2
4
/0
3
/2
0
1
3

3
1
/0
3
/2
0
1
3

0
7
/0
4
/2
0
1
3

1
4
/0
4
/2
0
1
3

2
1
/0
4
/2
0
1
3

2
8
/0
4
/2
0
1
3

0
5
/0
5
/2
0
1
3

1
2
/0
5
/2
0
1
3

1
9
/0
5
/2
0
1
3

2
6
/0
5
/2
0
1
3

0
2
/0
6
/2
0
1
3

0
9
/0
6
/2
0
1
3

1
6
/0
6
/2
0
1
3

2
3
/0
6
/2
0
1
3

3
0
/0
6
/2
0
1
3

0
7
/0
7
/2
0
1
3

1
4
/0
7
/2
0
1
3

2
1
/0
7
/2
0
1
3

2
8
/0
7
/2
0
1
3

Number outside 35 w days
Performance management and information, 02 Aug  2013  

 
 
124 core assessments were completed in the month of which 106 were in timescale. The year to date 
figure for Core Assessment timescales is 77.6% which is above target by 2.5%, although it is lower 
than last year at 89.3%. The number of core assessments remains relatively stable. 
 
 
 
 

110



5.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CAFs 

Number of CAFs per month

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

A
u
g
-1
1

S
e
p
-1
1

O
c
t-
1
1

N
o
v
-1
1

D
e
c
-1
1

J
a
n
-1
2

F
e
b
-1
2

M
a
r-
1
2

A
p
r-
1
2

M
a
y
-1
2

J
u
n
-1
2

J
u
l-
1
2

A
u
g
-1
2

S
e
p
-1
2

O
c
t-
1
2

N
o
v
-1
2

D
e
c
-1
2

J
a
n
-1
3

F
e
b
-1
3

M
a
r-
1
3

A
p
r-
1
3

M
a
y
-1
3

J
u
n
-1
3

J
u
l-
1
3

No. of CAFs per month Monthly Target Performance management and information, 02 Aug 2013 

 
 
The number of CAFs has increased by 25 from the previous month to 80 completed. The rate is 
125.1 per 10,000 which is 54.8 % higher than our target of 80.8%. 
 
This illustrates that more assessments and interventions with family are taking place at an earlier 
stage and/or that need is being identified early on. 
 
Child Protection Plans 
 

Number of children with CPP per month

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

A
u
g
-1
1

S
e
p
-1
1

O
c
t-
1
1

N
o
v
-1
1

D
e
c
-1
1

J
a
n
-1
2

F
e
b
-1
2

M
a
r-
1
2

A
p
r-
1
2

M
a
y
-1
2

J
u
n
-1
2

J
u
l-
1
2

A
u
g
-1
2

S
e
p
-1
2

O
c
t-
1
2

N
o
v
-1
2

D
e
c
-1
2

J
a
n
-1
3

F
e
b
-1
3

M
a
r-
1
3

A
p
r-
1
3

M
a
y
-1
3

J
u
n
-1
3

J
u
l-
1
3

No. of children with CPP - month snapshot Monthly Target Performance management and information, 02 Aug 2013 

 
 
The number of Child Protection Plans has continued to drop, now at 201 (from 227 in June 2013). 
The rate is 44.7 and is 1.1% above target. This number now needs to hold steady after a fall in July 
2012 and a subsequent rise in January – May 2013. The numbers have stabilised owing to better 
gate-keeping by the CP chairs, ensuring children in need plans are in place and setting the decision 
making for conferences with team managers. 

111



5.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

5.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.10 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Children Looked After  
 

Number of children looked after per month

290

300

310

320

330

340

350

360

370

A
u
g
-1
1

S
e
p
-1
1

O
c
t-
1
1

N
o
v
-1
1

D
e
c
-1
1

J
a
n
-1
2

F
e
b
-1
2

M
a
r-
1
2

A
p
r-
1
2

M
a
y
-1
2

J
u
n
-1
2

J
u
l-
1
2

A
u
g
-1
2

S
e
p
-1
2

O
c
t-
1
2

N
o
v
-1
2

D
e
c
-1
2

J
a
n
-1
3

F
e
b
-1
3

M
a
r-
1
3

A
p
r-
1
3

M
a
y
-1
3

J
u
n
-1
3

J
u
l-
1
3

No. of children looked after - month snapshot Monthly Target Performance management and information, 02 Aug 2013  
 
A rise in the number of children subject to a Child Protection Plan generally denotes a rise in the 
number of children becoming accommodated as the threshold is lowered for care. The number of 
children accommodated at the end of June is at 360, a decrease of 2 compared to the previous 
month. The rate at 80.0 per 10,000 is 8.1% above target. We are working hard to stabilise this figure 
by ensuring that all assessments and support is in place prior to implementing the PLO, which is the 
spirit of the legislation. This needs to reduce by 6% to reach our target which is consistent with 
statistical neighbours. 
 
Restructure 
 
Plans are being developed to re-shape the referral, assessment and family support service, the first 
stage of which was implemented in June, with some of the team managers changing teams and 
additional resources being placed into the screening of contacts.  

 
It is proposed that there will be an ‘Access’ team that will more robustly screen contacts and both 
gather and share information as appropriate, leading to more consistent and timely threshold 
decisions.  Contacts not resulting in a social care assessment will receive a proactive response that 
might include: the provision of information, advice, or guidance; onward referral; or re-direction.   The 
team will also conduct S47 Strategy discussions and hold S47 enquiries. 

 
Assessment and Family Support teams will be developed utilising much of the resources currently in 
R&A and aligned to Locality boundaries in order to strengthen partnership and locality-based working 
and will hold all non-S47 assessments and casework.  This will reduce the number of currently built-in 
transfers between teams and changes in case worker and ultimately lead to a better experience for 
children and families. Apart from moving much of the assessment activity (S17) currently held in R&A 
this means little disruption to the family support teams. A single assessment tool is being developed. 
 
Quality Assurance  
 
The quality of the service is measured through: 
 

1. Senior Managers Monthly case File  Audit 
2. Discrete themed audits 
3. Dip sample of Quality Assurance Exemplars on each case file 
4. Dip sample of contacts and referrals  
5. Individual case file audit 
6. Practice Alerts from CP chairs and IROs to performance meetings 
7. PSCB multi agency audits 

112



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.11 
 
 
 
 
5.12 
 
 
 
 
 
5.13 

8. Feedback for Child Protection CONFERENCES 
9. Feedback from families  
10. Safeguarding Assurance days  

 
Some highlights from this activity 
 
Since April 2012, between 20-25 cases have been audited each month by Senior Managers from a 
range of different categories from children in need to child protection. The findings of this report will 
be presented to the next meeting of the External Improvement Board. There is only one case which is 
now deemed inadequate and requires remedial action. This is being completed by August 2013. 
 
The Audit of Leaving Care Services will be presented to the Corporate Parenting Group and 
illustrates that there has been an improvement in the completion of care plans, but that supervision 
cannot be evidenced. 
 
The feedback from Child Protection Conferences is very positive with 100% of the parents saying 
they felt supported by the chair and 84% of respondents said that the social worker had shared their 
report with them prior to the conference. This is an increase from 62% in the last report measuring 
performance between 1st March and 31st May 2013. 
 
Feedback from Child Protection Conferences is reported to the Board.  
 
Multi – agency audit 
 
There has been an audit of ten cases where the child had been the subject of a CP plan for a second 
and third time. The audit concluded that the decision making was consistent and the decision to 
remove the child from a plan was based on clear evidence of improved family relations and 
functioning.  
 
Safeguarding Assurance Day 
 
Our Safeguarding Assurance Day was held in the Looked After Children’s team and the feedback 
from staff was positive. 
 
Changes to ICS  
 
Changes are being made to the ICS forms using the tool, Form Designer. This should greatly cut 
down and simplify the amount of form filling and duplication for social workers. 
 
 
Early Intervention and Prevention 
 

• Cherry Lodge and The Manor, our two homes which provide residential care and Short 
Breaks for children with disabilities have achieved the grade of ‘good’ in recent Ofsted 
inspections.  Clare Lodge, our secure home for young women was also graded ‘good’ by 
Ofsted. 

 

• Our local health commissioners (CCG) have agreed to look at ways we can jointly 
commission services to get better quality and value for the money we spend on children, stop 
any duplication and provide more joined up seamless services with better outcomes for 
children.  

 

• We made our first Payment By Results claim for Connecting Families.  We have worked with 
165 families and identified anther 177 families who look likely to meet the Connecting Families 
criteria; we are currently matching these.  

 

• Through the ‘Children and Families bill’, we have a statutory duty to publish what we offer 
children and families with disabilities around Short Breaks, family information and special 
educational needs.  We have developed our local offer on Short Breaks and activities to help 

113



and support families, and consulted with local parent carer groups on this. In the autumn, we 
are planning two stakeholder events with Healthwatch and parent carer forums to develop our 
offer around special educational needs with all partners and, in particular, a single 
assessment that builds on the Common Assessment Framework (CAF) that includes health 
and educational needs.  

 

• Health are now actively working with child and adolescent services to address the long waiting 
lists for treatment that we have been experiencing. It is proposed the waiting lists will be 
cleared by November 2013. 

 
6. IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1 The cost of the improvement programme can be met from within existing budgets. Resources are 

available to secure improvement in the immediate and longer term.  
 

6.2 The Secretary of State has the power to issue a statutory notice if he is not satisfied that sufficient 
progress is being made. 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 Partner agencies, parents and children will be involved in the improvement activity. 
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 This Committee will continue to receive a regular update on progress and the Task and Finish Group 
will meet quarterly to support the improvement. 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 
1985 
 

9.1 • Ofsted Inspection of Safeguarding: Peterborough 6th September 2011  

• Ofsted Unannounced Inspection of contact referral and assessment arrangements 3rd March 
2011 

• Ofsted Safeguarding and Looked after Children Inspection: Peterborough 21st May 2010 

• Ofsted Local Authority Arrangements for the Protection of Children: inspection report 8 March 
2013 

 
10. APPENDICES 

 

10.1 None 
 

 

114



CREATING OPPORUTNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 9 

9 SEPTEMBER 2013  
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Solicitor to the Council 
 
Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny 
Contact Details – 01733 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE KEY DECISIONS 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This is a regular report to the Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities Scrutiny 

Committee outlining the content of the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Committee identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The latest version of the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions is attached at Appendix 1.  
The Notice contains those key decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the 
Cabinet or individual Cabinet Member(s) can take and any new key decisions to be taken after 
20 September 2013. 
 

3.2 The information in the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions provides the Committee with the 
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these key decisions, or to 
request further information. 
 

3.3 If the Committee wished to examine any of the key decisions, consideration would need to be 
given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme. 
 

3.4 
 

As the Notice is published fortnightly any version of the Notice published after dispatch of this 
agenda will be tabled at the meeting. 
 

4. CONSULTATION 
 

4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Notice of Intention to 
Take Key Decisions. 
 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
 None 

 
6. APPENDICES 

 

 Appendix 1 – Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions 
 
 

115



116

This page is intentionally left blank



  
P
E
T
E
R
B
O
R
O
U
G
H
 C
IT
Y
  

C
O
U
N
C
IL
’S
 N
O
T
IC
E
 O
F
 

IN
T
E
N
T
IO
N
 T
O
 T
A
K
E
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 
   

P
U
B
L
IS
H
E
D
: 
 2
2
 A
U
G
U
S
T
 2
0
1
3
 

117



 

N
O
T
IC
E
 O
F
 I
N
T
E
N
T
IO
N
 T
O
 T
A
K
E
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

A
B

 

In
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
in
g
 2
8
 d
a
y
s
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 d
a
te
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
is
 n
o
ti
c
e
, 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
n
d
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' o
n
 t
h
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
. 
 K
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 i
n
 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o
f 

£
5
0
0
,0
0
0
 a
n
d
/o
r 
h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
a
rd
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 If
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
b
in
e
t 
m
e
m
b
e
r,
 t
h
e
 n
a
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
a
b
in
e
t 
m
e
m
b
e
r 
is
 s
h
o
w
n
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
, 
in
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r’
s
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
. 
If
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t,
 i
t’
s
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
re
 a
s
 l
is
te
d
 b
e
lo
w
: 

C
llr
 C
e
re
s
te
 (
L
e
a
d
e
r)
; 
C
llr
 E
ls
e
y
; 
C
llr
 F
it
z
g
e
ra
ld
; 
C
llr
 H
o
ld
ic
h
; 
C
llr
 N
o
rt
h
; 
C
llr
 S
e
a
to
n
; 
C
llr
 S
c
o
tt
; 
a
n
d
 C
llr
 W

a
ls
h
. 
 

 T
h
is
 N
o
ti
c
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
n
 o
u
tl
in
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 m

o
n
th
 a
n
d
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 o
n
 a
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 b
a
s
is
. 
 E
a
c
h
 n
e
w
 n
o
ti
c
e
 

s
u
p
e
rs
e
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 n
o
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
te
m
s
 m

a
y
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
v
e
r 
in
to
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 n
o
ti
c
e
s
. 
 A
n
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 N
o
ti
c
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 w
h
ic
h
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 a
t 
th
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
f 
th
e
 N
o
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 A
le
x
 D
a
y
n
e
s
, 
S
e
n
io
r 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 T
o
w
n
 

H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
8
3
).
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
ly
, 
y
o
u
 c
a
n
 s
u
b
m
it
 y
o
u
r 
v
ie
w
s
 v
ia
 e
-m

a
il 
to
 a
le
x
a
n
d
e
r.
d
a
y
n
e
s
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 

te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
4
7
. 

 W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
t 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 l
is
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 N
o
ti
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 o
p
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 m
e
d
ia
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
, 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

s
o
m
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
ta
in
s
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l,
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
lly
 s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
 o
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
 I
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

m
a
y
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
, 
a
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
a
re
 o
c
c
a
s
io
n
 t
h
is
 a
p
p
lie
s
 t
h
is
 i
s
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
is
t 
b
e
lo
w
. 
A
 f
o
rm

a
l 
n
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
, 
o
r 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
it
, 

in
 p
ri
v
a
te
, 
w
ill
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 2
8
 c
le
a
r 
d
a
y
s
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
n
y
 p
ri
v
a
te
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
) 
(M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
) 
(E
n
g
la
n
d
) 
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 2
0
1
2
. 
 

 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
v
it
e
s
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
t 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 (
u
n
le
s
s
 a
 n
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
in
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 t
h
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 g
iv
e
n
).
 

 Y
o
u
 a
re
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 a
n
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
ti
c
e
, 
o
r 
o
b
ta
in
 e
x
tr
a
c
ts
 f
ro
m
 a
n
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
e
r 

p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 b
e
in
g
 m

a
d
e
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
n
y
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 d
is
c
lo
s
u
re
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 m
a
y
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 f
o
r 

p
h
o
to
c
o
p
y
in
g
 o
r 
p
o
s
ta
g
e
. 
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 c
a
n
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 f
ro
m
 A
le
x
 D
a
y
n
e
s
, 
S
e
n
io
r 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
8
3
),
 e
-m

a
il 
to
 

a
le
x
a
n
d
e
r.
d
a
y
n
e
s
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
4
7
. 
F
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 a
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
. 
 

 A
ll 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
o
s
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
: 
w
w
w
.p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
/e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
. 
 I
f 
y
o
u
 w
is
h
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 N
o
ti
c
e
, 
p
le
a
s
e
 s
u
b
m
it
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
. 
 F
o
r 
y
o
u
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
th
e
 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 n
o
ti
c
e
. 

  

118



 

  

K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 F
R
O
M
 2
0
 S
E
P
T
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
1
3
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 

O
P
E
N
 T
O
 

P
U
B
L
IC
 

R
E
L
E
V
A
N
T
  

S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 

C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

D
O
C
U
M
E
N
T
S
 

R
E
L
E
V
A
N
T
 T
O
 

T
H
E
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

S
U
B
M
IT
T
E
D
 T
O
 

T
H
E
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 (
IF
 A
N
Y
 

O
T
H
E
R
 T
H
A
N
 

P
U
B
L
IC
 R
E
P
O
R
T
) 

D
a
y
 a
n
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 

D
is
a
b
il
it
ie
s
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
0
S
E
P
1
3
/0
1
 

A
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
P
e
rs
o
n
 

C
e
n
tr
e
d
 A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
Y
o
u
n
g
e
r 

A
d
u
lt
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

Y
e
s
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
. 

  

M
u
b
a
ra
k
 D
a
rb
a
r 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
5
0
9
 

m
u
b
a
ra
k
.d
a
rb
a
r@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

M
a
te
ri
a
ls
 R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 

F
a
c
il
it
y
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
- 

K
E
Y
/2
0
S
E
P
1
3
/0
2
 

A
g
re
e
 t
o
 j
o
in
t 
p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

M
R
F
 f
o
r 
b
u
lk
in
g
, 
s
o
rt
in
g
 a
n
d
 

o
n
w
a
rd
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
a
le
 o
f 

re
c
y
c
la
b
le
 m

a
te
ri
a
ls
, 
in
 

c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 R
E
C
A
P
 

P
a
rt
n
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
ils
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
G
a
v
in
 

E
ls
e
y
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
u
lt
u
re
, 

R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

W
a
s
te
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

R
ic
h
a
rd
 P
e
a
rn
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

W
a
s
te
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

 ri
c
h
a
rd
.p
e
a
rn
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

119



 

 C
it
y
 C
o
ll
e
g
e
 E
x
te
n
s
io
n
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
- 
K
E
Y
/2
0
S
E
P
1
3
/0
3
 

U
s
in
g
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 F
u
n
d
in
g
 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 g
ra
n
t 
to
 c
re
a
te
 a
 

d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
, 
c
u
s
to
m
is
e
d
 s
p
a
c
e
 

fo
r 
s
tu
d
e
n
ts
 a
g
e
d
 1
6
-1
9
 w
it
h
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
J
o
h
n
 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

P
R
E
V
IO
U
S
L
Y
 A
D
V
E
R
T
IS
E
D
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
's
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

S
a
le
 o
f 
D
ic
k
e
n
s
 S
tr
e
e
t 

C
a
r 
P
a
rk
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
3
J
U
L
/1
1
 

T
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
in
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 S
o
lic
it
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
–
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
th
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 

to
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 

s
a
le
 o
f 
D
ic
k
e
n
s
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 

P
a
rk
. 
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r,
 W

a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
, 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 &
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
o
d
g
s
o
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
5
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.h
o
d
g
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

R
o
ll
in
g
 S
e
le
c
t 
L
is
t 
- 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 

A
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
1
J
U
L
/1
2
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 l
is
t 
fo
r 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
fo
s
te
ri
n
g
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
S
h
e
il
a
 

S
c
o
tt
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

120



 

 C
a
re
 a
n
d
 R
e
p
a
ir
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
- 

K
E
Y
/1
8
D
E
C
1
2
/0
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 a
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 o
f 

ra
te
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 

fa
c
ili
ty
 g
ra
n
t 
w
o
rk
. 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
o
ile
t 

a
n
d
 w
a
s
h
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
o
rk
 i
n
 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 

 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
N
ig
e
l 

N
o
rt
h
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

N
/A
 

S
tr
o
n
g
 a
n
d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
In
te
rn
a
l 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
. 

  

R
u
s
s
 C
a
rr
 

C
a
re
 &
 R
e
p
a
ir
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
6
4
 

ru
s
s
.c
a
rr
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o

v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
4
J
A
N
1
3
/0
2
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
p
u
b
lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 C
a
b
in
e
t 

Y
E
S
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

F
o
u
r 
w
e
e
k
 p
u
b
lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

  

C
h
a
rl
o
tt
e
 P
a
lm
e
r 

C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

 c
h
a
rl
o
tt
e
.p
a
lm
e
r@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

F
le
tt
o
n
 P
a
rk
w
a
y
 J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

1
7
 t
o
 2
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
4
J
A
N
1
3
/0
7
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 

fo
rw
a
rd
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
 i
n
 M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm

 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
w
a
rd
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

w
o
rk
s
.  

 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
G
r.
 U
ff
. 

M
a
rc
o
 C
e
re
s
te
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
n
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
G
ro
w
th
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

M
a
rk
 S
p
e
e
d
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 3
1
7
4
7
1
 

m
a
rk
.s
p
e
e
d
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.

g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

121



 

 S
a
le
 o
f 
C
ra
ig
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 

P
a
rk
 -
 K
E
Y
/2
5
M
A
R
1
3
/0
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
le
 o
f 
la
n
d
 

k
n
o
w
n
 a
s
 C
ra
ig
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 

P
a
rk
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
In
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
. 

  

D
a
v
id
 G
ra
y
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
je
c
ts
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
1
 

d
a
v
id
.g
ra
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

F
u
tu
re
 C
it
ie
s
 

D
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
to
r 
- 

K
E
Y
/1
1
J
U
L
1
3
/0
1
 

T
o
 r
e
-a
ff
ir
m
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

‘P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 D
N
A
’ 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 

s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
T
S
B
) 
w
h
ic
h
 

a
tt
ra
c
te
d
 t
h
e
 a
w
a
rd
 o
f 
£
3
M
 t
o
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
n
 

th
e
 3
1
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
G
r.
 U
ff
. 

M
a
rc
o
 C
e
re
s
te
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
n
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
G
ro
w
th
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
, 

th
e
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

D
N
A
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 

T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 f
if
ty
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 a
t 

a
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 o
n
 1
4
th
 

M
a
y
 2
0
1
3
. 

 

C
h
a
rl
o
tt
e
 P
a
lm
e
r 

C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

 c
h
a
rl
o
tt
e
.p
a
lm
e
r@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

T
h
e
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 

F
u
lb
ri
d
g
e
 A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 t
o
 

fo
u
r 
fo
rm

s
 o
f 
e
n
tr
y
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
5
J
U
L
1
3
/0
2
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
F
u
lb
ri
d
g
e
 

A
c
a
d
e
m
y
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
le
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

w
it
h
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
ie
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
J
o
h
n
 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

122



 

 F
le
tt
o
n
 P
a
rk
w
a
y
 

W
id
e
n
in
g
 J
n
1
7
-2
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
5
J
U
L
1
3
/0
3
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
S
it
e
 

S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
G
r.
 U
ff
. 

M
a
rc
o
 C
e
re
s
te
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
n
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
G
ro
w
th
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

S
im
o
n
 M
a
c
h
e
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
4
7
5
 

s
im
o
n
.m
a
c
h
e
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

T
h
e
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 

W
o
o
d
s
to
n
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 t
w
o
 f
o
rm

s
 o
f 

e
n
tr
y
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
8
A
U
G
1
3
/0
1
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
W
o
o
d
s
to
n
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
le
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

w
it
h
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
ie
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
J
o
h
n
 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
. 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

T
h
e
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 

R
a
v
e
n
s
th
o
rp
e
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 t
w
o
 f
o
rm

s
 o
f 

e
n
tr
y
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
8
A
U
G
1
3
/0
2
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
R
a
v
e
n
s
th
o
rp
e
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
le
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

w
it
h
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
ie
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
J
o
h
n
 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
. 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

123



 

 T
h
e
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
O
rt
o
n
 

W
is
to
w
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 

tw
o
 f
o
rm

s
 o
f 
e
n
tr
y
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
8
A
U
G
1
3
/0
3
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
O
rt
o
n
 W

is
to
w
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
le
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

w
it
h
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
ie
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
J
o
h
n
 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
. 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

C
la
re
 L
o
d
g
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
2
A
U
G
1
3
/0
1
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
S
h
e
il
a
 

S
c
o
tt
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
6
S
E
P
1
3
/0
1
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to
 a
 

p
ro
v
id
e
r 
to
 r
u
n
 t
h
e
 D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
W
a
y
n
e
 

F
it
z
g
e
ra
ld
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

N
/A
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
s
s
u
e
s
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 w
it
h
 

o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 b
o
a
rd
 

fo
llo
w
e
d
 b
y
 m

e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 

g
ro
u
p
. 

   

N
ic
k
 B
la
k
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
0
6
 

n
ic
k
.b
la
k
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 m

in
i 

te
n
d
e
r 
- 
K
E
Y
/0
6
S
E
P
1
3
/0
2
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 w
o
rk
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 

o
u
t 
to
 t
h
e
 D
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 s
it
e
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
W
a
y
n
e
 

F
it
z
g
e
ra
ld
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

N
/A
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
s
s
u
e
s
 

O
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 b
o
a
rd
 

fo
llo
w
e
d
 b
y
 m

e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s
te
e
ri
n
g
 

g
ro
u
p
. 

  

N
ic
k
 B
la
k
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
0
6
 

n
ic
k
.b
la
k
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

124



 

 P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
C
a
re
 a
n
d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
A
d
u
lt
s
 

(H
o
m
e
c
a
re
) 
- 

K
E
Y
/0
6
S
E
P
1
3
/0
3
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
C
a
re
 

a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
W
a
y
n
e
 

F
it
z
g
e
ra
ld
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

N
/A
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
s
s
u
e
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

N
ic
k
 B
la
k
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
0
6
 

n
ic
k
.b
la
k
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

125



 C
H
IE
F
 E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E
'S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

H
R
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
, 
T
ra
in
in
g
 &
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 R
e
w
a
rd
 &
 P
o
lic
y
 

 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
D
ir
e
c
to
r'
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
  

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 (
IC
T
) 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
  

W
a
s
te
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
h
a
re
d
 T
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
T
ru
s
t 
C
lie
n
t 

 C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
S
’ 
S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
B
a
y
a
rd
 P
la
c
e
, 
B
ro
a
d
w
a
y
, 
P
E
1
 1
F
B
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
, 
F
a
m
ily
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 &
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

 O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
D
ir
e
c
to
r’
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 &
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 (
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 &
 C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
, 
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 &
 D
e
liv
e
ry
, 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
) 
  

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 (
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
C
C
T
V
, 
C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
, 
M
a
rk
e
ts
 &
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
T
ra
d
in
g
, 
T
o
u
ri
s
m
) 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 (
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
S
a
fe
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 H
o
u
s
in
g
, 
C
o
h
e
s
io
n
, 
S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
, 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t)
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 (
F
in
a
n
c
e
) 
 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

 A
D
U
L
T
 S
O
C
IA
L
 C
A
R
E
 D
ir
e
c
to
r’
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

C
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 (
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
&
 C
a
re
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t;
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 H
IV
/A
ID
S
; 
R
e
g
u
la
te
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 (
M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
; 
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
, 
P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 &
 S
e
n
s
o
ry
 I
m
p
a
ir
m
e
n
t;
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
, 
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
&
 

126



 C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
) 

Q
u
a
lit
y
, 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 &
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
; 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
; 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 &
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
; 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
y
s
te
m
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t;
 

Q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 W

o
rk
fo
rc
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t)
 

 

127



128

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
2
9
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
3
  

 C
R
E
A
T
IN
G
 O
P
P
O
R
T
U
N
IT
IE
S
 A
N
D
 T
A
C
K
L
IN
G
 I
N
E
Q
U
A
L
IT
IE
S
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 P
la
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 

 T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
la
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
-W

e
lb
o
u
rn
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
t 
1
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 P
la
n
 –
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 

m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
t 
1
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm

 
 T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
in
g
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
is
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
: 
A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 /
 W

e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
-W

e
lb
o
u
rn
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
t 
1
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 
R
e
p
o
rt
 
fr
o
m
 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 
T
a
s
k
 
a
n
d
 
F
in
is
h
 
G
ro
u
p
 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 

 T
o
 
s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 
th
e
 
w
o
rk
 
o
f 
th
e
 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
L
o
u
is
e
 T
y
e
rs
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
t 
1
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 1
0
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 

 2
3
 M
a
y
 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

3
0
 M
a
y
 F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
  

    

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 a
n
d
 F
u
tu
re
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 a
n
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 

w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 P
a
u
li
n
a
 F
o
rd
 

 

129



 
 

 
 

 
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
2
9
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
3
  

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

  
 

 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 P
a
n
e
l 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 

G
ro
u
p
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
D
e
b
b
ie
 H
a
it
h
 

 

P
o
v
e
rt
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 –
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 

T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 P
o
v
e
rt
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
t 
1
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

U
p
d
a
te
 R
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 N
E
E
T
’s
 (
1
6
 t
o
 1
8
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 n
o
t 
in
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
r 
T
ra
in
in
g
) 

T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 e
n
d
o
rs
e
 t
h
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 0
-1
9
 S
e
rv
ic
e
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 W

e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
-W

e
lb
o
u
rn
 

 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
. 
  

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 E
A
L
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 E
A
L
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

 

 2
2
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

 4
 J
u
ly
 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

1
1
 J
u
ly
 F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
–
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

 

130



 
 

 
 

 
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
2
9
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
3
  

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 I
n
 A
 D
a
y
: 
A
 F
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 W

e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm

 
 T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 a
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo
r 
a
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 i
n
 a
 D
a
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
P
a
u
li
n
a
 F
o
rd
 /
 A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 

 

  
 

 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 B
o
a
rd
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 (
P
S
C
B
) 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
  

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 D
e
b
b
ie
 H
a
it
h
 /
 R
u
s
s
e
ll
 W

a
te
, 
C
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 

 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 (
S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
) 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 P
ro
c
e
s
s
 

(C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
c
t 
1
9
8
9
) 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
1
2
 

T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 (
S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
) 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 

P
ro
c
e
s
s
 (
C
h
ild
re
n
 a
c
t 
1
9
8
9
) 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 B
e
li
n
d
a
 E
v
a
n
s
 

 

E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

 

9
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

 2
2
 A
u
g
 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

2
9
 A
u
g
 F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
  

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
–
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

 

 
 

 

1
1
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

2
4
 O
c
t 
D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

3
1
 O
c
t 
F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
  

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
–
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 

131



 
 

 
 

 
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
2
9
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
3
  

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 

 T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
-W

e
lb
o
u
rn
 

 

A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 i
t’
s
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
  

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 S
im

o
n
 G
re
e
n
 /
 D
e
b
b
ie
 H
a
it
h
 

 

P
o
v
e
rt
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 –
 F
in
a
l 

T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 P
o
v
e
rt
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
t 
2
2
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
2
0
1
3
 K
e
y
 S
ta
g
e
 1
 &
 2
 V
a
li
d
a
te
d
 E
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 

 T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 2
0
1
3
 e
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
, 
a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re
s
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
  

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

 

 

T
h
e
 V
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 –
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

   C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
t 
2
2
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

 
 

 

 6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

1
6
 D
e
c
 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

2
3
 D
e
c
 F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
  
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
–
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 

132



 
 

 
 

 
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
2
9
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
3
  

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 P
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

 T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 P
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
s
e
. 
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
: 
 L
o
u
 W

il
li
a
m
s
/S
im

o
n
 G
re
e
n
/D
e
b
b
ie
 H
a
it
h
/W

e
n
d
i 

O
g
le
-W

e
lb
o
u
rn
 

 

C
h
il
d
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 W

e
ll
b
e
in
g
  

T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
-W

e
lb
o
u
rn
/J
a
n
e
t 
D
u
ll
a
g
h
a
n
 

 

C
it
y
 C
o
ll
e
g
e
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

  C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
P
a
t 
C
a
rr
in
g
to
n
, 
P
ri
n
c
ip
a
l/
H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
  

 

 
 

 

8
 o
r 
2
0
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
1
4
 

(J
o
in
t 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 

th
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
s
) 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 M

e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
P
la
n
 

T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 a
n
d
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
P
la
n
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
h
n
 H
a
rr
is
o
n
/S
te
v
e
n
 P
il
s
w
o
rt
h
 

 

 
 

 

1
7
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

2
7
 F
e
b
 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
  

6
 M
a
rc
h
 F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
  

P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
2
0
1
3
 K
e
y
 S
ta
g
e
  
4
 V
a
li
d
a
te
d
 E
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 

 T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 2
0
1
3
 e
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
, 
a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re
s
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
  

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

 

133



 
 

 
 

 
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
D
: 
2
9
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
3
  

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

D
ra
ft
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
3
-2
0
1
8
 –
 D
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 L
o
c
a
l 
P
la
c
e
s
 

fo
r 
L
o
c
a
l 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 –
 R
e
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
t 
2
2
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

C
h
il
d
re
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 

 T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
W
e
n
d
i 
O
g
le
-W

e
lb
o
u
rn
 

 

T
a
c
k
li
n
g
 P
o
v
e
rt
y
 I
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 –
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
  

 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
–
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 a
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
S
u
e
 W

e
s
tc
o
tt
 

 

 
 

 

 It
e
m
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 i
n
: 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

 It
e
m
 

R
e
fe
rr
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

  

134


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Meetings held on 10 June and 22 July 2013
	130722-  Creating Opportunities Scrutiny -  DRAFT Minutes

	5 Peterborough Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report (PSCB) 2012/13 and Business Plan 2013/14
	PSCB Annual Report 2012-13 - 130909 - CO&TISC
	PSCB business plan - 130909 - CO&TISC
	CDOP Summary Annual report 1213 - 130909 - CO&TISC

	6 Children's (Social Care) Services Statutory Complaints Process (Children act 1989) Annual Report 2012/13
	Appendix 1 - Service Improvements 2012-13 - 130909 - CO&TISC

	7 Establishment of a Task and Finish Group for Improving the Educational Outcomes for Children and Young People in Peterborough
	8 Children's Services Improvement Programme
	9 Notice of Intention to take Key Decisions
	Appendix 1 - Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions - 130909 - CO&TISC

	10 Work Programme 2013/2014

